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Shougang Century Holdings Limited (“Shougang Century”;
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) has
been listed on the Stock Exchange since April 1992.
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (a state-owned enterprise under
the direct supervision of the Beijing State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission) and its
controlled corporations, Bekaert and Li Ka Shing Foundation
are the substantial shareholders of Shougang Century.

The Group is primarily involved in the following activities:

1.  manufacturing and sales of steel cords for radial tyres

2.  manufacturing and sales of sawing wires and hose
wires

° create an influential “Eastern” brand recognition in
steel cord industry based on the principles of integrity,
pragmatism and efficiency

° gradually become an enterprise with annual
manufacturing capacity in excess of 300,000 tonnes
of high-quality steel cord

° become one of the three major manufacturers of steel
cord industry in China

To learn more about Shougang Century, please visit
http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Su Fanrong (Chairman and Managing Director)

Yang Junlin (Deputy Managing Director)
Ye Qian
Li Jinping

Non-executive Director
Adam Touhig

Independent Non-executive Directors

Yip Kin Man, Raymond
Lam Yiu Kin
Feng Yaoling

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)
Lam Yiu Kin

Feng Yaoling

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)
Su Fanrong (Vice Chairman)

Lam Yiu Kin

Feng Yaoling

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Su Fanrong (Chairman)

Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Vice Chairman)
Lam Yiu Kin

Feng Yaoling

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Su Fanrong
Cheung Wa Ying
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Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of China (Hong Kong)

China CITIC Bank

Chong Hing Bank

Fubon Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
The Bank of East Asia

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

Moore Advisory Services Limited

Tricor Tengis Limited

17/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan
Hong Kong

http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk
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Board lot size: 2,000 Shares

Shares outstanding as at the last 1,971,379,828 Shares

trading day of 2022:

Market capitalisation as at the last HK$433,703,562

trading day of 2022:

Closing share price as at the last HK$0.22
trading day of 2022:

Basic earnings per Share for 2022:

Interim HK1.55 cents

Final HK2.44 cents

Dividend for 2022

Interim Dividend :Nil

Final Dividend HKO0.73 cent per Share

Payment Date of 2022 Final 31 July 2023

Dividend:
2022 Annual General Meeting: 26 June 2023
Closure of Register of Members 19 to 26 June 2023

for 2022 Annual General

Meeting:
Announcement of 2022 Final 24 March 2023
Results:
Address Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2527 2218

Fax : (852) 2861 3527

E-mail address business_link@shougangcentury.com.hk
ir@shougangcentury.com.hk
schl@shougangcentury.com.hk

Website http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk

Any matters relating to your shareholding, e.g. transfer of
Shares, change of name or address, lost share certificates
and dividend warrants, should be sent in writing to:

Address 17/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2980 1333

Fax : (852) 2810 8185
E-mail address is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Website http://www.tricoris.com
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JEsc Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd. EER S HMELEEGR AT

Address: 1 Dong Fang Road, Jiaxing Economic Development Zone
Zhejiang Province, PRC

ok BT T & Fe B T A B R B IR AR T B8 1 9%

Postal code: 314003

iR

Telephone: (86) 573 8222 2790

B

Fax: (86) 573 8221 3500

BE :

Website: http://www.jesc.com.cn

A

E-mail address: jesc@jesc.com.cn
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TEsc Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd. BN R A HEERER LT

Address: 1 Dong Fang Road, Tengzhou Economic Development Zone
Shandong Province, PRC
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Postal code: 277500

i

Telephone: (86) 632 525 2100

B3

Fax: (86) 632 525 2111

BE:

Website: http://www.tesc.com.cn

A4t -

E-mail address: tesc@tesc.com.cn
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Shougang Century (Shanghai) Management Co., Ltd.»" E¥I( L8)EEER AT

% Address: Room 2505, Tower 1, SOHO Tianshan Plaza

No.421 Ziyun Road, Changning District, Shanghai, PRC
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Postal code: 200051
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Telephone: (86) 21 6291 8806
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Fax: (86) 21 6291 8805
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Mr. Su Fanrong, aged 55, joined the Group as a deputy
general manager of the Company in January 2015 and was
appointed as the executive deputy managing Director on
1 December 2015. Mr. Su has re-designated as the chairman
of the Company and acted as the chairman and vice-
chairman of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company respectively since 18 January
2018, and he has been appointed as the managing Director
on 31 January 2018. At present, Mr. Su holds directorship
in all wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. He also
acts as the deputy general manager of Shougang HK. He
holds a Master degree in Business Administration from
Missouri State University and Bachelor degree specialising
in Pressure Processing from University of Science and
Technology Beijing. He joined Shougang Group in 1990
and has been working in various companies under Shougang
Group. Mr. Su has over 25 years of sales and management
experience in the steel industry.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Su and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2021
and ending on 31 December 2023 to act as the chairman
of the Company. At present, Mr. Su’s monthly salaries is
entitled to HK$220,000 which is determined with reference
to the financial position of the Company, the experience
and duties of Mr. Su, the remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

)

Mr. Yang Junlin, aged 42, was appointed as an executive
Director and a deputy managing Director with effect from
1 July 2022 and 8 July 2022 respectively. At present, he
also holds directorship in all wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company. He graduated from Nankai University with a
Bachelor degree in Management. Mr. Yang had been working
in various companies under Shougang Group since 2003
and held various senior positions. Mr. Yang had been the
general manager of the finance department of Shougang
HK prior to his appointment as an executive Director. Mr.
Yang is currently a director of various companies under
Shougang Group. In all, Mr. Yang has been engaged in
financial management for years and has extensive
experience and expertise in financing and capital market.

The current service contract was entered into between Mr.
Yang and the Company for a term commencing from 8 July
2022 and ending on 31 December 2024. At present, Mr.
Yang is entitled to receive a monthly salary of HK$200,000.
Such salary is determined with reference to his experience
and duties, his role played in the Board, the Company’s
performance and profitability, the remuneration benchmark
in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Ye Qian, aged 38, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 28 June 2019. Mr. Ye has re-designated as an
executive Director since 1 January 2020. He graduated from
the University of Wales with a Master degree in Business
Administration. Prior to joining Shougang Fund, Mr. Ye had
held senior positions in Great Wall Motor Company Limited,
China Chamber of International Commerce and
Representative Office in Hong Kong & Macao of China
Council for the Promotion of International Trade. Since Mr.
Ye joined Shougang Fund in 2014, he had served as an
assistant to general manager of Beijing West Fund
Management Co., Ltd. and a deputy director of PPP Fund
of Shougang Fund. He has participated in establishment
and investment of numerous funds. He currently serves as
the managing director of Shougang Fund as well as the
chairman of Beijing Shouyuan Xinneng Investment
Management Co., Ltd. and Beijing West Fund Management
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Ye was appointed as a supervisor of Beiqi
Foton Motor Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 600166), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
with effect from 25 February 2021. He was also appointed
as a non-executive director of BAIC Motor Corporation
Limited on 24 March 2021. In all, Mr. Ye has rich experience
in automobile OEM industry, government authorities and
foreign-related business management department and also
in corporate services and project investment.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Ye and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2023
and ending on 31 December 2025 to act as an executive
Director. Mr. Ye has voluntarily declined any director’s
emoluments.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Li Jinping, aged 46, was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2020. Mr. Li was graduated
from Shandong University of Finance and Economics with
a Master degree in Accounting. He is a senior accountant
and a Public Valuer. Mr. Li had worked in Beijing Supervision
Bureau of Ministry of Finance of PRC for approximately 18
years and held various senior positions including the deputy
division director and division director. He was principally
engaged in the work relating to supervision, inspection, risk
control management and so on. In 2019, Mr. Li joined
Shougang HK. He currently serves as a financial controller
of Shougang HK. In all, Mr. Li has extensive experience and
expertise in financial supervision and risk control.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Li and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2023
and ending on 31 December 2025. Mr. Li has voluntarily
declined any director’s emoluments.

Mr. Adam Touhig, aged 54, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 15 January 2021. He was appointed
as the senior vice president of rubber reinforcement Asia
in Bekaert group on 1 June 2020.

Prior to joining Bekaert group, Mr. Touhig had held various
management positions including global account director,
vice president of commercial and program management,
regional senior vice president, company president, chairman
and board member in several companies for GKN Automotive
Limited, including GKN Driveline (India) Ltd, GKN Driveline
Japan Ltd, GKN Driveline Korea Ltd, Taiway Limited and
GKN Driveline Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.. He also held directorships
in the abovementioned companies. Mr. Touhig has
over 30 years of extensive experience in the tier 1
automotive industry.

In all,

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Touhig
and the Company for a term commencing from 1 August
2022 and ending on 31 December 2024. At present, Mr.
Touhig is entitled to receive a director’s fee of HK$150,000
per annum which is determined with reference to his
experience and duties, his role played in the Board, the
Company’s performance and profitability, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Alias: Ip Kin Man), aged 76,
holds a Bachelor degree in Arts with honors from the
University of Hong Kong. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in 1993. He also serves
as the chairman of each of the audit committee and
remuneration committee and acts as the vice-chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company since 18 May
2018. Mr. Yip has also acted as an independent non-
executive director of Capital Industrial Financial from
January 2007 until 31 December 2019. He also acts as an
independent non-executive director of BeijingWest Industries
since 27 January 2014. Mr. Yip is a practising solicitor,
notary public and China-Appointed Attesting Officer. He
has extensive experience in legal profession.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Yip and
the Company for a term of three years commencing from
1 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025. At
present, Mr. Yip is entitled to receive a director’s fee of
HK$240,000 per annum which is determined with reference
to his experience and duties, his role played in the Board,
the Company’s performance and profitability, the
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing
market conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Lam Yiu Kin, aged 68, is a fellow member of each
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales,
the Chartered Accountants of Australia and New Zealand
and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (“Polytechnic University”) with a higher diploma
in Accountancy in 1975. He was conferred an Honorary
Fellow of Polytechnic University in 2002. Mr. Lam was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of each of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company
in August 2015. He is also an independent non-executive
director of each of Shanghai Fudan-Zhangjiang Bio-
Pharmaceutical Co., Limited, Spring Real Estate Investment
Trust, Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited, COSCO
SHIPPING Ports Limited, Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings)
Limited, CITIC Telecom International Holdings Limited and
Topsports International Holdings Limited. Mr. Lam retired
as an independent non-executive Director of WWPKG
Holdings Company Limited with effect from 2 August 2022.
He also resigned as an independent non-executive Director
of Bestway Global Holding Inc. and Vital Innovations
Holdings Limited with effect from 31 December 2021 and
31 October 2020 respectively. Mr. Lam had taken the
position of an adjunct professor in the School of Accounting
and Finance of Polytechnic University until 31 August
2016. He was previously a member of the Listing
Committee and the Financial Reporting Advisory Panel of
the Stock Exchange from 1997 to 2003, a committee
member of HKICPA from 1994 to 2009, a partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers from 1993 to 2013 and a member
of the Finance Management Committee of the Hong Kong
Management Association until 7 July 2016. In all, Mr. Lam
has over 40 years of extensive experience in accounting,
auditing and business consulting.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Lam and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2021
and ending on 31 December 2023. At present, Mr. Lam is
entitled to receive a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per annum
which is determined with reference to his experience and
duties, his role played in the Board, the Company’s
performance and profitability, the remuneration benchmark
in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Feng Yaoling, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each
of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from
1 January 2020. Mr. Feng was a professor-level senior
engineer who is awarded special government subsidy by
the State Council of PRC as a specialist. He graduated
from Beijing University of Chemical Technology with a
Bachelor degree in Engineering in January 1982.

Mr. Feng is currently a deputy chief engineer of Eve Rubber
Institute Co., Ltd. and he has over 35 years of extensive
experience in the tyre manufacturing industry. Mr. Feng
was previously the chief engineer, senior engineer, deputy
general manager cum chief engineer and director of Aeolus
Tyre Co., Ltd. (“Aeolus Tyre”) from 1982 to 2017. Aeolus
Tyre was listed on the Main Board of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange in October 2003 (Stock code: 600469).

On 6 March 2015, Aeolus Tyre received the administrative
penalty decision including warnings and a fine of
RMB600,000 from the Henan regulatory bureau of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission, due to its misstatement
of accounting information in the 2011 and 2012 annual
reports which violated the “Measures for the Administration
of Information Disclosure of Listed Companies”. Mr. Feng,
as a then senior management of Aeolus Tyre, among others,
also received the “Decision to Impose Training Order to
Zheng Yuli, Fan Rende and others in Total 7 Persons” and
the “Decision to Issue Warning Letters to Zheng Yuli, Fan
Rende and others in Total 10 Persons” (the “Decisions”).
Pursuant to the Decisions, Mr. Feng needed to participate
in the training of laws and regulations related to listed
companies, and was warned and recorded in the Integrity
Archive of Securities and Futures. Mr. Feng confirms that
(i) remedial actions have been taken by Aeolus Tyre which
include correcting and restating figures in the relevant
annual reports; (ii) the proceedings regarding the aforesaid
matter has been completely settled; and (iii) the Decisions
have been fully complied with and no further administrative
penalties or liabilities were outstanding by Aeolus Tyre or
Mr. Feng regarding the aforesaid matter.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Feng and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2023
and ending on 31 December 2025. At present, Mr. Feng is
entitled to receive a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per annum
which is determined with reference to his experience and
duties, his role played in the Board, the Company’s
performance and profitability, the remuneration benchmark
in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
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| am pleased to present the audited annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year under review, various regions in the PRC
witnessed largescale outbreaks of the COVID-19 pandemic,
subsequently hindering industrial activities and domestic
consumption. According to National Bureau of Statistics of
China, amid the COVID-19 pandemic situation, China’s
gross domestic product (“GDP”) grew by 3.9% year-on-year
in the third quarter, an increase of 3.5 percentage points
from 0.4% in the second quarter, but the recovery was not
sustained in the fourth quarter, which recorded an increase
of 2.9% year-on-year, down by 1.0 percentage point from
the third quarter. As a result, China’s economy experienced
a slower-than-expected growth rate with only 3% growth
in its GDP in 2022.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERWHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s revenue
amounted to HK$2,464,242,000 representing a decrease of
8.6% from the previous year (2021: HK$2,694,810,000).
Despite unprecedented challenges, our sales teams
maintained their high spirits. We fought hard and achieved
uneasy result by raising average selling price and the
volume of export sales. However, the macro-economic
headwinds experienced during 2022 resulted in weakening
demands as well as inflationary pressures that increased
logistics, energy and other production costs. The gross
profit margin of the Group then decrease from 15.4% to
13.4%. Accordingly, the Group recorded the net profit of
HK$47,858,000 for the year, whereas basic earnings per
Share of HK2.44 cents for the year.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HKO0.73 cent per Share for the year ended 31 December
2022.

The conflict between Russia and Ukraine at the beginning
of the year 2022 would continue to have a profound impact
on global energy, therefore, | am of the view that the year
of 2023 will still be full of challenges. However, we will
continue to embark our utmost effort in enhancing the
stability of quality of steel cord products and put more
resources on the development of high-end products catered
for different customers. In addition, the research and
development effort will be extended to the development of
(a) new specifications of steel cords to correspond to market
development and for ongoing market expansion; (b) new
techniques to lower energy costs and reduce wastage in
the production process; and (c) modifications to production
facilities to reduce pollutant emissions for the creation of
more environmental friendly manufacturing plants so as to
improve overall production efficiency and reduce production
costs. By considering the government’s regulations on energy
conservation and emission reduction, the constant increase
in the production of electric cars drives demand for their
accessorial tyres to grow remarkably, it is anticipated to
expedite the market expansion of domestic steel cords for
radial tyres and bring more room for development to steel
cord industry in future. Thus, the Group’s operations are
promising, and fruitful results can be seen for a longer term.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERWHEE

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to my fellow
Board members and the management for their proactiveness,
courage and perseverance, thus leading the Company
forward. On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend
my heartfelt appreciation to all the staff. Last but not least,
let me thank our business partners and Shareholders for
their continuing support and trust in Shougang Century.
We will pragmatically develop our business and strive for
the best return for our Shareholders.

By order of the Board

Su Fanrong

Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sales of steel cords for radial tyres, sawing wires and hose
wires. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recorded revenue of the continuing operations of
approximately HK$2,464,242,000 (2021: HK$2,694,810,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 8.6% as compared
with the last year. Meanwhile, the gross profit for the
continuing operations decreased by 20.3% to
HK$330,540,000 (2021: HK$414,547,000). Therefore, the
Group’s net profit decreased by 40.8% from same period
last year of HK$80,879,000 to HK$47,858,000. The Board
considers that the decrease in profit after tax was mainly
attributable to the impact of the resurgence of the COVID-19
pandemic on economic activities, which led to (i) a decline
in automotive sales and reduction in transportation volume,
weakening the demand of accessorial and replacement
tyres; and (ii) the fact that the increase in production costs
could not be fully passed to the downstream, resulting in
the reduction in gross profit.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWAR D

Despite the above situation, the Group’s overall operational
and financial position remains stable. Bank and cash
balances (including pledged bank deposits) as at 31
December 2022 were HK$225,908,000. In response to the
current challenging operating environment under the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and the volatile international
economic conditions stemmed from geopolitical conflicts,
the Group will continue to closely monitor the market
situations and make necessary adjustments to its strategies
and operations to improve efficiency and profitability. The
Board has proposed a final dividend of HKO0.73 cent per
Share in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2022 (subject to Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting).

During the year under review, there were full of challenges
and uncertainties for the global market. The lingering effects
of the protracted global pandemic, rising geopolitical
tensions, soaring energy prices and escalating interest rate
hikes have conflated to batter and bruise the world
economy. In China, the economy continued to be hit hard
by numerous unexpected factors including multiple
outbreaks, extreme weather of severe heatwave, etc. As a
result, the pressure of declining demand, supply disruption
and expected weakening of the economy continued to
evolve, while the level of complexity, severity and uncertainty
of the development environment increased. China’s GDP
grew by 3.0% in 2022, a sharp slowdown from the 8.1%
pace recorded in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWAR D

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s revenue
of steel cord segment amounted to HK$2,462,767,000
(2021: HK$2,693,480,000), representing a decrease of 8.6%
from the previous year. Affected by the weaker demand of
radial tyres, the steel cord segment sold 193,701 tonnes
of steel cord during the period, decreased by 10.8% as
compared to 217,105 tonnes last year. In respect of the
sales of sawing wire products, it increased by 25.8% from
598 tonnes to 752 tonnes for the corresponding period last
year attributable to our persistent effort in exploring new
customers as well as the improvement of the photovoltaic,
sapphire, and magnetic material markets. There was a 5.6%
decrease in the sales of our other steel wire products from
9,410 tonnes to 8,886 tonnes for the corresponding period.
The sales volume of this segment for the period is analysed
as follows:

HE-_ZT-_—_F+A=+—BLHF
#2,462,767,0000L( — T — — F: B ¥
2,693,480,0007T ) 8 F —F[E 1 8.6% %
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-BLEFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E—F

% of % of

Sales total sales Sales  total sales

volume volume of volume  volume of
(Tonnes) steel cords (Tonnes) steel cords % change

L) hES

BHEE BHEE
HEE(W) BIN%) HEEMW) BHL%) BE(%)

Steel cords for: MEGAR -

- truck tyres —-HEHKRK 113,889 58.8 146,965 67.7 -22.5
- off the road truck tyres —T128&M 10,628 5.5 7,390 3.4 +43.8
- passenger car tyres -B8ih 69,184 35.7 62,750 28.9 +10.3
Total for steel cords MEGaE 193,701 100.0 217,105 100.0 -10.8
Sawing wire products YIEIM 442 752 598 +25.8
Other steel wires H At 44 8,886 9,410 -5.6
Total @t 203,339 227,113 -10.5




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREwWLR D

There was no significant change in sales mix during the
year, the proportion of sales of steel cords for truck tyres
accounted for 58.8% of total sales volume of steel cords
for the year, decreased by 8.9 percentage points as
compared to the previous year, it remained as the largest
sales volume of steel cords of the Group for the year.
Attributable to the great effort made by our sales team,
the sales of steel cords for off the road truck tyres increased
by 43.8% to 10,628 tonnes from 7,390 tonnes last year.

In respect of sales of steel cords by region, the volume of
export sales amounted to 72,304 tonnes for the year,
increased by 9.3% as compared to 66,160 tonnes last year.
The volume of export sales represented 37.3% of total
sales volume for the year, compared to 30.5% for last year,
signalling the increasing recognition of our brand to the
international tyres manufacturers. The breakdown of sales
volume of steel cords for the year by geographical location
is as follows:

RNEFHEMBREERNE (L MERBEEF
HEGRRANESEAFENREERHEE
58.8% 'tk AF T[4 78.9E & 7 2 - 1%%$
FEAEESZANHEFHEEE - AREMH
EEBMERE ) HESHEPIREREA
i fE AR IE B 2N A FH)7,390ME 18 1143.8% =
10,628]1 o

MEREERWEMS RAFE L O H
& & H72,3040F 0t X F ¥£66,1600F -
A93% - HOHEEHAFELIEE =S

37.3% @ MEFRIR30.5% @ ZHEH MM m
BRSSP BRI RERmA R A - AEE

iR HESRAMT

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
% of % of
Sales total sales Sales  total sales
volume volume of volume  volume of
(Tonnes) steel cords (Tonnes) steel cords % change
)5 hHES
BHER BHES
HEE(M) BIk®%) HEEMW) BIL(%) BE (%)
PRC H 121,397 62.7 150,945 69.5 -19.6
Export sales: HOHE -
Asia (other than PRC) M (REIRSN) 36,001 18.6 35,977 16.6 +0.1
EMEA (Europe, EMEA(BUM « SR FIFEM)

Middle East and Africa) 21,446 11.1 18,391 8.5 +16.6
North America =M 9,569 4.9 6,332 2.9 +51.1
South America mEM 5,288 2.7 5,460 2.5 -3.2

Total export sales T OEE B 72,304 37.3 66,160 30.5 +9.3
Total st 193,701 100.0 217,105 100.0 -10.8




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREWL KD

Gross profit of this segment decreased by 20.4% over last
year to HK$329,236,000 (2021: HK$413,360,000) for the
year. The gross profit margin also decreased from 15.3%
over last year to 13.4% for the year. This was mainly
because the increase in production costs could not be fully
passed to the downstream.

In view of generating greater managerial focus and releasing
internal resources for the Group to prioritise the profitable
steel cord business, the Group ceased all the operations
of the copper and brass products segment in September
2019. This business recorded no revenue and loss for the
year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Revenue for the continuing operations of the Group
amounted to HK$2,464,242,000 (2021: HK$2,694,810,000)
for the year, The
breakdown of revenue for the continuing operations of the
Group for the year is as follows:

decreased by 8.6% over last year.
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Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-BLEFE

2022 2021
—E-C —EZ—F

% of total % of total
HK$’000 revenue HK$°000 revenue % change

-3 =S
BETT  BI(%) BETT  BOL%) 28(%)
Steel cords AR 2,462,767 99.9 2,693,480 99.9 -8.6
Property rental MERE 1,475 0.1 1,330 0.1 +10.9
Total @5t 2,464,242 100.0 2,694,810 100.0 -8.6




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREwWLR D

Gross profit for the continuing operations of the Group
decreased by 20.3% over last year to HK$330,540,000
(2021: HK$414,547,000), which was mainly due to the
decrease of gross profit of steel cord segment. Accordingly,
the gross profit margin for the continuing operations of the
Group decreased by 2.0 percentage points to 13.4% for
the year as compared to that of last year. The breakdown
of gross profit for the continuing operations of the Group
for the year is as follows:

REBREFELEER 2 EFLEAFTR
20.3% % 7 #330,540,0007T( = & — — 4 :
7E#5414,547,00070 ) T ERANMER D S
MEF TRREAB - FEIL RAFEAREBRA
SECEEB 2 ER R EXFRET%2.0
EEDEE13.4% - NAFEAEBREFHE
KRR 2 EFBRENT

Year ended 31 December

HE+-A=+-BLEFE

2022 2021
—E-CEF —E-—F
Gross profit Gross profit
HK$'000 margin (%) HK$'000 margin (%) % change
BETT ERR%) AE%TT  EAE%) 28 (%)
Steel cords g 329,236 13.4 413,360 15.3 -20.4
Property rental MERE 1,304 88.4 1,187 89.2 +9.9
Total Bt 330,540 13.4 414,547 15.4 -20.3

Selling and distribution expenses for the continuing
operations amounted to HK$114,563,000 (2021:
HK$131,628,000) for the year, decreased by 13.0% over
last year, mainly due to the decrease in sales of steel cord
segment.

Administrative expenses for the continuing operations
amounted to HK$58,307,000 (2021: HK$57,423,000) for the
year, increased by 1.5% as compared to last year. The
Group would continue to implement the cost control
measures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWAR D

Research and development expenses for the continuing
operations of the Group amounted to HK$103,335,000 for
the year, decreased by 0.3% as compared to HK$103,676,000
for last year. Such expenses were all incurred by the steel
cord segment for aligning with the requirements from our
tyres manufacturing customers.

Other income for the continuing operations of the Group
increased by 410.5% from HK$4,062,000 for the year ended
31 December 2021 to HK$20,738,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022. This was primarily due to increase in
government grants.

Other gains/(losses), net for the continuing operations of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 recorded
the gains of HK$21,498,000 while that for the year ended
31 December 2021 was the losses of HK$22,622,000. This
was primarily due to HK$21,700,000 in fair value gain on
Convertible Bonds in the current year.

Finance costs, net for the continuing operations of the
Group increased by 277.7% from HK$13,401,000 to
HK$50,615,000 for the year. This is mainly because the
Group recorded foreign exchange losses on borrowings and
Convertible Bonds of HK$14,479,000 and HK$14,071,000
respectively during the current year.

RAFEAEBREFELE X 2%
£ F ¥ /5 #103,335,0007T * tb & F 3R B
103,676,0007T " P#0.3% ° ;25 & A 2 A2 il
BRONAEREREE P ERFIES -

AEERAFELCEER 2 EMBARESR
TE -+ - A=+—HIFENEE
4,062,000 C 1% J1410.5%EHE - T — —
+ZA=+—HILFE##E%20,738,0007T
BEEEHNEATHALIEN -

HE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HULEFE £&
ERERBELEEB 2 EblE (BE) F
RA 4515 0 25 B #521,498,00000 MEE - F
T+ AT HIEFEREEEREE
22,622,0007T  EEZRHRAFEAIBRKRE
H N F{EWE AE%21,700,0007T ©

RAFE  AEERBRFELEEB 2 MBEK
AN - SR FE 7B 513,401,00070 18 iN277.7% &
75 %50,615,000T ' EEX ERHARAEBE R
FEHGBEREIBRRES 2 INEE X EBEED
Rl 574 #14,479,0007T &8 #14,071,0007T



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWAR D

The treasury and funding policies of the Group concentrate
on the management of liquidity and the monitoring of
financial risks, including interest rate risk, currency risk and
counterparty risk. The objectives are to ensure the Group
has adequate financial resources to maintain business
growth with a viable financial position.

Surplus funds of the Group are generally placed on short
term deposits denominated in HKD, EUR, RMB or USD
with reputable banks in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
financing of the Group principally comprises bank loans
and Convertible Bonds. The financing portfolio takes into
consideration of the liquidity of the Group and interest
costs.

The Company manages its capital structure with the
objectives of ensuring that the businesses of the Group
can maintain a sustainable growth and providing a long-
term reasonable return to its Shareholders.

The total number of issued shares of the Company was at
1,971,379,828 Shares at 31 December 2022 (2021:
1,898,652,556 Shares). Net asset value of the Group was
HK$1,657,743,000 at 31 December 2022, decreased by
4.3% as compared to HK$1,732,946,000 at 31 December
2021. Net asset value per Share was HK$0.84 at 31
December 2022, also decreased by 7.7% as compared to
HK$0.91 at 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWAR D

On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with Jingxi Holdings (a related
party and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Fund)
whereby the Company issued and Jingxi Holdings
subscribed for the Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$150,000,000. The interest rate is 4.0% per
annum while Conversion Price is HK$0.33 per Share, with
conversion available commencing 6 months from issuance
date till end of term. Tenor is 3 years from issuance date
which can be extended by Jingxi Holdings for one year
twice to the date falling on 11 February 2024.

The Conversion Price was arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations between the Group and Jingxi Holdings with
reference to the prevailing market prices of the Shares. On
11 February 2019, the issuance of the Convertible Bonds
was completed. The net proceeds from the Subscription,
after deducting the costs and expenses of approximately
HK$1 million, are approximately HK$149 million and are
expected to be used as follows: (i) as to approximately
HK$37.3 million for repaying interest-bearing borrowings
with higher interest rate of the Group (excluding borrowings
provided by Shougang HK and its related party(ies)); (ii) as
to approximately HK$110 million for funding the capital
investment for the TESC Phase Il Project subject to the
construction cost and time needed to supplement the
production need for both TESC and JESC; and (iii) as to
approximately HK$1.7 million, being the remaining proceeds
for supplementing general working capital.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had fully utilised the
aforesaid proceeds. Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the
Company received from Jingxi Holdings an extension notice
to extend the maturity date to 11 February 2023 and a
conversion notice to convert the Convertible Bonds in the
principal amount of HK$24,000,000 at the Conversion Price
of HK$0.33 per Conversion Share. The Conversion Shares
were issued in February 2022.

In February 2023, the Convertible Bonds matured. The
Company has made full redemption of outstanding principal
amount of HK$126,000,000 of the Convertible Bonds, in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group’s bank balances and cash (including pledged
bank deposits) amounted to HK$225,908,000 at 31
December 2022, decreased by 16.1% as compared to
HK$269,354,000 at 31 December 2021. Total interest
bearing borrowings of the Group were HK$586,626,000
(comprised of bank borrowings and Convertible Bonds) at
31 December 2022, decreased by 14.7% as compared to
HK$687,686,000 (comprised of loan from a related company,
bank borrowings and Convertible Bonds) at 31 December
2021. The amount of net interest bearing borrowings (total
interest bearing borrowings less pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) therefore decreased from
HK$418,332,000 at 31 December 2021 to HK$360,718,000
at 31 December 2022.

Gearing ratio represented total interest bearing borrowings
less bank balances and cash (including pledged bank
deposits) divided by total equity of the Group and decreased
from 24.1% at 31 December 2021 to 21.8% at 31 December
2022. The current ratio (calculated as current assets divided
by current liabilities) of the Group was 1.18 times at 31
December 2022 as compared to 1.09 times at 31 December
2021.

The Group’s source of revenue is mainly denominated in
EUR, RMB and USD, while those of purchases and payments
are mainly denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. In respect
of exposure to interest rate risk, all the interest bearing
borrowings at 31 December 2022 were mainly at fixed rates.
During the year, the Group did not use any derivatives
instrument for hedging purposes.

We will review and adjust the currency composition of our
interest bearing borrowings from time to time to minimise
our risks on exchange and interest rate in respect of our
interest bearing borrowings. In any event, we would keep
monitoring the currency and interest rate composition of
the Group’s interest bearing borrowings under the guidance
of the Internal Control Manual and take appropriate action
to minimise our exchange and interest rate risks when
needed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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At 31 December 2022, the Group had commitments in
respect of property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$119,083,000.

In 2019, TESC entered into agreements with the relevant
governmental authorities of Tengzhou in relation to the
investment of a construction project to be carried out on
the three parcels of land through a public auction in 2010
and 2011 (the “Lands”). Pursuant to the agreements, TESC
shall invest in construction of the production lines for an
annual capacity of 100,000 tonnes steel cords on the Lands.
The Tengzhou governmental authorities shall assist TESC
in the construction project, such as handling relevant
procedures for facilitating
construction of infrastructure of the project such as water,
electricity and roads, and assisting in application of
governmental policy support and applicable support funds.

the construction, in the

The construction project has commenced to acquire the
machineries and construct the factory plant, ancillary
facilities and peripheral roads since November 2019. The
project is carried out by phases according to the market
conditions and the financial capacity of the Company from
time to time. Facing the growing automotive and tyre
market, the Group strives to enhance its productivity. During
the year under review, the Group continued to propel an
expansion plan at TESC. Our steel cord/wire production
capacity at TESC was expanded to reach an annual
production capacity of 160,000 tonnes. Together with the
annual capacity of 80,000 tonnes at JESC, the Group’s
annual production capacity of steel cords increased to
240,000 tonnes. in productivity
significantly enhances the Group’s core competitiveness
and profitability, the Group continues to make great strides
towards its goal to manufacture over 300,000 tonnes of
high-quality steel cords annually.

Since the increase
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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At 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 2,363
employees located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence as
well as the prevailing market condition of the industry.
Remuneration packages, which include an element of
discretionary bonuses, are generally reviewed annually. In
addition to salary payments, other employee benefits
include medical subsidies, hospitalisation scheme and a
defined contribution provident fund, Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme and other retirement scheme or other similar
defined contribution provident fund stipulated by the
regulations of the PRC which provided retirement benefits
to employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively. The
Group’s contributions to these schemes are charged against
profits or loss as they are incurred. The total employee
benefit expense for the year amounted to approximately
HK$262 million.

The Group had also provided training programmes or
courses for the mainland staff at all levels from different
departments, and also for Directors and employees of the
Company so as to further enhance their technical skills in
production operation and management, professional skills
and knowledge, respectively.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to
individual performance, the Group’s performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market condition.

In addition, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on 25
May 2012, which became effective on 29 May 2012 (the
“Effective Date”) upon the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange granting approval of the listing of, and permission
to deal in, any Shares falling to be issued and allotted
upon the exercise of the share options granted, and remain
in force for a period of ten years from the Effective Date.
The Scheme has expired on 28 May 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Since the adoption of the Scheme, no options have been
granted, exercised, lapsed,
thereunder until it expired on 28 May 2022. No new share
option scheme has been adopted after the expiration of
the Scheme.

cancelled or outstanding

The Group had no contingent liabilities at 31 December
2022.

At 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of assets
pledged as security for bank borrowings and bills payables
are:

1. Bills receivables of HK$335,000; and

2. Bank deposits of HK$80,101,000.

The COVID-19 epidemic has spread globally and severely
hit the world economy since 2020. Following the
implementation of effective measures to prevent and control
the epidemic, China has gradually resumed steady economic
growth since the late first quarter of 2020. In 2022, severe
COVID-19 epidemic outbreaks in China significantly affected
the Company’s business and operating profit. Besides, the
threat posed by the Sino-American relations and the Russia-
Ukraine conflict still brought certain impacts in 2022 which
have led to supply chain disruptions lasting longer than
expected, and such global supply has caused further
inflation in many countries. Therefore, it resulted in the
decrease in the net profit for the year ended 31 December
2022. But we, Shougang Century, are confident and
optimistic about our business in light of the followings:

° The moderation of the epidemic and gradual relaxation
of the government across the globe’s quarantine
measures had a positive effect on returning our daily
life to normalcy gradually. Therefore, the expected goal
of China’s development in 2023 is to increase the GDP
by approximately 5% and its economy is expected to
continue to return to its potential growth rate;
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To continue the construction of our production lines
at TESC to facilitate the expansion plan of an additional
100,000 tonnes of steel cord manufacturing capacity
within the 14th Five-Year Plan;

The PRC’s macro-economic environment in
infrastructure investment is expected to improve, this
leads the sales in the automotive and tyre industry to
increase continuously;

By taking into consideration the Chinese government’s
regulations on energy conservation and emission
reduction, the constant increase in output of electric
cars drives demand for their accessorial tyres, which
will in turn expedite the market expansion of steel
cords for domestic radial tyres and bring a more ample
room for development to steel cord industry in the
long term; and

To reduce carbon emissions through reduction of
energy consumption, application of clean energy,
research and development on low-carbon products,
the application of new technologies and new equipment
and so on, the Group can achieve the green, low-
carbon and sustainable corporate development and
fulfil social responsibilities.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Board is committed to practising and achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and also recognises that
effective risk management and internal control systems are
crucial to the long-term development of the Company. In
order to maintain sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems, the Board periodically reviews
the daily corporate governance practices and procedures
of the Company and its subsidiaries and procures the
Company and its subsidiaries to strictly comply with the
relevant laws and regulations, and the rules and guidelines
of regulatory bodies.

Shougang Century is committed to developing a corporate
culture which is based on the principle of integrity,
pragmatism and efficiency. Our culture is embedded in our
daily operations, business model and relations with
stakeholders and is supported by a wide range of
procedures, guidelines and standards of the Group. This
allows employees across the Group with a concerted effort
to create value by providing quality products to customers,
maximise return to the shareholder of the Company whilst
contribute to community
perspectives.

in social and environment
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company has made detailed disclosures in relation to
the accounting period covered in this annual report in
compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance
Report set out in the Code of Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. Also, the Company has applied and complied with
all the principles and code provisions (the “Code
Provision(s)”) of the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2022, except for the deviation from Code
Provision C.2.1 of the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2022 and the deviation from Code Provision
C.3.3 of the Code during the period from 1 January 2022
to 31 July 2022.

On 6 April 2004, the Board has adopted a SCHL Code on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of the
Model Code as the Company’s code of conduct and rules
governing dealing by all Directors and Specified Individuals
in the securities of the Company. In order to keep the
SCHL Code in line with the changes brought upon by the
relevant amendments to laws, rules and regulations, the
Board will revise the SCHL Code from time to time and
the latest version which was revised on 30 December 2022
is an annexed to the Internal Control Manual. All Directors
have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code and SCHL Code for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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On 24 March 2023, the Board consists of eight members,
including four executive Directors (namely Messrs. Su
Fanrong (chairman and managing Director), Yang Junlin
(deputy managing Director), Ye Qian and Li Jinping), one
non-executive Director (namely Mr. Adam Touhig) and three
independent non-executive Directors (namely Messrs. Yip
Kin Man, Raymond, Lam Yiu Kin and Feng Yaoling). The
Directors’ biographical details are set out on pages 7 to
13 under the heading *

The major duties of the Board are set out below:

° Develop business model and business goals of the
Company;

° Formulate the strategies, planning and development
of the Company;

° Set up objectives of management;
° Monitor the performance of management;

° Ensure that a framework of prudent and effective
controls are in place to enable risks to be assessed
and managed;

° Review and approve the Company’s results and
operations to be disclosed on a regular basis to the
public; and

° Approve the Group’s operating strategies, budget and
strategies in collaboration with various jurisdictions
enterprises, as well as other major investments,
application of funds and other substantial exercises
with other enterprises.
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In order to have a clear guideline in relation to the matters
specifically reserved to the Board for decision, functions
between the Board and the management are formalised in
the Internal Control Manual. In short, the Board, which is
accountable to Shareholders for the long-term performance
of the Company, is responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs to safeguard the best interest of the
Company as a whole. The affairs reserved to the Board
including but not limited to the development of business
models and strategies of the Company, the preparation of
financial reporting and the expansion and development of
any new business. The managing Director motivates the
management and general staff to achieve those business
goals and strategies set out by the Board, applying business
principles and ethics enshrined in the Internal Control
Manual.

Each Director owes a fiduciary duty towards the Company.
He should act in good faith and in the best interests for
both the Company and Shareholders as a whole. Also, the
Board has three independent non-executive Directors which
represent more than one-third of the Board so that there
is a strong element of independence in the Board. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has different
professional qualification and experience in various aspects,
including but not limited to (i) legal professional qualification
and experience; or (ii) auditing, accounting and tax
professional, or business consulting experience, which has
fully complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules.
Hence, we believe that we have sufficient calibre and
number of independent non-executive Directors for their
views to carry weight.
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The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his and
immediate family members’ independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Although Mr. Yip Kin Man,
Raymond has been serving the Board for more than nine
years, he has not engaged in any executive management
of the Group, and Mr. Yip’s solicitors firm and his immediate
family members have never provided any service to the
Group. His familiarity and extensive experience with the
Company’s business may place him in a better position to
contribute independent views to the Company, and continue
to demonstrate a firm commitment to his role.

Taking into consideration of Mr. Yip’s independent scope of
works and his high integrity when performing duties as an
independent non-executive Director over the past years,
there is no evidence that length of tenure is having an
adverse impact on his independence. In view of the aforesaid
factors, the Board consider that the long service of Mr. Yip
would not affect his exercise of independent judgement and
were satisfied that he has the required character, integrity
and experience to continue fulfilling the role of an independent
non-executive Director. The Board also consider that Mr. Yip
demonstrate complete independence in character and will
continue to bring valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning and diversity, notwithstanding his length of
service. The Company therefore considers all of independent
non-executive Directors (including Mr. Yip) are independent
throughout the year under review. Furthermore, all Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, should be
re-elected at least once every three years at the annual
general meeting of the Company and the reasons the Board
believes that the individual to be independent are set out
in the relevant circular. In addition to the above, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship among members
of the Board.
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In order to ensure independent views and input are available  AfREZSAESBEYANEIMER  UHE
to the Board and a strong independent element on the (REZEHFBRANBEIILE AR AZHERE
board, the Mechanisms ensuring Independent Views ZeWEBEVE#IICR_E-_—_F+_4
available to the Board has been recommended by the Z—+ \HERZXLZESEZTVESTETSEN-

Nomination Committee and adopted by the Board on 28
December 2022.

The Mechanisms ensuring Independent Views available to R E&E S E/EB T B2 S BER N T

the Board is summarised as follows:

The Board has three independent non-executive
Directors which represent more than one-third of the
Board, so that there is a strong element of independence
in the Board. Also, the Board has established various
board committees, namely remuneration committee,
nomination committee and audit committee. The
majority of the committee members are independent
non-executive Directors, so as to ensure independent
views are available. The remuneration committee and
audit committee are chaired by an independent non-
executive Director.

Each independent non-executive Director must provide
an annual confirmation of his independence to the
Company, which have fully complied with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

In order to strengthen the assessment of independent
non-executive Director’s independence of the Company
and to improve transparency of independent non-
executive Directors’ relationships with the Company,
every independent non-executive Directors must
submit a “Declaration form on assessment of
independence of independent non-executive Director(s)
and his/her immediate family members of the Company”
annually.
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Independent non-executive Directors (including other
directors) are entitled to seek for more information
and documents than is volunteered from management
of the Company on the matters to be discussed at
board meetings, and get accessed to the advice and
assistance of the company secretary of the Company.
Independent non-executive Directors (including other
directors) can also, upon reasonable request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The chairman of the Board shall at least annually hold
meetings with all the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors. This provides
an effective platform for the chairman to listen independent
views on various issues concerning the Group.

No equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options or grants)
with performance-related elements will be granted to INEDs
by the Company as this may lead to bias in their decision-
making and compromise their objectivity and independence.

During the year under review, the roles of chairman and
managing Director in the Company are performed by Mr. Su
Fanrong which constitutes the deviation from the code
provision C.2.1 of the Code which stipulates that the roles
of chairman and managing Director should be separate and
should not be performed by the same person. In consideration
of Mr. Su’s extensive knowledge and experience in various
aspects, in particular the management in the steel industry
and sales area, the Board considers this present arrangement
still enables the Company to make decisions promptly in
the formulation and implementation of the Company’s
strategies in achieving corporate goals. In addition, the Board
comprises individuals with experienced, high-calibre and
adequate independent element in the composition of the
Board, and major decisions are made in consultation with
the Board members, relevant Board committees and
management. The Board is therefore of the view that there
are sufficient checks and balances amongst the Board to
reach decisions in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole. The Board will review the
management structure from time to time and the need to
separate the roles of the chairman of the Board and the
managing Director into two individuals.
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According to the subscription agreement and further
agreement dated 22 September 2006 and 24 February 2015
respectively entered into by the Company and Bekaert,
Bekaert nominated Mr. Adam Touhig (“Mr. Touhig”) as a
non-executive Director of the Company. During the period
from 1 January 2022 to 31 July 2022, Mr. Touhig does not
have any formal letter of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions of his appointment on 15 January
2021, which deviated from the Code Provision C.3.3 of the
Code. Therefore, a service contract has been entered into
between Mr. Touhig and the Company for a term commencing
from 1 August 2022 and ending on 31 December 2024, in
which Mr. Touhig is currently entitled to receive a director’s
fee of HK$150,000 per annum which is determined with
reference to his experience and duties, his role played in
the Board, the Company’s performance and profitability,
the remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions.

The details of Directors’ attendance at the meetings
(including the board meetings, audit committee meetings,
remuneration committee meeting, nomination committee
meeting, annual general meeting and general meeting) held
during the year are set out in the following table:
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Number of Meetings Attended and Held

BEZHRERETHA
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
Name of Director BEEHE EZeey ENZEESE HHZEeeE REZEEEE RRAEAE
Su Fanrong BAR 4/4 N/A FER 2/2 2/2 11
Yang Junlin (Note) BEMm(HEE) 2/2 N/A T N/A T N/A T N/A TiEf
Ye Qian X 4/4 N/A TiEf N/A TiEF N/A TEH 11
Li Jinping Fe¥ 4/4 N/A FER N/A NiEf N/A NEf 1/1
Adam Touhig Adam Touhig 3/4 N/A NER N/A TNER N/A NER 11
Yip Kin Man, Raymond ERR 4/4 4/4 212 2/2 11
Lam Yiu Kin MER 4/4 4/4 2/2 2/2 11
Feng Yaoling it L 4/4 4/4 2/2 212 1

Note: Mr. Yang Junlin was appointed as an executive Director on 1 July
2022 and appointed as a deputy managing Director on 8 July
2022.
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During the year, two risk assessment meetings were held
to deal with risk management issues of the Group. In
addition, the executive Directors and the management of
the Group held a budget meeting to review the business
performance of 2022 and planning of 2023 business after
the balance sheet date.

The Company will provide a comprehensive and formal
induction package to each newly appointed Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her duties,
responsibilities and obligations as a Director under the
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirement and ensure he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and business. In compliance
with the code provision C.1.4 of the Code during the year,
all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Directors have attended programmes or
seminar(s) organised by the Company, other qualified
professional bodies or regulatory authorities.

Furthermore, in order to ensure that the contribution of all
Directors to the Board remains informed and relevant, the
company secretarial department of the Company has, from
time to time provide Directors with relevant reading materials
to keep them informed of the latest updates in the relevant
industry and market and the latest changes on the legal
and regulatory environment. The records of the training
received by the respective Directors are kept and updated
by the company secretarial department of the Company.
Areas of their training activities provided by the Company,
relevant professional bodies and regulatory authorities are
summarised as follows:
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Legal, Anti-corruption
Regulatory training and other
and corporate Group's professional
governance policies/ development
updates businesses programs
i ERR FREN REFEIR
Name of Director o PEEREH B/ &% HtEXBRRE
Su Fanrong BAF / / /
Yang Junlin (Note) BEm () / / v/
Ye Qian Ex / / /
Li Jinping Fe¥ / / /
Adam Touhig Adam Touhig / / /
Yip Kin Man, Raymond ERR / / /
Lam Yiu Kin HIRE / / v
Feng Yaoling it 2 / / /

Note: Mr. Yang Junlin was appointed as an executive Director on 1 July
2022 and appointed as a deputy managing Director on 8 July
2022.

Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of his
appointment and in a timely manner for any change, the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments and the time
involvement in those public companies or organisations. In
particular, Mr. Lam Yiu Kin holds more than seven listed
company directorships. The Board, however, still believes that
he is able to devote sufficient time to act as an independent
non-executive Director on the basis that (i) he has confirmed
he is able to and will devote sufficient time to discharge his
duties and responsibilities as an independent non-executive
Director; (ii) he is not preoccupied with any full-time work and
none of his current commitments as an independent non-
executive director of the other listed companies would require
his full-time involvement and he does not participate in the
day-to-day operations of those listed companies; (i) with his
extensive experience and knowledge, particularly on corporate
governance acquired and developed from his background and
past experience (including his directorships in other listed
companies), he is fully aware of the responsibilities and
expected time involvement for independent non-executive
directors; (iv) he has held directorships for over three years
in eight of the listed companies he worked; and (v) he has
demonstrated that he is able to devote sufficient time to
discharge his duties owed to each of the listed companies
he has held directorship by attending board meetings and
board committee meetings of these listed companies during
their latest financial year, as disclosed in these listed

companies’ latest published annual reports.
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During the year under review, the roles of chairman and
managing Director were combined together and performed
by Mr. Su Fanrong since 31 January 2018, and thus deviated
from the code provision C.2.1 of the Code. Such deviation
is deemed appropriate as in consideration of Mr. Su’s
extensive knowledge and experience in various aspects, in
particular the management in the steel industry and sales
area, the Board considers this present arrangement still
enables the Company to make decisions promptly in the
formulation and implementation of the Company’s strategies
in achieving corporate goals. Further details of such
deviation has been set out in page 34 under the heading
“ ” above.

Non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company are appointed for a
term of three years commencing from 1 January 2023 and
ending on 31 December 2025, except (i) Mr. Lam Yiu Kin,
who was appointed for a term commencing from 1 January
2021 and ending on 31 December 2023; and (ii) Mr. Adam
Touhig, who was appointed for a term commencing from
1 August 2022 and ending on 31 December 2024. All
Directors are all subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at least every three years at annual general meeting
in accordance with the Articles.

The Board has established various board committees,
namely remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee to manage particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs and aid in sharing the responsibilities of
the Board. Moreover,
formulated their specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Code. The board
committee members will also from time to time report their
decisions and recommendations to the Board, if necessary.

all the board committees have
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To comply with the Code in relation to the requirements of
the establishment of internal audit function and appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged Moore Advisory Services Limited
as the internal auditor of the Company since 2015. The
audit committee takes the responsibility to review the risk
management and internal control systems, the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal audit
function and its other duties under the Code.

No corporate governance committee has been established
but respective board committees (as disclosed below) are
responsible for performing corporate governance functions
set out in the terms of reference in code provision A.2.1
of the Code.

The Remuneration Committee has been established on 4
April 2005 and consists of four members with a majority
of independent non-executive Directors. The current
members are:

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)
Mr. Su Fanrong (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin

Mr. Feng Yaoling

and its terms of reference are summarised as follows:

i) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s (if any) remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy;

i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management (if any), including
benefits in kind, pension rights, compensation
payments (including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment), or
to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors, and also to
consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;
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to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management (if any)
for any loss or termination of office or appointment
to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to consider the annual performance bonus for executive
Directors and senior management (if any), having
regard to their achievements against the performance
criteria, and make recommendation to the Board;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

to exercise such other powers, authorities and
discretion, and perform such other duties, of the
Directors in relation to the remuneration as the Board
may from time to time delegate to it, having regard
to the Code of the Listing Rules.

i)

Vi)

vii)

viii)
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During the year under review, two remuneration committee
meetings were held by the Company and three written
resolutions of all members of remuneration committee were
passed and the works performed by the remuneration
committee included but not limited to: (i) the consideration
and review of remuneration of the Directors for the year
2021; (ii) the consideration and recommendation of the
terms of service contract and remuneration of Mr. Yang
Junlin as the executed Director and deputy managing
Director; (iii) the consideration and recommendation of the
terms of service contract for non-executive Director, Mr.
Adam Touhig from 1 August 2022 to 31 December 2024;
(iv) the consideration and recommendation of the renewal
of service contracts for executive Directors, Messrs, Ye
Qian and Li Jinping and independent non-executive
Directors, Messrs, Yip Kin Man, Raymond and Feng Yaoling;
and (v) the review of the terms of reference of remuneration
committee. The emoluments of the Directors are
recommended by the remuneration committee to the Board,
having regard to individual performance, the Group’s
performance and profitability, remuneration benchmark in
the industry and prevailing market condition. The attendance
record of the remuneration committee members at the
meetings held during the year is set out in the “
” on page 39 of this report.

The information in respect of emolument policy of the Group
is set out in the relevant sections of the “

” of this annual report and a separate report,
2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“2022 ESG Report”).

The nomination committee has been established on 4 April
2005 and consists of four members with a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. The current members
are:

Mr. Su Fanrong (Chairman)

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin

Mr. Feng Yaoling

RAFEERE AARSRITMATMHEES
ERLEEBZAMEFMEESKENER
RER FWEZEE 2 THEBEETERR : ()
EZREEBN_Z_—FEEEHH : (\BRK
BREGEMNTEEZERATEETRESZFL
KIB 7 IRIBAE RS ¢ (iii)Z B R EHIEN
f7£%Adam TouhigE AR —_FT - —F )\H—
HEZZ-_WE+=-A=+—HZR%E4 :
(VVEREKEZBZ=NTESZTEFLENZES
A URBIIERTESERRAEENS
BELEZRBAL: vl FHEE S
BEHEE -EZ o WehFMEE SRR E
ARE - AEBZZERBNAMR  TAER
ZHMEERERMBREMAESTTER -
MEBFMEEGHKERAFRERITNGERLZ
HREEBEIHRARESEI9BENZ [
1R

BERAEEZMERR 2 ERBEINENAFR
[ I1R—mByHmE (T
ERR HekBrBEN T -—_FER
BoHekERmE )RBEEAR-

REZEECR _TZTAFHUAMAMKIZIH
R B - MEFPKED BB IFATTE
=OREKRES

BAREE(EE)
HRREE(FTEE)
MRBER e
ISR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
E3

i

BaRmRE

Terms of reference of nomination committee are summarised
as follows:

i)

to review and monitor the structure, size and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, language, age,
religion, social-economic status, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge, thinking styles, know-how and length of
service) of the Board at least annually in accordance
with the
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

Board Diversity Policy and make

to identify and/or nominate and then select or make
recommendation to the Board on the selection of
qualified individuals for appointment as additional
Directors or to fill Board vacancies in accordance with
the Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company
by considering the skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that the individual is expected to bring
to the Board and what are their potential contributions
as and when they arise with due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Such appointment is subject
to the approval of the Board;

to make recommendations (taking into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and diversity need in
the future) to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in accordance with the Policy for Nomination
of a Director of the Company, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive;

to disclose the Policy for Nomination of a Director of
the Company, performed by the nomination committee
during the year. This
procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the nomination committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorships during the year, setting
out the procedures for the appointment and
reappointment of Directors and board succession
planning consideration;

includes the nomination

b

i)

iv)
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to assess and review the independence of independent
non-executive Directors annually;

to review the Board Diversity Policy concerning
diversity at all levels of Board members, including any
measurable objectives and progress on achieving
those objectives, and make disclosure of the policy
or a summary of the policy in the corporate governance
report annually;

for corporate governance issues, the nomination
committee should (i) review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management (if any); and (ii) develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s employees
and Directors;

the nomination committee shall make a statement or
report to the Board after each meeting about its
activities, the diversity of board members and the
process used for appointments, reappointment of
Directors under the Policy for Nomination of a Director
of the Company and board succession planning
consideration and explain if external advice has been
used and disclose and publish in the annual report or
other report as required subject to the Listing Rules
which is amended from time to time; and

to exercise such other powers, authorities and
discretion, and perform such other duties, of the
Directors in relation to the nomination as the Board
may from time to time delegate to it, having regard
to the Code of the Listing Rules.

Vi)

vii)

viii)
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During the year under review, two nomination committee
meetings were held by the Company and two written
resolutions of all members of nomination committee were
passed and the works performed by the nomination
committee included but not limited to: (i) the review of
current structure, size and diversity of the Board; (ii) the
assessment and review of the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; (iii) the review of the Board
Diversity Policy, the progress of achieving measurable
objective for 2022 and determine new measurable objective
for years 2023 and 2024 and the timetable in relation
thereto; (iv) the review of the 2022 training and continuous

professional development of Directors; (v) the
recommendation of new mechanisms for ensuring
independent views available to the Board; (vi) the

recommendation and nomination of Directors to be re-
elected at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company; (vii) the consideration and recommendation of
the appointment of Mr. Yang Junlin as executed Director
and deputy managing Director; and (viii) the review of terms
of reference of nomination committee.

The Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company
has been recommended by nomination committee members
and approved by Directors and adopted on 18 December
2018.

The Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company is
summarised as follows:

° state the objectives of the Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company, including ensuring the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business;

° emphasise the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of Directors rests with the entire Board;
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set out the procedure for the selection, appointment
and reappointment of Directors containing the selection
criteria, including but not limited to considering the
potential contributions a candidate can bring to the
Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

set out other factors, such as the present needs of the
Board for particular expertise skills or experience and
whether the candidates would satisfy those needs, the
requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules
and whether the candidates for independent non-
executive Directors would be considered independence
with reference to the independence criteria or guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules, the suitability to the
Company’s present needs for particular skills or
experience and whether it fits with the Company’s
culture, which are related to the Company shall be
considered to select a proposed candidate;

list the nomination of Directors applicable laws and
procedures;

state the requirement of re-election of retirement of
non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) who have served for more
than 9 years; and

state the board succession planning considerations
and periodical reviews of the plan.

nomination committee will monitor the Policy for

Nomination of a Director of the Company to ensure the
effectiveness and will discuss any revisions that may be

requ

ired, and recommend any such revisions to the Board

for adoption.

The

nomination committee will review the Policy for

Nomination of a Director of the Company and disclose in
this report on the Board’s succession planning considerations
to achieve the objective to ensure that it remains relevant

to th
requ

e Company’s needs and reflects both current regulatory
irements and good corporate governance practice.
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The audit committee has been established on 30 December
1998. At present, it consists of three members and all of
them are independent non-executive Directors. They are:

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin
Mr. Feng Yaoling

Terms of reference of audit committee are summarised as

follows:

i)

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity;

to review and monitor the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards and
to discuss with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations before
the audit commences;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity that is
under common control, ownership or management with
the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party knowing all relevant information
would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally;

to report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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Vi)

vii)

R EAWE

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgements contained in them. In reviewing these
reports (if applicable) before submission to the Board,
the audit committee should focus particularly on:

(@) any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(o) major judgmental areas;
(c) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(dy the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

(e) compliance with accounting standards; and

(/) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

in regard to (vi) above:

(@) members of the audit committee should liaise
with the Board and senior management (if any);

(b) the audit committee must meet, at least twice a
year, with the Company’s external auditor; and

() the audit committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may need
to be, reflected in the report and accounts, it
should give due consideration to any matters that
have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer (if any) (or
person occupying the same position), or external
auditor;

Vi)

vii)
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viii)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

2

BaRmRE

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk
committee, or by the Board itself, to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control
systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have effective systems. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal auditors
(if any) or the professional firm performing internal
audit function and external auditor, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review and assess the annual internal audit plan of
the Company;

to provide comments and recommendations on the
enhancement of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

to meet with the internal auditor (if any) or the
representative of the professional firm performing
internal audit function, if required, to ensure that there
are no unresolved issues or concerns relating to risk
management and internal control function;

viii)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

*AETZ’S"ﬂZﬁﬂmtﬁ AR (BRIEE =

BNEFSETARZEGXNXESES
AEERMEEE) RS ARRNERE R
KB ER R R4t

HERETmEREERABEER
g EREEECETBERELAENZR
B mAREBRARREST MUK
ERBETENER EBEEELERZ
BRH - LANIE B TR MEIIRE A
MEENEERR

IPAEEFSLDIR EREMEHR
REELRANMPEZSFECERZREER
MEEEBYHAEHERZOE

PR BB AZ BRED (20 B ) SR TT N BPE 2
MEEMBE X R B MINEZEED 2 TS
25 RN EBINEEARR ]
NERWERENE YABEE 2
A Rt Ko BEER AR AZ R INRE R B A A

BT (AR A E N BRI

REBRMEZAMBAREENERE
EE&WT:?B%*I%WL ;

R B - BRI (B )BT
HEZENBEERRZRKREME U
R 717 12 5 3 b B 38 R0 1A 50 BE R 1) RE AR
EEInEN: PN 0liol=- 4 ).



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

i

XV)

XVi)

XVii)

R EAWE

to seek assurance from internal auditor or the
professional firm performing internal audit function that
internal control processes for risk management are in
place for the strategy determined by the Board;

to review the content of the confirmation made by the
management in relation to the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
prior to submission to the Board;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

xviii) to review the external auditor’s management letter,

XiX)

XX)

XXi)

XXii)

any material queries raised by the external auditor to
management about accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and the management’s
response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the raised in the external auditor’s
management letter;

issues

to review arrangements employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The audit committee should
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair
and independent investigation of these matters and
for appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company’s relations with the external auditor;

to report on all of the above matters in the code
provisions of the Code to the Board;

xxiii) to consider any other matters specifically referred to

the audit committee by the Board;
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xxiv) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board, and implement the
corporate governance policies laid down by the Board;

xxv) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and

xxvi) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
and other related rules.

During the year under review, four audit committee meetings
were held and the attendance record of the audit committee
members at the meetings held during the year is set out
in the “ ” on page 39 of this report.

The works performed by the audit committee included but
not limited to: (i) discussion on and review of the half year
and annual financial statements of the Group (including but
not limited to financial and accounting policies and
practices); (ii) meeting with the representatives of the
professional firm performing internal audit function (the
internal auditor) to discuss risk management process and
the effectiveness of internal control system of the Group
and make recommendations in relation thereto; (iii) review
of the findings in respect of the internal audit service
together with the recommendations to the Company; (iv)
review of the internal audit plan prepared by the internal
auditor; (v) meeting with external auditor in the absence
of management to discuss any issue arising from the audit
and the other matters the external auditor may raise; (vi)
recommend the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
as external auditor of the Group and review of the audit
fees; (vii) respond to the external auditor their knowledge
of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the
Group; (viii) discuss matters in relation to the compliance
of law, rules and regulations, and accounting policies and
practice of the Group; and (ix) review of the audit service
plan prepared by the external auditor.
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The audit committee members also discuss matters falling
within its terms of reference with the external auditor in
the presence of the financial controller and the company
secretary from time to time as they request. When there
are uncertainties or ambiguities in the interpretation of
accounting standards in preparing the half year and annual
accounts that may likely to materially impact on the financial
position of the Group, the Company will prepare certain
analysis explaining the situation in relation thereto for the
audit committee members consideration and understanding.
The audit committee members have full access to, and the
co-operation of, the Company’s management in ensuring
that it is satisfied with the Company’s internal control
system.

During the financial year of 2022, the audit committee
members had made valuable and positive contribution, and
delivered independent and informed comments for the
formulation and implementation of the Company’s
operational strategies and policies. Apart from meeting with
the internal auditor, the audit committee members had also
reviewed certain areas of the risk management and internal
control systems in accordance with the code of corporate
governance and reviewed the risk assessment reports,
required the management of the Group to confirm the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems and advised them to pay attention to those areas
associated with high risks and take relevant measures to
further improve the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The concerns raised and discussed
in respect of risk assessment and internal control systems
had also been put forward to the Board to consider whether
the measures to mitigate those risks are effective and
adequate during the year under review.

ERZEENENETHERAMBAER
REAMEESHIERT - EINEZ BN E B
REBEANEEFELN R NEEEHEFFEL
FERERYSHENBELR TN HEE X
SHOBER MBI EBRENTEAKE
BRI NRARKERBE T ONEEE
B UHERZEEREEELERERE
H-BZEZEEREARNEBARRZER
EREFSEEBNASIEARRLIIMERAF]
ZNEP TR R AT

R-IB-__FRRFE ERZEENEEH
ARAHER BT ZEERELBRMBLETE
ENEHRNERMEL T B RERENE
R-BREASZBMEmI BEREZEEKE
TMRBEEE AT R T AR A AREE R
NEEEZ R G AR RS  BXAEEE
12 B E B IR K R EE AR R AR A AUE I
REZANRERERSEHISAREEN
REVEBER £ PUEAEEZ AREE
EABEZERR - RAFELE REHERAR
AT G AN AR ER EL 1R R AT 0 E B A A AR B0 B IR
ERXTERS UWEEELERAREZLS
[\ A M B 5 ©



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The Board is responsible for maintaining, reviewing and
monitoring risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and to ensure their effectiveness. We
believe effective risk management and internal control
systems are essential for the success of the operation of
business and good corporate governance. The Internal
Control Manual, which sets out the guidelines for the
operation of the internal control system and risk management
system, had been adopted by the Company since 1999.
These systems cover all main aspects, including financial,
operational, compliance control and risk management. In
order to align with the amendments made to relevant laws,
rules and regulations, and further improve the risk
management and internal control systems, the Board is
responsible to review and improve the systems from time
to time, if necessary.

In fact, the Board has set out five objectives for the
management to achieve, details are as below:

1. Maximise profitability by increasing the profit margin
of the business segment and at the same time minimise
the production costs

2. Maintain a strong cash flow position of the Group
3. Enhance product quality

4. Attract new customers and develop markets for each
of the business segments

5.  Full compliance with laws, rules and regulations and
financial reporting requirements

Hence, a risk assessment on the existing or potential risks
that may affect the achievement of the above objectives
would be conducted from time to time, at least twice a
year by the management during the course of business
operation and management.
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The framework of the risk management and internal control NEBEMRGEIE N NI PEIE XG ZHELE

systems of the Group:

Establish risk

context Identify risks
BEVEBRAS Byl

Assess risks Monitor risks
ity el B e e

Evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s objectives
AERETERKASERERREEANRAREE REE
Maintain an appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Company
HIFARTAE AR ERE R & AE T RS

Delegate the responsibility to the management to design,
implement and assess the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group

ZIRERERGT - BEiefaT A ARE A ERE RN AMEIERL
Delegate the responsibility to the audit committee to review
and oversee the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group
ZREZZESFUSENEEAEEEREIRMAIEIERGH
BRMzER

Perform the duties delegated by the Board, that is, review
and oversee the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group

BITEFERTHRE  SESNEEAREERBREEMAEEZE
R A B

Discuss with the internal auditor the major findings in respect
of internal audit services and review the annual internal audit
plan

NEBZBE I m AR EZRBHASER - WEHFAZATEZ
FTEl

Review the confirmation from the management of the Group
and the comments and recommendations from the internal
auditor in relation to the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems prior to submission
to the Board
FHAEREREEEREET AR C R L NEZEEI 2 &
RAER  NERASENRREEMAIEZERZFNE R
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° Perform internal audit services for the Group
RANEBEHEITNEEZ RS
° Deliver internal audit reports to the audit committee and the
Board

MEZZESNESFSRIANEZRS

o Meet with the audit committee members to discuss the major
findings and make recommendations to improve the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
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o Assess the risk level based on potential impact and likelihood
of risks in different aspects at least semi-annually

ROBYFREBBET
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° Identify the material risks and discuss measures to mitigate

risks

EERE=DNEN R E S iV =k - piit

° Give a confirmation annually on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of its business unit/
department and submit it to the audit committee
BERRSEEBEL B ERREBMAIEZEZRNE
M WIRRERNTEZEZES

Two risk assessment meetings were held during the year,
at approximately half year intervals. The heads of the core
business units/departments of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries assessed the risk level based on potential
impact and likelihood of risks in different aspects including
business risks, financial risks, compliance risks, operational
and other risks and environmental, social and governance
risks that may be exposed to. They fill out the risk
assessment form which was devised with reference to the
guidance entitled “Internal Control and Risk Management
— A Basic Framework” issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants before the meetings were held.
The management of the core business units/departments
of the Company and/or its subsidiaries participated in the
risk assessment meetings. The meetings aimed to identify
the material risks and to discuss the measures to manage
risks. Besides, the status and effectiveness on implementation
of internal control measures taken after the last risk
assessment meeting would be followed up in the risk
assessment meetings.
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Subject to the Code and terms of reference of the audit
committee of the Company, the management of each core
business unit/department of the Group will provide the
internal auditor with their written confirmation annually in
relation to the effectiveness and adequacy of their risk
management and internal control systems for further review,
comment and recommendation and thereafter the audit
committee will review the same prior to submission to the
Board. The internal auditor will base on the nature and
extent of the risks of each individual core business unit/
department to perform further review and recommendation.

In addition to the above assessment process, the
management reports and discusses at monthly meetings
the existing and potential risks that the Group has to face
and monitor, as well as business operation and cash flow
positions of the Group.

The Company has engaged Moore Advisory Services
Limited, as the internal auditor of the Company. During the
year, the internal auditor had (i) met with the audit committee
to discuss and provide recommendations on improving the
risk assessment process of the Group; (ii) discussed the
major findings in respect of internal audit services with the
audit committee and provided recommendations for
improvement on internal control; and (iii) delivered the audit
committee the internal audit reports regarding the main risk
areas of the business segments of the Group and internal
audit plan in relation thereto, etc. Apart from taking part
in advising the maintenance of an effective and adequate
risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, they also reviewed and monitored the internal
operation of the Group through the testing and controls
performed after arranging site visits of the two steel cord
plants.

RETAMARBEZZEGNBELES
AEBEGEROEBEN BPAZERESTF
MEEBEL HMPINAERERMAIEZER
BRBRIER RN MRS ZEENIRHER
FERNEE — P& FmlZE MERE
BREREEREEZREST A EMNLER L A
EBAZBRAD AR B B 0 TS BB ERPT 0 LB
HEMERETE - TEEMES -

T ERFERFN BEEBEEEAEHLE
BRAWASEFEEY RET 2 BBEMEER
B ARARENEGEENMRSRENN -

ARREBEAEBRERZABER AR R/AAT]
AR IR BLRM - O ARFE - A BB A BB (1) B | X
ZEgEENTWARENRREERFIE
hEBmURERRFERER  ((EEZEZES
7 B BN BR A IR TS S he (Y A BR B R AR
HEZE R(NAEZZESRIEHEAN
SEEB D MO T ERE R BTN ILET RS
KA BETTEISE BB R AN QR MR —
BEEMNEI N ERE RN NEREIE RGN
1 PR R ] S R AR R S B MR SRR TR
Ko Ea4% - DA RS RPN SR E 2 N EDESE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

oS

BaRmRE

All relevant confirmations from the management provided
to the Board on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Company’s risk management and internal controls systems
for the year ended 31 December 2022 had been received.
The audit committee members had reviewed those contents
of the confirmations and submitted the same to the Board.
The Board had reviewed and confirmed the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at the Board meeting.

A whistleblowing policy and system have been implemented
and set up since 22 March 2012 and updated on 6
December 2021 for employees and those who deal with
the Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise
concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the audit
committee about possible improprieties in any matter
related to the Company.

The Company has established policies and system that
promote and support anti-corruption laws and regulations.
Detailed discussion on anti-corruption is set out in the 2022
ESG Report.

In view of the foregoing, the Board had duly ensured the
review of the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
was conducted at least annually and the Board therefore
considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group were effective and adequate
throughout the year of 2022. However, there is room for
improvement in certain areas, for instance, the measures
of managing operational and other risks, such as product
quality control and new product development.
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The Company complied with the Listing Rules, SFO and
other regulatory requirements regarding the handling and
dissemination of inside information. Directors and senior
management of the Company oblige to take all reasonable
measures to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure
requirement. Directors and senior management of the
Company follow the guidelines stipulated in Continuous
Disclosure Obligation Policy of the Company, which has
been adopted by the Board since 2011. Some principles
of dissemination of inside information of the Company were
stated in the said policy, details are as follows:

The heads of business units/individual departments identify
and assess whether a potential event or transaction may
constitute inside information. If that is the case the potential
event or transaction should be reported to the senior
management of the Company, through the Company
Secretarial Department. The senior management will
consider with the chairman/managing Director whether the
information constitute inside information and report to the
Board. The Board will consider whether the information
may constitute inside information and whether disclosure
and/or trading halt would be required. If this constitutes
inside information, the Company Secretarial Department of
the Company would have to arrange for trading halt, prepare
and publish an announcement after approval by the Board.
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Below flow chart illustrates the internal control and reporting UTREBRARISEBASEE ZNZPELE & H
system of the Company relating to inside information: MELGTIZE -

*

Heads of business units/individual departments to identify and assess whether potential or
developing events may constitute inside information®

EBBEN  ERBPIEEFTHRIMTEEMEERERTNEHREBERANBHER"

If yes, report to senior management of the
Company (the usual channel is through company
secretary of the Company)

W BAARTSREERE(—RESBBARAFATH
WERB)ER

Responsible senior management to consider with the chairman/managing Director whether the
information may constitute inside information

HEEYEREEBHRESR ESHREBEEZRZENRRREBRARIES

If yes, report to the Board with supporting
documents through the channel of Company
Secretarial Department of the Company. The
Company Secretarial Department considers
potential disclosure implications (with assistance
of legal counsel if appropriate) and arranges for
collating and circulating relevant information to
the Board for further consideration

W R FXHRARNRF R RRES
MEEFER AARERSZREENRETZE (N
B BERVERER 2B R ENEETRE
MTEESFE—FLZRE

The Board to consider whether the information may constitute inside information and whether
disclosure and/or request of trading halt would be required

MEEREZEZEHTERBRARESNEERERER AT ERFEEFE

If yes, the Company Secretarial Department
of the Company arranges for trading halt and/or
preparing announcement

R ARFRRARMERELIFRFEEIEE R L

YN

Trading halt is made and announcement is published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after approval by the Board
RESESENHER REBERENMERAR LB AEMTIEAS

The head of business units/individual departments can consult * EREMNTE ARG EENE AR EEK

the functional departments of the Company, if he/she has any NEH B ER A A 5ER - #h, b 7] B2 A BE B
query about what constitute inside information RPN EEEE— SN
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Directors or employees of the Group in possession of the
inside information must maintain strict confidentiality of
unpublished inside information until it is announced and
ensure this is the strictest security of the information is
observed within the Company and its advisers and if the
necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained,
an announcement shall be made as soon as reasonably
practicable; or if inside information has been advertently
divulged, an announcement shall be issued immediately so
as to disseminate such information to the market as a
whole.

The Board monitors the inside information disclosure having
regard to the SFO and Listing Rules requirements and the
Company ensure that the dissemination of inside information
to the Shareholders and other stakeholders is dealt fairly
in order to avoid any person having a privileged dealing
position.

In order to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
practice and be in line with Code Provision F.1.1 of the
Code requiring all listed issuer to disclose its dividend
policy in their annual reports, the dividend policy of the
Company has been adopted by the Board on 18 December
2018, which includes setting standard rules and guidelines
to be followed by the Board in deciding whether to
recommend dividend out of the profits and the amount of
dividend per Share to be distributed. The objective of the
dividend policy is to reward its Shareholders by sharing a
portion of the profits, while also ensure that enough funds
are retained for future prospects of the Company and strive
for a balance between the growth of the Company and the
benefits of the Shareholders.

When considering the decision on dividend declaration, we
will take into account both internal factors and external
factors.
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For internal factors, we will consider the: (i) profitability of
the Company; (ii) liquidity position and the availability of
free cash flow; (iii) capital requirements for growth plans
of the Company which may require funds preservation and
internal funds generation, both internal and external; (iv)
investment opportunities available with the Company; (v)
borrowing capacity of the Company so as to capture any
growth opportunities, inorganic or otherwise; (vi) ability to
receive dividend from the Company’s subsidiaries and
associated companies; and (vii) Shareholder’s expectation
of a profitable return on their investment to maintain their
investment in the Company.

For external factors, we will consider the: (i) statutory and
regulatory requirements and restrictions on the dividend
distributions; (ii) contractual restrictions/restrictions in debt
covenants which affect the Company’s ability to pay
dividends; (iii) prevailing economic climate in the global
including the PRC that will affect the availability of profits
for dividend; (iv) emerging trends in the financial market
and business cycle of steel cord business that will affect
the growth and performance of the steel cord industry; and
(v) taxation consideration.

The Board may declare interim dividends at its absolute
discretion in line with the dividend policy, or if the Board
are justified by the profits of the Company available for
distribution. If the share capital is divided into different
classes (if applicable), the Directors may pay interim
dividends on shares which confer deferred or non-preferred
rights with regard to dividend as well as on shares which
confer preferential rights with regard to dividend, but no
interim dividend shall be paid on shares carrying deferred
or non-preferred rights if, at the time of payment, any
preferential dividend is in arrears.

The Directors may also pay at intervals settled by them
any dividend payable at a fixed rate if it appears to them
that the profits available for distribution justify the payment.
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Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting, the Board may recommend quantum of
final dividend payable to the Shareholders at its annual
general meeting in line with the dividend policy, based on
the aforesaid factors arrived at as per the audited financial
statements.

The dividend shall be paid in the form of: (i) cash; or (ii)
a scrip dividend; or (iii) a combination of partly in (i) and
partly in (ii) above. The Company may offer the Shareholders
the option of receiving scrip shares in lieu of cash, which
may enable the Shareholders to increase their investment
in the Company without incurring brokerage fees.

The Company shall endeavor to maintain a reasonable
dividend payout ratio, whether as interim and/or final
dividends, subject to (i) capital needs of the Company; (ii)
positive operating cash flows; and (iii) other financial factors
enumerated in the dividend policy. The Company may
recommend a special dividend in special circumstances.

The dividend policy would be subject to revision and
amendment under the Articles and the Hong Kong law,
including the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules,
from time to time, on the subject matter. The Company
reserves its right to alter, modify, add, delete or amend
any of the provisions of the said policy.

In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc.
issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent with
the provisions laid down under the said policy, then such
amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc. shall prevail upon
the provisions hereunder and the said policy shall stand
amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down
under such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc.

The dividend policy does not constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future
dividend and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare
a dividend at any time or from time to time, but only
represents a general guidance and information purpose
regarding the dividend policy. The Board reserves the right
to depart from and amend the said policy as and when
circumstances so warrant.
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To the extent permitted by applicable laws and the Articles,
subject to the dividend policy adopted by the Company
and in the absence of unforeseen circumstances, the
Company plans to distribute dividends of an amount not
less than 30% of the Group’s annual consolidated net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for each of the
three financial years from 2021 to 2023 to the Shareholders.
The Board may propose a distribution plan with a higher
level of dividends based on the financial performance
growth from time to time. Details were also disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 21 February 2022.

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the
external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as
follows:
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Services rendered Ptz it AR 7% HK$’000

BT T

Audit services EET IR 1,537
Non-audit services: JEE AT RS -

Interim review R HA 28 B 378

Others Efh 20

1,935

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting and financial reporting standards to enable the
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error. The Directors will subject to statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards, select suitable
accounting policies and apply them consistently, make
prudent, fair and reasonable judgements and estimates and
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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The company secretary of the Company is a full time
employee of the Group. She reports to the chairman and/
or managing Director. During the year, the company
secretary of the Company has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

The Board Diversity Policy has been adopted since 2013.
Other than the elements of board diversity, in considering
the nomination of new directors, the nomination committee
members will subject to the Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company take into account the qualification,
ability, working experience and professional ethics of the
candidates, especially their experience in the business/
industry of the Group and/or other professional areas. The
nomination committee then put forward the recommendation
in respect of the above factors, where appropriate, to the
Board for consideration and adoption according to the
Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company. The
attendance record of the nomination committee members
at the meetings during the year is set out in the “
” on page 39 of this report.

The Board Diversity Policy has been reviewed and
recommended by nomination committee members, and

approved by Directors.
The Board Diversity Policy is summarised as follows:

° articulate the benefits of diversity, including gender
diversity, and the importance of being able to attract,
retain and motivate Directors from the widest possible
pool of available talent, and also aware of development
of a boarder and more diverse pool of skilled and
experienced employee and that, in their skills, will
prepare for senior management and board position to
enhance the quality of its performance;
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° express the Company’s commitment to diversity at all
levels, including but not limited to gender, language,
age, religion, social-economic status, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge, thinking styles, know-how and length of
service, in particular focus on gender diversity,
independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and skills and experience; and

o prepare a board skills matrix helping the Board to
assess the current mix of competencies and diversity
on the Board and identify any gaps that may exist.

The nomination committee will discuss and agree annually
all measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board and recommend to the Board for adoption. At any
given time the Board may seek to improve one or more
aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.

The Board sets the following measurable objectives and
the progress for achieving the objectives to be reviewed
regularly:

Progress of Measurable Objective in 2022
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Articulate to the board members and/or the management
the benefits of diversity policies and the progress in
gender diversity on Hong Kong Boards (through but
not limited to: (i) reading presentation materials or
(ii) trainings)
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28 November 2022
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Measurable Objective in 2023 & 2024
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Timeline of the goal
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Appointment of at least one female Board member
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On or before 31 December 2024
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The Company recognises that board diversity is an essential
element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
objectives and its sustainable development.

Our Board has a balance of tenure, diversity and age, with
an effective mix of experience and fresh perspective. As
at the date of this annual report, all Board members are
male. According to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the
Stock Exchange will not consider diversity to be achieved
for a single gender board. In the future, the Board will take
steps to increase the proportion of female members when
selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for Board appointments. The Nomination
Committee will look for potential candidates through the
inner-enterprise or the talent market in order to develop a
pipeline of potential successors to the Board to achieve
gender diversity, and will seek assistance from professional
search firms if necessary.

At workforce level, the Group aims to create an inclusive
and safe working environment where everyone is treated
equally and free from discrimination and gender bias. All
employees are entitled to have equal opportunity in
recruitment, career development, promotion, benefits and
training.

As at 31 December 2022, the ratio of men to women in the
workforce (including senior management) of the Group was
85:15, of which the ratio of men to women in the office
being 54:46 and the ratio of men to women in the steel
cord plants being 86:14. Due to the nature of work in the
manufacturing industry, it is relatively difficult to achieve
gender diversity across the workforce in steel cord business
of the Group. Nevertheless, the Group will actively promote
corporate principles and values which include equal
opportunity for men and women, and to reduce the reliance
on male workers through implementing different measures,
such as provision of additional machinery and equipment
as well as optimisation of the work process and thereby
enhance gender diversity. Details on the gender ratio of the
Group together with relevant data can be found in the 2022
ESG Report.
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The Board recognises the
communication with Shareholders. In order to maintain an
ongoing dialogue with Shareholders, the Company has
opportunities to directly communicate with Shareholders at
various annual general meetings and other general meetings
where Shareholders are encouraged to actively attend. In

importance of effective

addition, the chairman of the Board and the chairman of
each of remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee were present to answer any Shareholder’s
questions at the 2022 annual general meeting (the “2022
AGM”). The external auditor had also attended the 2022
AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor’s independence.

Under Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the
directors are required to call a GM if the Company has
received requests to do so from members/Shareholders of
the Company representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the members/Shareholders having a right to
vote at GM.

The request:—

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the GM;

(b) may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;

(c) may be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial
Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for
the attention of Company Secretary in hard copy form
or in electronic form by email to ir@shougangcentury.
com.hk;

(d) may consist of several documents in like form;
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must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

must be verified with the share registrar of the
Company, and upon the share registrar’s confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the company
secretary of the Company will notify the Board to
convene a GM by serving proper notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered
members/Shareholders of the Company. On the
contrary, if the request has been verified as not in
order, the requesting members/Shareholders will be
informed of this outcome and accordingly, a GM will
not be convened as requested.

Members/Shareholders and other stakeholders are invited
to access the Company’s website at http://www.
shougangcentury.com.hk for up-to-date information of the
Company. They are advised to send enquires and concerns
to the Board:-

(a)

(b)

by post at the registered office of the Company
situated at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre,
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary; or

by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk for the
attention of our Investor Relations section.

The Company will make response to members/Shareholders’
questions through their required communication channels
or deliver the relevant material directly to their email as
soon as the information becomes available online and make
necessary arrangement for direction of enquires to the
Board, if required.
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The company secretary forwards communications relating
to matters within the Board’s purview to the independent
non-executive Directors, communications relating to matters
within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the
chair of the appropriate committee, and communications
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions,
enquires and complaints, to the appropriate Company’s
executive.

Members/Shareholders and other stakeholders can read
the Shareholders’ Communication Policy in details at the
Company’s website for effectiveness communication. The
Shareholders’ Communication Policy was updated on 6
December 2021 to maintain candid and constructive
communications with Shareholders and potential investors.
A summary of which is set out in the “

” on page 75 of this
Report.

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, if a
company is required to hold an AGM under Section 610,
the members/Shareholders of the company may request to
give, to members/Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the AGM, notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting.

The Company must give notice of a resolution if it has
received requests that it do so from:-

(a) the members/Shareholders of the Company representing
at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members/Shareholders who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate;
or

(b) at least 50 members/Shareholders who have a right
to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the
requests relate.
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The request:—

(@) must be sent to the registered office of the Company
at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre, 6 Sun
Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the attention of
the company secretary in hard copy form or in
electronic form to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk;

(b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given;

(c) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

(d) must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6
weeks before the AGM to which the requests relate;
or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting.

The written request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrar who will check if the written request is proper
and in order, the company secretary will notify the Board
for including the resolution in the agenda for AGM.

Pursuant to Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under Section 615 to give notice
of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s
own expense to each member/Shareholder of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the AGM in the same manner
as the notice of the meeting; and at the same time as, or
as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of
the meeting.

If the request has been verified as not in order for the said
purposes, the members/Shareholders concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed
resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM.
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Pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance, a
member/Shareholder of the Company may request the
Company to circulate, to members/Shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice of a general meeting,
a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt
with at that meeting or other business to be dealt with at
that meeting. The Company is required to circulate the
statement if it has received requests to do so from the
members/Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all the members/Shareholders who
have a relevant right to vote or at least 50 members/
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote.

The aforesaid members/Shareholders’ requests (i) may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form at the registered
office of the Company, at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour
Industrial Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong
or in electronic form by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.
hk; (i) must identify the statement to be circulated; (iii)
must be authenticated by the person or persons making
it; and (iv) must be received by the Company at least 7
days before the meeting to which it relates.

Pursuant to Section 581 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under Section 580 to circulate a
statement must send a copy of it to each member/
Shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the meeting in the same manner as the notice of the
meeting and at the same time as or as soon as reasonably
practicable after it gives notice of the meeting. The expenses
of the Company in complying with the Section 581 need
not be paid by the members/Shareholders who requested
the circulation of the statement if the meeting to which the
requests relate is an AGM of the Company; and the requests
sufficient to require the Company to circulate the statement
are received in time to enable the Company to send a copy
of the statement at the same time as it gives notice of the
meeting.
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The Company puts a high regard for the aspect of investor
relations and recognises that establishment of investor
relations can enhance its transparency, maximise its value
and increase investors’ understanding of and trust in the
Company. Therefore, the management, as requested may
meet with Shareholders, potential and institutional investors
and research analysts. The management will also provide
them with the information of the latest business development
of the Group and answer their queries subject to the
Continuous Disclosure Obligation Policy. The Continuous
Disclosure Obligation Policy is to help and provide guidance
to the Directors and employees of the Group to fulfill their
obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO while
allowing them to actively inform the market of the Company
development as well as how to make judgement as to what
inside information is and when disclosure is required. The
corresponding presentation materials subject to the
Continuous Disclosure Obligation Policy are made available
upon request, if appropriate. The procedures for handling
and dissemination of inside information have been illustrated
under the heading
” above.

The Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy. Taking into
account the multiple channels of communication and
engagement in place (details of which are listed below),
the Board considered that the Shareholders Communication
Policy has been properly implemented by the Company
during the year and remain effective.

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy is summarised as
follows:

° set out the channels for Shareholders to communicate
their views on various matters affecting the Company
issuer, in which Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend and vote, subject to the Articles, at general
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the general meetings;
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o state the Company’s information shall be communicated
to Shareholders through: (1) the Company’s financial
reports (quarterly (if any), interim and annual reports);
(2) notices of general meetings; (3) annual general
meetings and other general meetings that may be
convened; (4) all the disclosures required to be
submitted to the Company and The Stock Exchange;
(5) other corporate communications on the Company’s
website; and (6) the Company’s website at http://www.
shougangcentury.com.hk; and

° articulate the steps taken to solicit and understand
the views of Shareholders and stakeholders, including
(1) Board members in particular, either the chairman
or vice chairman of Board committees or their
delegates and appropriate management executives
should use their best endeavors to attend annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) to answer Shareholders’
questions; (2) the external auditors are requested to
attend the AGM and be available to answer
Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit
and the preparation and content of the auditor’s report;
and (3) Investor/analysts briefings and one-on-one
meetings, media interviews, roadshows (both domestic
and international), marketing activities for investors will
be available as requested in order to facilitate
communication between the Company, Shareholders
and the investment community.

In order to further promote a sound communication between
the public, the Company fully utilises its website (http://
www.shougangcentury.com.hk) as a means to provide the
latest and updated information in a timely manner, and
from time to time enhances the homepage of the website
to reflect its current business development. Also, the
company secretarial department of the Company will
respond to the telephone enquiries and email or
correspondences from Shareholders or investors in respect
of various issues subject to the Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy. Any opinions, views and suggestions of
Shareholders will be solicited and brought to the attention
of the Board and management, if necessary.

During the year, the 2022 AGM was held on 27 June 2022
to approve ordinary and special businesses of annual
general meeting. The resolutions of 2022 AGM were duly
passed by way of poll.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents. The Articles has been posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors herein present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Further details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2022
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 120 to 257.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HKO0.73 cent per fully paid ordinary share (2021: HK1.5
cents), with total amount of approximately HK$14,391,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$29,571,000),
payable to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of
business on Monday, 17 July 2023. The final dividend is
subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Subject to Shareholders’ approval of the proposed final
dividend at the Company’s annual general meeting to be
held on Monday, 26 June 2023, the final dividend is
expected to be paid on or about Monday, 31 July 2023.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
time) on Monday, 17 July 2023 for registration.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 19 June 2023 to Monday, 26 June 2023,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be registered. In order to be entitled to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting which
is scheduled to be held on Monday, 26 June 2023, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 17/F., Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday, 16 June
2023.

Our mission is to be one of the top tier steel cord and
wire products manufacturers in the PRC capable of
consistently purveying premium quality steel cords and
sawing wire products; and the evolution into a diversified
metal product manufacturer benefiting from a successful
“Eastern” brand recognition in the PRC and worldwide
markets. Our ultimate goal is to maintain long term
profitability, strive for the greatest return for Shareholders,
deliver sustainable growth in our stakeholders’ value under
a prudent and manageable capital structure and contribute
to the economic and social development of the communities
in which we operate.

The Board is responsible for the development of business
models and setting of strategies, planning and development
of the Group. The strategies adopted by the Board will be
executed by the managing Director who will motivate the
staff to achieve the designated business goals and financial
targets under risk tolerance levels prescribed by the Board.
The progress of implementation of the strategies and
business goals will be reviewed and adjusted to respond
to the constantly changing market environment. Corrective
and follow-up actions are made regularly at the Board and/
or other management meetings throughout the years.
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The Group recorded net profit of HK$47,858,000 for the
year in compared with net profit of HK$80,879,000 from
previous year. Further details in respect of the fair review
of the Group’s businesses, please refer to the sections
“ ” and
of this annual report.

The Group’s businesses, results of operations and financial
position may be affected by risks and uncertainties relating
to the Group’s businesses. These risks and uncertainties
could result in the Group’s businesses, results of operations
and financial position to defer materially from expected or
historical results. The risks and uncertainties set out below
are known to the Group during the year under review:

1. As the majority of sales of steel cords of the Group
are domestic, the business and prospect of steel cord
segment is therefore highly dependent on the economic
performance of the PRC, in particular, the performance
of automotive and transportation industries and those
that involve high volume of road transportation for
commercial and industrial purposes, such as property
development and import/export. Therefore, any
downturn in the economy of the PRC may cause lower
demand for steel cords and hence may have material
adverse impact to the operations of steel cord
segment. Despite the majority of the Group’s customers
are radial tyre manufacturers located in the PRC,
however their customers, the vehicle manufacturers
that are located in the United States are affected by
the Sino-US trade debacle that has weighed in
sentiment.
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The selling price of steel cords is highly dependent
on the supply and demand situation in the PRC as
well as the price of its major material — steel wire rod;
therefore, any change in these two factors will have
material impact to the steel cord segment.

The revenue from sales to top five customers of the
Group accounted for 57.1% of total revenue of the
Group for the year under review. Any change to the
business operations, financial conditions or purchasing
patterns of these customers may have adverse impact
to the revenue of the Group.

The measures to manage the impact on these potential
risks and uncertainties are described in the heading

” of the section of the “
” of this annual report.

The following factors may have negative impact on
the revenue and net results of the Group:

a. Change in the mix of revenue contributions, such
as the income of steel cord segment from sales
of steel cord for truck tyres, off the road truck
tyres and passenger car tyres;

b. Unfavorable economic development in the PRC
and worldwide markets that may have negative
impact on our steel cord segment;
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(continued)

c. Increased market and price competition for steel
cord segment; and

d. Failure to reduce production and operating costs,
in particular, certain unit fixed production costs
of steel cord segment can be lowered by increase
in sales and production volume.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the majority
of the revenue of the Group was denominated in RMB,
while there were some borrowings of the Group
dominated in other currencies. Hence, any movement
of the exchange rate of RMB will affect to the results
of operations of the Group. Furthermore, the results
and financial position of the Group are denominated
in RMB but presented in HK$ for reporting purposes,
therefore, the movement of the exchange rate of RMB
will have impact to the financial position of the Group
when translating the Group’s results and financial
position into HKD.

The Group is required to conduct an impairment
assessment on its property, plant and equipment on
a regular basis in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards. Any future impairment
loss to be recognised or reversed depends on various
factors including the general economic and financial
conditions, market competitions, prevailing product
selling price and market interest rates. Such impairment
loss to be recognised or reversed will have material
impact to the results of the Group, however, it is a
non-cash item and therefore will not affect the future
business operations and financial conditions of the
Group.
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The Group utilised a certain extent of bank borrowings
to finance its operations. As at 31 December 2022,
all bank borrowings are due within one year, therefore
the Group will be exposed to the liquidity risks of
inability of repaying these borrowings when due. The
Group is expected to service the debt repayments due
in 2023 by utilising cash generated from its operations,
refinancing from banks and other sources, with an
objective to gradually reduce the amount of interest
bearing borrowings of the Group. However, the Group’s
ability to generate sufficient cash to service its
outstanding debts and obligations will depend on the
operating performance of its various business segments
in the future, which will be affected by factors such
as the prevailing economic and liquidity conditions,
the demand of its products and prevailing selling
prices. Whether the Group can refinance its borrowings
also depends on a number of factors, including the
operating performance and financial conditions of the
Group, the prevailing economic conditions, the
prevailing credit policy of respective lender and the
liquidity of the financial markets. If the Group is unable
to service any of its borrowings due in 2023, this may
result in a default and will have significant adverse
impact on the financial position of the Group as the
Group will be requested to repay full or part of its
outstanding borrowings on an accelerated basis. The
management of the Company is seeking for various
banks refinancing to mitigate these potential risks.
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The financial key performance indicators of the Group for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are

AEERBE T _FN_T_—F+=A
=T HLEFENMBERRRIERES W

summarised as follows: T :
2022 2021 Change
—E-CfF —EC-—F 25
1. Current ratio (times) BN (£F) 1.18 1.09 N/A &M
2. Liquidity ratio (times) TEESLE(E) 0.92 0.88 N/A TEHA
3. Gearing ratio (%) BELE(EAL) 21.8 241 -23pp B Y
4.  Average turnover period on F’ELIQEE X9 EEE(R)
trade receivables (days) 80 89 -9
5.  Average turnover period on FEHIEBE(XR)
inventories (days) 57 57 -
6.  Average turnover period on FERTBR AT BEH(X)
trade payables (days) 91 87 4

Current ratio (calculated as current assets divided by
current liabilities) of the Group was 1.18 times at 31
December 2022, higher than 1.09 times at 31 December
2021.

Liquid ratio (calculated as current assets less inventories
divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 0.92 time
at 31 December 2022, higher than 0.88 time at 31 December
2021.

Gearing ratio (calculated as total interest bearing borrowings
less bank balances and cash (included pledged bank
deposits) divided by total equity) of the Group decreased
from 24.1% at 31 December 2021 to 21.8% at 31 December
2022.

Average turnover period on trade receivables (calculated as
average trade receivables for the year (exclusive of value-
added tax in respect of sales in the PRC) divided by gross
revenue times 365 days) was 80 days for the year, shorter
by 9 days as compared to 89 days for the previous year.
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Average turnover period on inventories (calculated as
average amount of inventories for the year divided by cost
of sales times 365 days) was 57 days for the year, same
as that for the previous year.

Average turnover period on trade payables (calculated as
average trade payables for the year divided by cost of
sales (exclusive of value-added tax in respect of cost of
sales in the PRC) times 365 days) was 91 days for the
year, which was 4 days longer as compared to 87 days
for the previous year.

Further details regarding the above and other financial
information, please refer to the section “

” of this annual report. Key
performance indicators mean factors by reference to which
the development, performance or position of the business
of the Group can be measured effectively which we can
use to monitor progress against our strategies while figures
reporting under accounting standards could not serve such
purpose.

In the view that uncertainty is one of the main challenges
facing by the Chinese economy, the performance of the
steel cord industry might be affected unless a strong cash
flow is maintained as well as cost saving and risk mitigation
measures are implemented in order. Details of future
development of the Company’s business, please refer to
the sections and
“ ” of this
annual report.
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The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
the environment and community in which it engages by
controlling and minimising the generation of wastes, waste
gases emissions and sewage discharges, and at the same
time, complies with the applicable environmental laws, rules
and regulations on the prevention and control of wastage,
waste gases emissions and sewage discharges in Hong
Kong and PRC during the production process.

In order to attach the importance to environmental
protection, the Group has formally adopted an Environmental
Policy (the “Policy”) since 2017, which has already been
implemented all along as part of the Internal Control Manual.
The underlying principle of the Policy is to reduce, reuse
and recycle resources used in the production lines and
offices so as to mitigate wastes and use energy and
resources effectively. Various measures have been
implemented within the Group and are monitored from time
to time,
conservation to reduce the use of energy, water and other
resources; measures on managing the reduction of wastes
and greenhouse gas emissions, etc. had been taken and
complied with since 2015. Detailed discussion on the
environmental policies and performance of the Group is
set out in the 2022 ESG Report. The English and Chinese
versions of the 2022 ESG Report are available on the
Company’s website at http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk
and Stock Exchange’s website at https://www.hkexnews.hk.
You may access the 2022 ESG Report (i) by clicking the
“Investor Relations” section in the menu on the homepage
of the Company’s website; or (ii) by browsing through the
HKEX’s website.

for example, measures on effective energy
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In addition to the above measures, the Group has also
provided further trainings to Directors and employees and
has participated in activities organised by various
organisations to emphasise the importance of environmental
protection and to promote occupational health and safety
in offices and production lines. For instance, to encourage
our employees to participate the “Hong Kong Green Building
Week 2022” organised by Construction Industry Council
and The Hong Kong Green Building Council Limited, to
strengthen employees’ awareness of environmental
protection and raise their awareness of green building
issues and sustainable lifestyles. To promote the concept
of occupational health and safety in offices and environmental
protection, we also participated in the “Green Office Awards
Labelling Scheme” and “Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards
Labelling Scheme” organised by World Green Organisation
since 2017. These measures and trainings taken and
provided by the Group in supporting the Policy are based
on the needs and actual circumstances of the Group and
will be reviewed by the management annually.
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The Group is committed to comply with the laws and
regulations in which it operates its businesses. During the
year under review, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to the
Group. Apart from complying with Hong Kong laws such
as the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules, SFO,
Employment Ordinance and Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance, we have also
complied with laws of the PRC, including the Company
Law of the PRC, Labour Law of the PRC, Labour Contract
Law of the PRC, Enterprise Annuities Fund Measures,
relevant laws, rules and regulations in relation to child and
forced labour including the Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labour and the Law of the PRC on the
Protection of Minors, as well as other environmental laws,
relevant rules, ordinances and regulations on the prevention
and control of wastage, waste gases and sewage emission.
These laws, ordinances and regulations include but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC,
the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC, the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC,
the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC,
the Waste Disposal Ordinance, the Product Eco-responsibility
Ordinance, Environmental Quality Standard for Surface
Water, Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to
Municipal Sewers, Measures for Hazardous Waste Operation
Administration and Solid Wastes of Prevention and Control
Law of the PRC etc.. These environmental laws will have
impact on the Group’s operation since if we do not dispose
all wastages, discharges and waste gases properly, we
might have to bear heavy environmental protection tax and
so increase the cost of disposal of wastages.
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Furthermore, the Group has started to attach more
importance to gender equality and the protection of women’s
interests, as well as on the compliance with the related
laws of Hong Kong such as the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, which the underlying principle is also enshrined
in the Basic Law, and related laws of PRC such as the
Law on the Protection of Women’s Rights and Interests
and Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female
Employees. To acquire further knowledge on this topic, we
have nominated a representative to participate in activities
related to gender equality and gender mainstreaming
organised by the Women’s Commission (an organisation
which actively engages in activities in relation to women
empowerment and advancement) for the purpose of
understanding the current role and status of women in
business sector and different parties’ concerns on gender
mainstreaming. In the light of the need to address these
issues and to put our knowledge into practice, the “Policy
on Prevention on Sexual Harassment at Workplace” has
been formulated as a way of the Company to show respect
to our employees, especially female employees.

The Group also notes the importance on human resource
management in which the representative of the Company
has learnt from the seminar that good human resource
management on effective communication when handling
verbal violence at work and such message has been
conveyed. In addition, the new measureable objective in
2023 and 2024 has been adopted by the Board regarding
the appointment of at least one female Board member.
Further discussion on human resource management is set
out in the 2022 ESG Report.
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To ensure compliance with these requirements of laws, rules
and regulations, the Company has implemented an effective
internal control and approval procedures, and to obtain
high level oversight of the operation of various business
units. Any changes in the applicable laws,
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and/or business units of the Group immediately.
Certain discussion regarding the Group’s compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group is also contained in the “

” section on pages 32 to 76 of
this annual report and the 2022 ESG Report.

rules and

The Group’s success also depends on the support from
key stakeholders which comprise employees, customers,
suppliers, Shareholders, government and regulators, as well
as banks and financial institutions (creditors).

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. Most of the management have been
serving the Group for a long period of time. However, young
talents are also provided with opportunities to work in the
Group. The Group does not only offers competitive salaries
and benefits, but also provides training programmes or
courses for the Mainland employees at all levels from
different departments, as well as Directors and employees
of the Company
management skills, expertise and knowledge, and at the
same time, make continual contribution to the Group. The
COVID-19 epidemic remains severe in 2022, different
activities used to be organised by various business units
of the Group in the past such as celebration of Chinese
New Year and Christmas, celebration of the anniversary of
operation of steel cord plant and annual dinner, have been
significantly reduced due to the COVID-19 epidemic. In
2022, TESC and JESC organised team-building activities
such as tug of war competition, one day trip in autumn
and group dining for employees together with the
management to participate in, so as to strengthen their
partnership and communication.

in order to further enhance their
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The major customers of steel cord segment are the radial
tyres manufacturers. Most of them have been customers
for more than 5 years and in return of their loyalty, we
provided them with good quality products and after-sale
services.

The major suppliers of steel cord segment are the steel
wire rod suppliers. We have co-operated with most of the
suppliers for more than 5 years and have maintained good
relationship with them through regular face-to-face meetings
and visits in order to achieve cost-effectiveness and obtain
long-term commercial benefits.

The ultimate operational goal of the Group is to maximise
our Shareholders’ return. The major Shareholders are
Shougang Group and its controlled corporations, Bekaert,
Li Ka Shing Foundation and minority Shareholders. It is
grateful to have Shareholders who are being supportive to
the Group for a long period of time in particular the times
when market conditions are adverse and challenging.

To set standard rules and guidelines to be followed by the
Board in deciding whether to recommend dividend out of
the profits to reward the Shareholders, the dividend policy
of the Company has been adopted by the Board on 18
December 2018, Details of which is contained in the
“ ” section on pages
32 to 76 of this annual report. For details regarding the
dividend distribution plan for the financial years from 2021
to 2023, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 February 2022.

Decisions made by the government and regulators can
significantly affect our Group’s operations. It is important,
therefore, for us to maintain good relationships with local
officials to anticipate legal or regulatory changes or
community developments that may affect our business. In
view of the need to maintain good relationships, we have
arranged occasional visits and face-to-face meetings
whenever necessary.
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Banks and financial institutions are lenders of our Group
who help us to finance our businesses, asset purchases
and supply purchases. As a trustworthy borrower, the Group
always try its best to meet every payment deadlines
responsibly and consistently, and at the same time, we
strive to improve our financial performance so that we have
a greater chance to receive quality financing in the future.
Through regular meetings and visits, we have maintained
stable relationships with them.

For further details regarding the above, please refer to the
sections “ ”
and “

report and the section

”in this annual
” in the 2022 ESG
Report.

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group, is set out below:
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—R-CF EF-F ZEIEF EFNF —EN\F
HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETT BETT BETT BEFT
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE ZAEE#AM,/(Ei8)

YEAR 47,858 80,879 148,254 108,344 (8,681)
TOTAL ASSETS BEESE 3,327,430 3,973,724 3,371,907 3,143,918 3,414,467
TOTAL LIABILITIES BfEpsE (1,669,687) (2,240,778) (1,726,336) (1,728,846) (2,075,317)
TOTAL EQUITY W BER 1,657,743 1,732,946 1,645,571 1,415,072 1,339,150
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Details of movements in the investment properties and
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in notes 16 and 17, respectively, to the
consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2022 are summarised on page 258 of this annual
report.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. No share options were granted, exercised,
lapsed or cancelled under the 2002 Scheme and the 2012
Scheme during the year. Details of share options of the
2002 Scheme and the 2012 Scheme are set out under the
heading “ ” hereunder and
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 125 of this annual
report and in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year, the Group made certain amount of
charitable donations.

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Su Fanrong (Chairman and Managing Director)
Yang Junlin (Deputy Managing Director)
(appointed on 1 July 2022)
Ye Qian (Executive Director)
Li Jinping (Executive Director)
Adam Touhig (Non-executive Director)
Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Independent Non-executive Director)
Lam Yiu Kin (Independent Non-executive Director)
Feng Yaoling (Independent Non-executive Director)
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The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with articles 101 and 102 of the Articles.
Messrs. Su Fanrong, Ye Qian and Yip Kin Man, Raymond
will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

In accordance with article 106 of the Articles, Mr. Yang
Junlin will retire from office and, being eligible, offer himself
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Messrs. Su Fanrong, Yang Junlin *and Cheung Ngai serve
as directors of all subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report. Other than the above
directors, the persons who serve/had served as directors
of subsidiaries of the Company during the year and/or up
to the date of this report include Messrs. Dai Jihong, Li
Meng, Wan Chuante, Wang Liang, Yu Zhigao and Zhao
Xuewu.

Note: Mr. Yang Junlin was appointed as the directors of all subsidiaries
of the Company since July 2022.

The list of subsidiaries of the Company is set out in the
note 13 * ” to the consolidated financial
statements and below.

Rise Boom International Limited

Endless Inc.

° Messiah Investments Limited

Online Investments Limited

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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° Messiah Investments Limited

Online Investments Limited
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Apart from information disclosed under the heading

3

and in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond has been serving the Board for
more than nine years, he has not engaged in any executive
management of the Group, and Mr. Yip’s solicitors firm and
his immediate family members have never provided any
service to the Group. His familiarity and extensive experience
with the Company’s business may place him in a better
position to contribute independent views to the Company
and continue to demonstrate a firm commitment to his role.
Taking into consideration of his independent scope of works
and his high integrity when performing duties as an
independent non-executive Director over the past years,
there is no evidence that length of tenure is having an
adverse impact on his independence.

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme during
the year are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, as calculated in accordance with the
provisions of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies
Ordinance, amounted to HK$276,594,000.
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As at 31 December 2022, save for the interest of the
Directors in the Shares set out as below, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests and short positions in the Shares, debentures or
underlying Shares or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he was taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred therein or which were
required to be disclosed herein pursuant to the Model Code.

Total number of

R-ZE-—F+-fF=+—H BEFEMEE
RO (BBFBEN TN EESERA
RAREITIRABRAR G s H A EEEE
(IEH RS GO EXVE 2 RE) 2 B’D &
EESRAROT  BEEREEFSMBER
BIEXVEBET R8N WA E AR A MR AT Z
Iz AR (BEREES RBAEKRR
EWRIEREERBIERLAE) AR
BB S N S 50 535215 B B R BB % &
17 B SR IRIZ AT R B AN 58 2 (Efr] i 25
KRB o

Approximate% of
the total number Capacity in which

Name of Director Shares held of issued Shares interests are held
WHEBERTR®E

EEnR BERAEAY HYB2BEML EEERZZEH

Yang Junlin 226,000 0.01 Beneficial owner

BB Emma A

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief
executives and their associates had any interests or short
positions in any Shares, debentures or underlying Shares
or any of the Company’s associated corporations at 31
December 2022.

No Director or his entity connected had a material interest,
directly or indirectly, in a transaction, arrangement or
contract or a proposed transaction, arrangement or contract
that is significant in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year.

During the year, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors is considered to have interest in the businesses
which are considered to compete or likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with businesses of the Group
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules:

Name of entity

FREBAKIN REEABME L FAER
NEZEHERERIE D EHFNE R RITERE
B G #)

WAERR BT XAHESN R TR
£8.101 LS BRI AR EE LMK
BELA MR ET (THEELER N LY
A M

whose businesses are Description of businesses of
considered to compete or the entity which are considered to
likely to compete with the compete or likely to compete with Nature of Director’s

Name of Director businesses of the Group  the businesses of the Group interest in the entity
HEBRBEREAKEER
BREBFATHEBERTZ BEREAREEBBARTER
EEpA EREH TREERHRE EREBEN EENZER EENE
Adam Touhig (Note 1) Bekaert Manufacturing and sale of Senior vice president of rubber
steel wire and/or cord products reinforcement Asia in Bekaert
group
Adam Touhig(#f£1) Bekaert HEREEMAR,/ IHEFE R Bekaert & B M @B 2
= RE e
Yip Kin Man, Raymond  BeijingWest Industries Manufacturing and sale of Independent non-executive director
(Note 2) automotive parts and components

and the trading of automotive
parts and components

RReR(H:2) REET BENREAETR T BUFRITES
AREEAEZTHHRTHY

Notes:

1. Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by the Company
and Bekaert in September 2006 and further agreement between
Bekaert and the Company in February 2015, Mr. Adam Touhig
was nominated by Bekaert group as a non-executive Director and
was appointed on 15 January 2021.

2. Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of BeijingWest Industries on 27 January
2014 and he does not participate in any decision making on daily
operation of BeijingWest Industries.

st

1. RBEKRAQ G HEBekaertR —EEXNF N AL
2 REW 2 MBekaert B A R AR T —HEF
Z AETA 2 #—# 1  Adam Touhig4t 4 &
Bekaert & B Z R AIENTES  WNRN T =_—F
—A+tRBEZRT-

2. KRREENR-T-NF-A-TLHEEZER
ROETBUFATES FLRA2EARAE
THHBEEZAERE -
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In general, directors should owe their fiduciary duties
towards the company as a whole and as such the Board
believes that all Board members shall act in the best interest
of the Company and its Shareholders when they discharge
their duties and responsibilities as Directors.

As at 31 December 2022, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following parties had an interest or long
position or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were required pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred therein:

Total number of Approximate% of
Shares/underlying the total number of

—RME EFHARERHABANER
T HHEFEHREMEEFERERTEE
ERE LB ERRARR R RERR 2 &ERM
HmASARTTS

R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—H ®EEHRHN-
TH ARG MG AR P A AR
BEEARPEEHIEXVEFE2RID BT T
NEB BRI R RAR R EREE
KB EIEDIEI36IE B R R IRIBZIEHIFE
ZREBFTESAR ¢

Name of Shareholders Shares held issued Shares  Capacity in which interests are held
Fismie,/ HEEBITRG
RREE HERAEHE BYECANL HERZZHHA
Fair Union 894,349,179 45.37  Beneficial owner
EnfEBA
Shougang HK 894,349,179 45.37  Interests of controlled corporations et ()
BEER RIEE 2 a0
Jingxi Holdings 454,545,454 23.06  Beneficial owner Mete )
REZR Enfip NiEe
Shougang Fund 454,545,454 23.06 Interests of controlled corporations et @
BHES RIEE 2 #Em
Shougang Group 1,361,264,633 69.05 Interests of controlled corporations "ot @
BHEE RIEE 2
Bekaert Combustion 250,000,000 12.68  Beneficial owner
%t ZPN
Bekaert 250,000,000 12.68 Interests of controlled corporations "ote ©
R PL ol
Li Ka Shing Foundation 100,000,000 5.07  Beneficial owner

FEHELE

ESHAA
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Notes:

M

@

As Fair Union is Shougang HK’s wholly owned subsidiary, by virtue
of the SFO, Shougang HK is deemed to be interested in
894,349,179 Shares held by Fair Union. On 5 September 2022,
Shougang Group purchased the entire issued share capital of
Wheeling Holdings Limited (“Wheeling Holdings”) from Shougang
HK, in which Wheeling Holdings is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shougang HK, and is the holding Company of Capital Industrial
Financial, this reflects an indirect transfer of shares of Capital
Industrial Financial. Thus, Shougang HK is no longer deemed to
in 12,370,000 Shares held by Lyre Terrace
Management Limited (“Lyre Terrace”), a subsidiary of Capital

be interested

Industrial Financial as Shougang HK is no longer the holding
company of Capital Industrial Financial.

On 7 February 2022, 72,727,272 Conversion Shares were allotted
and issued to Jingxi Holdings in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Convertible Bonds. Immediately after the
conversion and the issue of the Conversion Shares, Jingxi Holdings
held 72,727,272 Conversion Shares and 381,818,182 underlying
Shares to be allotted and issued upon the exercise of Conversion
Rights attaching to the Convertible Bonds.

As mentioned under Note (2) above, by virtue of the SFO, Shougang
Fund is deemed to be interested in 72,727,272 Shares and
381,818,182 underlying Shares held by Jingxi Holdings, which is
a wholly owned subsidiary of Shougang Fund.

et

M

@

)

M RFair UnionB E BB 22 EWB R A
BRI EF K AEGEG - BEEBRE AR Fair
Unionfff 3% B 2894,349,1798% % {5 7 # & 1
H MR- E--_FNARH BRNEELREESE
7 B EWheeling Holdings Limited([ Wheeling
Holdings]) =z & # 2 % 17 ik 74 Wheeling
Holdings ' BB 22 EWB AR NAE
BERZERAR LEMEEREEERZ
BH-Bit SEEETEREANRSAER
BERAR(EG N AEEERZMNBAR M
BEAAAAREEERZERARMIFEAEZ
12,370,000/& f& 7 AR ¥ A 1 2

R-TE-——F-AtH BRETERESZK
AR R R PRI o Bl K B 1772,727,272F%
ARAR 1) - BiEZE IR RBEITRRAR D% - R
[&IFEH 72,727,272 A IR AR 19 K TR PR A& 5 Pt
HEIREEITERK T oI k¥ 17,2381,818,182
A& AR B AR (D

A LEMEQ) AR RAERDEHES 2258
MIEAR HIRERESF RS GKA SHESK
RARREERTEER 272,727,272 K’ 7H K&
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Notes: (continued)

(4)  Shougang Group is the ultimate holding company of Shougang
HK and by virtue of the SFO, Shougang Group is deemed to be
interested in 894,349,179 Shares held by Fair Union as Fair Union
is Shougang HK’s wholly-owned subsidiary. As mentioned under
Note (1) above Shougang Group is deemed to be interested in
12,370,000 Shares held by Lyre Terrace, a subsidiary of Capital
Industrial Financial as Shougang Group is the ultimate holding
company of Capital Industrial Financial. As mentioned under Notes
(2) and (3) above, and by virtue of the SFO, Shougang Group is
also deemed to be interested in the 72,727,272 Shares and
381,818,182 underlying Shares held by Jingxi Holdings, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Shougang Fund, which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group.

(5) By virtue of the SFO, Bekaert is deemed to be interested in
250,000,000 Shares held by Bekaert Combustion, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Bekaert.

Details of the contract of significance between the Group,
Shougang Group, Shougang Fund, Shougang HK and its
subsidiaries are set out under the heading

” hereunder and/or in note 37(i)(a)
to the financial statements. Details of the contracts of
significance between the Group and Bekaert are set out in
note 37(ii)(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Bkt

)

)

(%)

BIEBMAEIESR B 2 BKRITER QG MFair
UnionBE BB 2EAMB AR MIRIEEF
R HAE RG] - & & B 1R AR Fair UnionFT
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(1) BERNEEFERARES(AEEERZME
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FT %576 212,370,000% i% 17 7 #E 5 # 2 o 7 LT
HO&EEG) BRREAER Y EIHES 2 EH B
AR MEMES T EREE2EWBAR]
MREE S R EERD - K EWE AR RA
%G Fr i G 2 72,727,272P% f% 17381,818,1820%
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The Company is committed to practicing and achieving a
high standard of corporate governance and the Board has
approved and adopted the SCHL Corporate Governance
Code on terms no less exacting than those set out in the
provisions of the Code. Further information on the
Company’s Corporate Governance Code is set out in the
“ ” on pages 32 to
76 of this annual report.

Set out below are particulars of repurchases by the
Company of its own ordinary shares made on the Stock
Exchange during the year:

ARBBOBTREE —(ASZENTEER
KE - ESSOHERKEMEERELEER
PR BEGSCA L SFRIFTY AR E 5K ©
RAR 2 BEERTAZ#E—SEREINAK
FRERBET6E [ 1R

WA EAAR AR R AR TR
ERRIIT ¢

Consideration Aggregate
per Share consideration

Number of Highest Lowest
Shares =31 =43 EERE
Month of repurchase in 2022 repurchased HK$ HK$ HK$
R-ZB-ZFzEEAHK EEERMOEE ks ks it
September A 104,000 0.210 0.206 21,448
October A 240,000 0.206 0.190 47,748
Total S 344,000 69,196

All Shares repurchased in 2022 were cancelled up to the
date of this annual report.

The above repurchase was made for the purpose of
achieving an increase in the consolidated net asset value
and/or earnings per Share.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
listed securities of the Company during the year.
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The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage in respect of legal
actions brought for committed or alleged wrongful acts
against the Directors and officers of the Group throughout
the year, but exclude any criminal, dishonest or fraudulent
acts or omission.

The Articles provide that every Director, secretary or other
officer or auditor of the Company shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against any liability, loss or
expenditure incurred by him in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, which relate to anything done or
omitted to be done by him as Director, secretary, officer
or auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given
in his favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in
connection with any application in which relief is granted
to him by the court from liability in respect of any such
act or omission or from liability to pay any amount in
respect of shares acquired by a nominee of the Company.

The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit
of the Directors as required by Section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance when the report of the directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
Section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting
standard. These transactions mainly relate to contracts
entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course
of business which were negotiated on normal commercial
terms and on an arm’s length basis and the Company has
complied with the applicable requirements under the Listing
Rules. Further details are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements. The Group has carried out a connected
transaction during the year, details are illustrated below.

RER ARARERAEBZEERITTRAR
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On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with Jingxi Holdings (a connected
person of the Company) whereby the Company conditionally
agreed to issue and Jingxi Holdings conditionally agreed
to subscribe for the Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of up to HK$150,000,000. The Convertible Bonds
carry the Conversion Rights to convert into the Conversion
Shares at the Conversion Price of HK$0.33 per Conversion
Shares (subject to adjustment), and the Convertible Bonds
will carry an interest rate of 4.0% per annum and will mature
on the third anniversary of the issue date of the Convertible
Bonds. Assuming the Conversion Rights are exercised in
full at the Conversion Price, 454,545,454 new Shares, being
the Conversion Shares, may be allotted and issued to Jingxi
Holdings subject to the Conversion Restrictions, representing
approximately 23.64% of the total number of issued Shares
as at 31 December 2019 and approximately 19.12% of the
total number of issued Shares as enlarged by the allotment
and issue of the Conversion Shares, assuming that there
is no other change to the total number of Shares.

The net proceeds from the Subscription Agreement of
HK$149,000,000, are expected to be used as follows: (i)
as to approximately HK$37,300,000 for repaying interest-
bearing borrowings with higher interest rate of the Group;
(excluding borrowings provided by Shougang HK and its
related party(ies)), (ii) as to approximately HK$110,000,000
for funding the capital investment for the TESC Phase Il
Project subject to the construction cost and time needed
to supplement the production need for both TESC and
JESC; and (iii) as to approximately HK$1,700,000 being the
remaining proceeds for supplementing general working
capital.
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The reason for entering into the Subscription Agreement
as this is an appropriate means of raising additional capital
of the Company considering the recent market conditions
which represent an opportunity for the Company to obtain
the funding at reasonable cost for construction of the brass
wire production lines, enhance its working capital and
strengthen its capital base and financial position. Also, it
will not have an immediate dilution effect on the shareholding
of the existing Shareholders and the interest payable under
the Convertible Bonds is more stable and predictable than
bank borrowing. The Subscription by Jingxi Holdings
reflects the confidence and commitment of Shougang Fund
towards the long-term business development of the Group
which is beneficial to the long-term business development
of the Group.

Jingxi Holdings is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang
Fund, which is in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shougang Group. Shougang Group is a controlling
Shareholder interested in an aggregate of 906,719,179
Shares, representing approximately 47.15% of the total
number of issued Shares before the date of the Subscription
Agreement. Therefore, Jingxi Holdings is a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the Subscription
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company and
is subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

On 11 February 2019, all conditions precedent under the
Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and the
completion of the Subscription Agreement took place and
the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$150,000,000 were issued to Jingxi Holdings.
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Details of the Subscription Agreement were also disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 18 December
2018 and 11 February 2019, and in the circular of the
Company dated 11 January 2019. The Subscription
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were approved, confirmed and ratified by the independent
Shareholders on 1 February 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had fully utilised the
aforesaid proceeds according to the proposed usage as
set out in the circular of the Company dated 11 January
2019.

On 11 January 2022, the Company received a notice from
Jingxi Holdings to extend the maturity date of the
Convertible Bonds by one year to 11 February 2023.

Besides, the Company received a conversion notice from
Jingxi Holdings in relation to the exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the Convertible Bonds to convert the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$24,000,000
at the Conversion Price of HK$0.33 per Conversion Share
(the “Conversion”). Accordingly, on 7 February 2022,
72,727,272 Conversion Shares were allotted and issued to
Jingxi Holdings in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Convertible Bonds. Details of the Conversion of the
Convertible Bonds were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 7 February 2022.

In February 2023, the Convertible Bonds matured. The
Company has made full redemption of outstanding principal
amount of HK$126,000,000 of the Convertible Bonds, in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds.
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On 31 May 2021, TESC and South China Leasing entered
into the Finance Lease Agreement, pursuant to which TESC,
being the owner of the Machineries and Equipment, agreed
to sell the Machineries and Equipment to South China
Leasing at the Purchase Consideration of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,000,000) and South
China Leasing agreed to lease back the Machineries and
Equipment to TESC for the lease consideration of
approximately RMB21,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$26,160,000), comprising the rental principal of
RMB20,000,000, the lease interest of approximately
RMB1,650,000 and the lease handling fee of RMB150,000,
for a lease term of eighteen (18) months. On the same
date, the Company, as the holding company of TESC,
entered into the guarantee agreement in favour of South
China Leasing as security for the payment obligations of
TESC under the Finance Lease Agreement. At the end of
the lease term or repayment of the rental principal of
RMB20,000,000 and other payables, TESC shall have the
right to purchase the Machineries and Equipment at a
nominal purchase price of RMB2,000. The purpose for
entering into the Finance Lease Agreement would (i) enhance
the working capital position of TESC; (ii) allow TESC as
well as the Group to optimise its asset and debt structure
through increasing the percentage of medium-term financing,
which will also improve the liquidity position of the Group;
and (iii) diversify the financing source of the Group. It is
expected that the finance lease arrangement has no material
impact on the actual operations of the Group. There will
not be any gain or loss accrued to the Group in its
consolidated financial statements pursuant to the sale of
the Machineries and Equipment under the Finance Lease
Agreement, as it will be accounted for as a collateralised
borrowing in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
without recognition of any sale of Machineries and
Equipment in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards. The Purchase Consideration received
by TESC is expected to be used to repay the borrowed
money or to acquire/develop the assets, so as to enhance
manufacturing capacity and efficiency of TESC.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRESE

On the date for entering into the Finance Lease Agreement,
the Company was held as to approximately 47.76% by
Shougang HK and its controlled corporations. Pursuant to
the Listing Rules, Shougang HK is regarded as a substantial
Shareholder. South China Leasing is an indirect 75% owned
subsidiary of Capital Industrial Financial, which is in turn
held as to approximately 50.84% by Shougang HK. South
China Leasing is also held as to 25% by the indirect wholly
owned subsidiaries of Shougang HK. As such, South China
Leasing is an associate of Shougang HK and is also a
connected person (at the issuer level) of the Company. The
transaction contemplated under the Finance Lease Agreement
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2)
of the Listing Rules, as all applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) in respect of the Finance Lease
Agreement and the transaction contemplated therein exceed
0.1% but are less than 5%, such transaction is subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt
from the circular (including independent financial advice) and
the independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the Finance
Lease Agreement were also disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 31 May 2021.

The loan from South China Leasing was fully settled in
December 2022.

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence as
well as the prevailing market condition of the industry.
Remuneration packages, which include an element of
discretionary bonuses, are generally reviewed annually. The
emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee, having regard to individual performance, the
Company’s performance and profitability, remuneration
benchmark in the industry and prevailing market condition.

In addition, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme as incentive/reward to Directors and eligible
participants/qualifying grantees, details of the scheme are
set out in note 36 to the financial statements.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year and as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of the annual report.

For the year under review, the revenue from sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
57.1% (2021: 50.2%) of total revenue of the Group and
the revenue from sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 21.3% (2021: 13.7%)
of total revenue of the Group.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 52.0% (2021: 52.5%) of total purchases
of the Group for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier, included therein amounted to approximately 18%
(2021: 24.6%) of total purchases of the Group for the year.

Save for disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware,
neither the Directors, their associates, nor those Shareholders
(who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

Further details related to relationship with customers and
suppliers, please refer to sections “

”in this annual report and
in the 2022 ESG Report.

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution
for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Su Fanrong

Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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To the Members of
Shougang Century Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Shougang Century
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which are set out on pages 120 to 257, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

° Impairment assessments of property,
equipment and land use rights

plant and

° Impairment assessment of trade receivables
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESANMEERRENSE

(1) Impairment assessments of property, plant and equipment and land use rights

(1) 9%¥ BERREEIHBEHERENG
Refer to Note 4(b), Note 17 and Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements
F2Hme M EmENT40) - M7 RHEE20
As at 31 December 2022, the Group owned certain
property, plant and equipment and land use rights
amounting to HK$1,171,025,000 and HK$130,142,000,
respectively, which relate to the steel cord segment.
ﬂ_z::¢+:ﬂz+—5' EXEHEME  BWE
AR B T b (R AE D Rl R EHE1,171,025,0007T KRB
130 142,0007T - HEMHERHHEHE -

Taking into considerations the results of the steel cord
segment for the year ended 31 December 2022 as
well as a comparison between the Group’s market
capitalisation and its net assets value, management
identified impairment indicators existed for the relevant
property, plant and equipment and land use rights.
*ETF@Z%—‘:fE::E‘i—:HE"f“*Eﬁifgﬁlﬂ%, D EBEY

BER/RALLEE BESEEZTEMEFEEE - Eﬁ
BE TR  BELRERLMERENRBERS

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights included the

following:
BAHBEEERENEYE  BERREELMER
BREZ FIRT B

We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud.
BATERTERENEYE  BMERREELMER
RERL(E B A BPE B FIRE (5 812 - WRIBE B (AT T
ml_ﬂ;ﬁﬂﬂ“ﬂﬁ@ﬁqﬁﬂ n AR (flanEsErt - =8
N E&ﬁ”éﬁﬂgﬁiﬁkz’?ﬂ’mﬁlm?ﬁ) BARE KET
it B K $8 ER [t B9 N AE [ B
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPANESNMEERRENSE

Management grouped the assets of the Group at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows that are largely independent of the cash
flows from other assets or groups of assets (Cash-
Generating Units) and performed impairment
assessments in respect of the two Cash-Generating
Units of the steel cord segment identified using the
value-in-use method. This involved significant
judgement in determining the assumptions used in
the calculations. The key assumptions included:
ERER BERENEENRRENRE HUEBFEMNRE
MA MELLE EREBDBILNEAMEESNEEANIR TR
ANBReELEN) - ERERNSMNEREREEEHME
,aﬁﬂMWﬂﬁiﬁiﬁuﬁmTﬂﬁmﬁtE¢ SHERE
B ERANRRENEAHEG R FERBREE:

o rate of annual increment for the steel cord price;

. EARGERNOTERE

° rate of annual increment for the sales volume;
and
e HEEMFHERE R

° discount rates
B IR K

The impairment assessments prepared by management
were subject to oversight and review by the directors
of the Company. Based on management’s assessment,
no impairment on property, plant and equipment and
land use rights was considered necessary as at 31
December 2022.

EREREMOMETHR BEAREFNEENEE R
EERENTG RE-—F+_A=1+—BXEH#Y
¥ BB KRR T AR RRE

We evaluated and tested the key controls over
the impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights performed by
management, including the selection of valuation
method, determination of recoverable amounts
and key assumptions made in the future cash flow
forecasts.

B EMARATEREHYE  BENMKREE L
£ AR RE TR B S FI b - BIEFTEER
EE . AIWEeENEEARRKBRRERAFH
RS IRER -

We evaluated the composition of management’s
future cash flow forecasts used in their value-in-
use calculations, and the process by which they
were prepared.
BAFAETEREEEABEFEREANARRERS
mETRRRER - LA R ERELTERARE -

We involved our internal valuation expert in
assessing the appropriateness of the methodologies
used and the reasonableness of key assumptions

applied.
BB AN A B EERTEPAR AN EE 1A

KRR R RRN SN -
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESANMEERRENSE

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balances and the estimation of the recoverable
amount of the Cash-Generating Units of the steel cord
segment is subject to a high degree of estimation
uncertainty, as well as significant judgements involved
in the selection of assumptions used.

B IZBECARERNEREUANARCELSE
AT B SRS R EXRHE (BEFEEREBERR
RrRE) -

We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s
key assumptions made in the forecasts. For steel
cord price, we compared the long-term steel cord
price used in the forecasts against the market
price, and benchmarked the rate of annual
increment to industry forecasts and market trends.
For sales volume, we assessed the reasonableness
and feasibility of annual sales plan and productivity.
For the discount rates, we benchmarked the rates
used in the forecasts against our research of the
discount rates used by comparable companies in
the industry. We considered the potential impact
of reasonably possible downside changes in these
key assumptions. We also considered whether the
judgements in selecting these key assumptions
would give rise to indicators of possible
management bias.

BMFETERBAEREAPHBAREBRNSIE L -
REERER RIS FEARERNRAMERER
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESANMEERRENSE

We compared the current year actual results with
the amounts included in the prior year cash flow
forecasts to consider the quality of management’s
forecasting, and where any deviations were noted,
we corroborated management’s explanations with
our knowledge of the market and the Group’s
performance in the current year. We also checked
that these relevant factors had been taken into
account in this year’s forecasts and that
management had considered the current year
actual results in the preparation of this year’s
forecasts.

BB AFREEREARE F—FEREREAATE
ENEHETTHEER NZEERENTRAES - &K
AR EREERR AT EEREGE FFEEALR
RENRE BEEEEHRMETSOERER &
SERANFENRBABMEE - RPIERE T SFH
BRAPREZER T ELHBRER -RMATRE T &R

EREERTAFENERERANERAFENR
Al e

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that management’s significant judgements and
assumptions applied in the impairment assessments
of property, plant and equipment and land use
rights were supportable by the evidence obtained
and procedures performed.

BEFATHET RFIRREEEEDE KBEK
A% 1 B+ 3 {55 PR A O RU(EL BT A P 50 PR O B 32 1 T AN 1R
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPANESNMEERRENSE

(2) Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(2) FEWERFRETG

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii), Note 4(c) and Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements

B2 BERA SRS M 5231 (b) (i) ~ PO FE4(c) R FizE23

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had gross trade
receivables of HK$587,033,000 and provision for
impairment losses on trade receivables of
HK$21,586,000. Provision is made for lifetime
expected credit losses on trade receivables.
RZZE__F+_A=+—H BESEENEKEX
48 78 & 78 #587,033,0007T + FE IR BR RO (B B BB K
21,586,000 EEEFEKERNTHEHAEEEE
TR -

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the expected credit losses for trade
receivables included the following:

B EE R ENEEMEREREEEE 2Tt
R aE

We understood, evaluated and validated the key
controls over credit procedures performed by
management, including the periodic review of
aged receivables and the assessment of the
expected credit losses for trade receivables. We
also assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity and subjectivity.
B AN EEEERNITHMRE PSR
Fr - B35S 8 B e W BR SR EY 1E HA 25 B I B W BR R TR
HEEBERNM - RMEBREEBMEGTHEEMLD
12 8 AN E A 2 L B R 2= (A REME AN 871 ) 972
JE AT AH A B AR R B R T LB

We obtained management’s assessment of the
expected credit losses for trade receivables and
tested the accuracy of the aging profile of trade
receivables by checking to the underlying invoices
on a sample basis.

BMERE T EREBYHERRFAREEEENTGE
WiRB BT B RA T FECRIA BR e e 8% 1) 2EFE
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESANMEERRENSE

Management applied judgement in assessing the
expected credit losses. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and aging
profile. Management considered that full provision
would be made for balances with known financial
difficulties or those not responding to collection
activities, while the expected credit loss rates of the
remaining balances are determined based on historical
credit losses experienced over the past 3 years and
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information including macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
EREERABNARRAEERR - RTEERBNES
1BR - EIREBEEREE R RO BREC 155 S e U AR R
ETTHH-BEBERR BREAVERENHRER T
ERWFEHNHRE T HATIRER T MH AR TEH
ERBRAXARBEBE="FNELEHIBRKETE - LE
THABRARRE R RATELEERBRYERPENBYER
RN RERBERE -

We focused on this area due to the estimation and
judgement involved in determining the expected credit
losses for the trade receivables subject to high degree
of estimation uncertainty.

BRI BB EENERTE AR mE M TEE LA &
YRR TR T8 BME B B 1R SR I 08 I Al 51 A0 4 -

For trade receivables with known financial
difficulties or those not responding to collection
activities, we challenged and assessed the
appropriateness of management’s assessment
based on supporting documents such as
correspondence with the customers, customers’
responses to collection activities and relevant
public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of these customers.

HRE MNP RN E 5 EKREE FEYOE 2 = E
WK RPRBEREPNERKE  TRHE
Wk AW SR Y (R 88 A I R B B AR AR R B0 & 142
RERERMEXXM - kBAFE T ERENHNE

it

For the remaining trade receivables, we challenged
and assessed the appropriateness of management’s
assessment including the credit risk characteristics
based on the customers’ historical settlement
pattern over the past 3 years and performed
market research regarding the relevant current and
forward-looking information including
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

R T B YRR PIDEBAIGT T BB BT 4
MEEY BEEREPBAT=FENEANEER
PRl WEST TR RAE M EROMISHE &
BERTYETPENBYSRRENNEZELSBERE -

We also tested the calculation of the provision for
impairment losses.

FAFITRRE TR E R E R &

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that the judgement and estimates adopted by
management in determining the expected credit
losses of the trade receivables were supportable by
the evidence obtained and procedures performed.
RIBFTATTEVAZ - T APIRR /R B 32 [E B FE W AR SR TR HR
EEBENMGEAMAB SR MESHNEBRNAITHIR
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % B R

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Chun Wah, Ryan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #Z_-_Z - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E BT T BT
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue - 5 2,464,242 2,694,810
Cost of sales SHE KA 9 (2,133,702) (2,280,263)
Gross profit EH 330,540 414,547
Other income HaA 7 20,738 4,062
Other gains/(losses), net Hibleas (B518) F58 8 21,498 (22,622)
Selling and distribution expenses $H& &5 HE A 9 (114,563) (131,628)
Administrative expenses TRER 9 (58,307) (57,423)
Research and development mEER
expenses 9 (103,335) (103,676)
Foreign exchange gains/(losses), JMNEIE H Uz, (E1E)  F58
net 11,708 (10,196)
Changes in fair values of WEMHERNTEZE
investment properties 16 1,138 2,650
(Net impairment losses)/net CEMEEZ CREBKFE)
reversal of impairment VENI=E=E S A EIDE R
losses on financial assets 23(c) (1,114) 7,396
Finance costs, net WIS - FEER 11 (50,615) (13,401)
Profit before income tax B PTS A% A A 57,688 89,709
Income tax expense FI8 R i 12 (9,830) (8,830)
Profit from continuing operations R B#FE L& %75 2w 5 47,858 80,879
Discontinued operation BRIEREER
Loss from discontinued operation RE B R IFAEZLES 2 BB 32 - -
Profit for the year REE R A 47,858 80,879
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income  Fill4r & 2 W < FEERBE I B s — HFBIEE -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SeEZEBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #Z_-_Z - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—s=-= —E_—
Notes HK cents HK cents
B 5E AL AL
Earnings per share for profit from ZARNARHEAB ARLKEFE
continuing operations attributable #&& ¥ 25 2 FA& 2 F)
to the owners of the Company
- Basic —H&K 15(a) 2.44 4.26
- Diluted — 8 15(b) 1.71 4.11
Earnings per share for profit for ~ ANAGRIHA ARG AFE G F)
the year attributable to the 2 FREF
owners of the Company
- Basic —H&K 15(a) 2.44 4.26
- Diluted — 8 15(b) 1.71 4.11
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income  Fill4r & 2 M W e < FEEEBE I Mt — (FBIE -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EEWNER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #Z_-_Z - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T BT T BT T
Profit for the year REE R A 47,858 80,879
Other comprehensive (loss)/ REFELEER 2HMWEM
income arising from continuing (&518) Wi
operations
Items that will not be reclassified HZHFTEENHIHEEm
to profit or loss EHH
Exchange differences arising EmE 27| mEEE
on translation into HER
presentation currency (147,094) 41,668
Revaluation of leasehold land HETHRIEFEM
and buildings 17 34,808 (8,229)
Recognition of deferred income HE T RIEFEM ZRT
tax (liability)/asset on Frisfi(Baf’) EERR
revaluation of leasehold land
and buildings 31 (5,225) 1,208
(117,421) 34,647
Other comprehensive income RECKRLEREEK 2 HMt2
arising from discontinued &
operation
Item that will not be reclassified E#GTEEH THEEER L
to profit or loss EH
Exchange differences arising EAmE 27| EEMmEELNE
on translation into HERR
presentation currency 32 - 433
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ZAFE 2 (E1E), WsBE
for the year, net of tax (NFTR) (69,563) 115,959
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ZAFE 2 (E1E), WsB%E
for the year arises from: PNEE
- Continuing operations —RBEBREER (69,563) 115,526
- Discontinued operation —BERIEREERS 32 - 433
(69,563) 115,959

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income  Fill4r & 2 M W e < FEEEBE I Mt — (FBIE -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 WZ-Z-_—fF+_H=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—fF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M BET T BT T
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties KEMZE 16 55,637 57,446
Property, plant and equipment M - BB k&E 17 1,187,280 1,306,197
Right-of-use assets BEFRE 18 1,665 2,914
Land use rights 3 fsE A4 20 130,142 146,264
Intangible assets BEEE 21 - -
Prepayments and deposits BNRkZS 24 20,928 38,592
Deferred income tax assets EEMSHIBEE 31 1,505 467
Total non-current assets FRBEERR 1,397,157 1,551,880
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 22 422,303 463,878
Trade receivables FEUTBR 3K 23 565,447 795,968
Bills receivables e U ZE i 23 653,069 812,204
Prepayments, deposits and other FBIH7K ~ & & K H b fE U5k
receivables 24 63,546 77,803
Current income tax recoverable AU e E BRAT 1S E - 2,637
Pledged bank deposits EHEFIRITFER 26(a) 80,101 195,867
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRS 26(b) 145,807 73,487
Total current assets REEEHTE 1,930,273 2,421,844
Total assets BEEMAEE 3,327,430 3,973,724
Liabilities 8%\
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Other payables H M K 102 278
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 446 1,738
Deferred income tax liabilities BEMMSEMIBERE 31 28,007 23,448
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBEREE 28,555 25,464

The above consolidated statement of financial position
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bt R S BA TS AR 2R P BB Y P R — GBI EE o



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B ISR &

AT 31 DECEMBER 2022 W-_ZE_—_#+_HA=+—H
As at 31 December
R+=—RA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MIaE BT T BT T
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and bills payables RN EE 27 800,885 1,119,498
Other payables and accruals HMENRRERER 27 245,910 405,273
Current income tax liabilities EHMMEHAE 6,419 1,631
Loan from a related company RE—EEEQRZER 28 - 24,570
Bank borrowings RITERK 29 454,552 479,838
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 1,292 1,226
Financial liability at fair value BEAFEFAERCRBE
through profit or loss 30 132,074 183,278
Total current liabilities B EEEE 1,641,132 2,215,314
Total liabilities BEHHE 1,669,687 2,240,778
Equity =
Share capital % 2 33 1,215,798 1,191,798
Reserves (e 441,945 541,148
Total equity EREE 1,657,743 1,732,946
Total equity and liabilities e EAEE 3,327,430 3,973,724

The financial statements on pages 120 to 257 were approved 7| RE120H 2257 2 U BHREER =F
by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023 and were —=F=FA_F+VMAEEESHE WHIAT

signed on its behalf:

EERARE

Su Fanrong
BN
Director

EFE

Yang Junlin
BE&EM
Director

EFE

The above consolidated statement of financial position — _Eilt4R4& BIFSHA 2K & B2 RERN MY 5 — GBI E -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 HZEZE—_T_—F+-_A=+—HILFE
Property PRC
Share Capital  revaluation  Translation reserve Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve funds losses Total
Rx  BARE NEERRE | ENRE TEREEE  ZHER ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A8Tn  EMTn  AMTn  RMTrn BMTR BETR B¥TR
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
(K (i) (&£ i)
For the year ended BZ-E--_E+-A=1-H
31 December 2022 LEE
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—%-F-H 1,191,798 23,990 140,717 356,156 90,450 (70,165) 1,732,946
Comprehensive loss EEE
Profit for the year KER T - - - - - 47,858 47,858
Other comprehensive Ht2mks/(H58)
income/(loss)
Exchange differences arising on ~ H#E 2 EEMELL)
translation into presentation =R
currency - - - (147,004) - - (147,094)
Revaluation of leasehold land and & Tt Riz=EMH(Mi17)
buildings (Note 17) - - 34,898 - - - 34,898
Recognition of deferred income tax &t HEFEEZELME
liability on revaluation of leasehold & ERER (ft:31)
land and buildings (Note 31) - - (5,225) - - - (5,225)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  AEE2ENE/(BE) 48
for the year - - 29,673 (147,094) - 47,858 (69,563)
Transaction with owners in their EIEZHEE ANEGRRTHR
capacity as owners: 5.
Share repurchase K& - - - - - (69) (69)
Dividend paid ERRE - - - - - (29,5M1) (29,571)
Issuance of ordinary shares BETARESFBRRTLRR
pursuant to the conversion of (WizE30)
convertible bonds (Note 30) 24,000 - - - - - 24,000
Transfer to PRC reserve funds SESHERRES ()
(Note (ii) - - - - 8,253 (8,253) -
24,000 - - - 8,253 (37,893) (5,640)
At 31 December 2022 W-Z-Z#+-A=1-H 1,215,798 23,990 170,390 209,062 98,703 (60,200) 1,657,743

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ll‘/_\é*g?ﬁﬁ@ib%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #Z_-_Z - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Property PRC
Share Capital ~ revaluation  Translation reserve  Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve funds losses Total

RA EREE DXEREE  EiRE tERREE  ZHER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
gTn M Tn  BMTn BETn BETn BETn B¥Tn

(Note (i) (Note (i)
(HfzE()) (B (i)

For the year ended BZ-E--E+-A=1-H

31 December 2021 LLEE
At 1 January 2021 R=F-—F-A-H 1,191,798 23,990 147,738 314,055 82,047 (114,057) 1,645,571
Comprehensive income 2EhE
Profit for the year REERA - - - - - 80,879 80,879
Other comprehensive EM2E(FR)/ ki

(loss)/income
Exchange differences arising on ~ RAEZF|EEMELMEL =

translation into presentation &

currency - - - 42,101 - - 42,101
Revaluation of leasehold land and  B&+iRETER(Fiz17)

buildings (Note 17) - - (8,229) - - - (8,229)
Recognition of deferred income tax BE+HFETER 2 BEFE

asset on revaluation of leasehold  F&ERA(1:31)

land and buildings (Note 31) - - 1,208 - - - 1,208
Total comprehensive (loss)/income  AEE 2 (EE)/ WELE

for the year - - (7,021) 42,101 - 80,879 115,959
Transaction with owners in their EIEREEANESHET

capacity as owners: H%5
Share repurchase KirEm - - - - - (104) (104)
Dividend paid 2fifke - - - - - (28,480) (28,480)
Transfer to PRC reserve funds SESHERRES ()

(Note (ii) - - - - 8,408 (8,403) -

- - - - 8,408 (36,987) (28,584)

At 31 December 2021 RS- —%+-A=1-H 1,191,798 23,990 140,717 356,156 90,450 (70,165) 1,732,946

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity  _Eill4FA S EB)K EEREM T —HBIE -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
— 35 3£ 4=
nv. \é*Eﬁ "ﬁ Eb i%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #Z-ZT-—&#+-A=+—HILFE
Notes: M5E
(i) The capital reserve represents the benefit of acquiring a (i) BABEEBER U EEKE —EHBARE [
shareholder’s loan from a previous shareholder upon the acquisition —RIRTIR R AR E R 2 Uhzs o

of a subsidiary in previous years.

(if) In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company’s (i) BERPEARAMB(HEDKZHART]

subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the ZHBARZ ATIEZRME TP RAEREE LR
“PRC”) and relevant PRC laws and regulations, these subsidiaries T RSB AT ARTRSRE RET &
are required to transfer at least 10% of their profit after taxation, BANDRGBRERANNI0BIEALIEREES
which is determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules (B EE—REEROEZREES WEA):
and regulations, to a statutory reserve fund (including the general BHEZFEERESED ZEDNERNA R GFEMEARN
reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund, where appropriate). 0% RIERIE BRI NIFTHERESER
Transfer to this statutory reserve fund is subject to the approval AR AT EEe stk - FEREEESRTARN
of the respective board of directors, and is discretionary when W EAERTUIEINER -

the balance of such fund has reached 50% of the registered capital
of the respective company. Statutory reserve fund can only be
used to offset accumulated losses or to increase capital.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity  _Eill4RA S EB)K EEREM T —HEIE -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #Z_-_Z - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLFE

2022 2021
—E-= —ET=—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE BT T BT
Cash flows from operating RELEITH2HERE
activities
Cash generated from operations RELEEBFMEEZRS 35(a) 182,200 286,795
PRC corporate income tax paid B ZHBDEMESH (2,833) (11,194)
Net cash generated from REFBELCEEB 2KEED
operating activities from MmEEZIRE ) FHE
continuing operations 179,367 275,601
Net cash used in operating REERIEREEBH 2K
activities from discontinued FMEBA RS FE
operation 32 - (15)
Net cash generated from REKLEEMEE
operating activities REF 179,367 275,586
Cash flows from investing RERETBHZEHESRE
activities
Placement of pledged bank deposits 17 E K IFERIT1F (316,509) (275,688)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits #EEXE I IRTTIF R 419,651 168,238
Purchase of property, plant and  BEEYZ W= &KX E
equipment (107,575) (86,798)
Prepayments for the acquisition B EYZ  WE k&E 2B
of property, plant and equipment (24,928) (56,251)
Proceeds from disposals of HEYE  BERREMSFHIEA
property, plant and equipment 35(a) 1,586 5,165
Interest received 2HF & 2,246 1,426

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

€ EARE MM S — G BIEE -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
nv_\éiﬁﬁiﬁéé‘%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #Z_-_Z - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE BET T BT T
Net cash used in investing RERFESEEB2IREED
activities from continuing meNf 2 Re 58
operations (25,529) (243,908)
Net cash generated from investing KRB B IFEEEK 2 I8EE
activities from discontinued FMELZIRESFE
operation 32 - -
Net cash used in investing activities R EEBEAH ZIREF58 (25,529) (243,908)
Cash flows from financing REMETBZ2RERE
activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings  RERITTERZFTEHIE 805,766 560,686
Repayments of bank borrowings {EEE{TE K (798,674) (582,278)
Repayment of loan from a related {2 —HERAFZER
company (22,390) -
Loan advanced from a related REE—BEERARZER
company - 24,036
Interest paid 2 FE (20,144) (18,933)
Dividend paid EfRE (29,571) (28,480)
Share repurchase % 15 B 1Bl 5k 18 (69) (104)
Payments for principal elements S{NHEEBEZAREED
of lease liabilities (1,226) (1,187)
Settlement of convertible bonds &/ A # % (& 5 (5,504) (6,000)
Loan transaction costs paid BENERRZEA (389) (1,570)

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should — Fill4R&IR& 7&K EEREM T —HHE -
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

nv_\éiﬁ ﬁiﬁé %

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 #Z_-_Z - —F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-= —ET=—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE BET T BT T
Net cash used in financing RERFESEEB 2MEEE
activities from continuing meNf 2 Re 58
operations (72,201) (53,830)
Net cash used in financing RECRIEREESE 2 MER
activities from discontinued FMEBA RS FE
operation 32 - -
Net cash used in financing activities FEE EBEA ZIREF58 (72,201) (53,830)
Net increase/(decrease) in RekRSEBEEE Z
cash and cash equivalents &, Crd ) F8E
81,637 (22,152)
Cash and cash equivalents at RENMzReRREFEIEE
beginning of the year 73,487 93,262
Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and & &HE&FEIER ZER
cash equivalents (EB8), = (9,317) 2,377
Cash and cash equivalents at end RFELX B MRS EEHER
of the year 26(b) 145,807 73,487

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should  F#l4R&EIRE)

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Shougang Century Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is an investment holding company and together with
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales
of steel cords.

On 6 December 2021, the Company changed its English
name from Shougang Concord Century Holdings Limited
to Shougang Century Holdings Limited.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is Room
1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street,
Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless
otherwise stated.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The consolidated financial statements
are for the Group consisting of Shougang Century
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries.

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“HKCO”) (Cap. 622). The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties and financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss, which are measured
at fair values.

BEMRREARAR(ARA DDA —
FIREZER AR AR A RENEB QA
(I ARE D ZBEXERENHEN
BRAR

RZEBEZ—F+ZANB KR aEEH
NEBHEREEEBERAAEHNA
BHERTEEBRAR -

ARARTIREBKNLZ GR AR EEf
WERMU AR BEETEEHSHLTNT
¥ 121E1215F -

RRABRBOREBBHERZABER AR
(M RP ) EMR LT -

BRARAFHAIN NS P BEREAEET
TT([EETIT)25 -

mELEEAVHRERER2ETES
ATBCRESIANT R S B FTESN  %FR
RRERAEFEERERA - REUH
BRODAAEE(BREENREERR
RENEMBAR) ML -

ARBZFEHBHRETIRERE
MBRELEN(TEER KRS E
A ) REB R EHREI(T BB R BE
1) (£622F ) MR ° L FHRE M
BRERELKARNERERE
BAFEFEZHET W RET
BREMENBZAFEFABDR LS
BB ERRSN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards for the first time for the
annual reporting period commencing from 1
January 2022:

Annual Annual Improvements
Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-
Projects 2020 (amendments)

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 Narrow-scope

and HKAS 37 amendments
(amendments)
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related

Rent Concessions
beyond 2021

(amendments)
Accounting Merger Accounting
Guideline for Common
5 (Revised) Control

Combinations

The amendments listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in
prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arE MRS R

AEEWAREAKAE M

Certain new and amended standards and

interpretations have been published that are BEBE-_ZEZE-_—_F+—-A8
not mandatory for 31 December 2022 =+—BIEMFHEEE R ARE
reporting periods and have not been early BEVHT R MAHERT B 72 18
adopted by the Group. A=

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after
RT5 B #E
ZERBN
SHBEN

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

1 January 2023

FEGFERFEIRLEEMT  SFAEREE —E-=F
HREERERREF2HRAER] —HR—H
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BB G ERIFE8HMNER] St EE —E-=F
—A—H

Amendments to HKAS 12

BB G ERFE129MERT

HKFRS 17 and amendments
to HKFRS 17

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

B -RHELZEEMARBBELNREA

Insurance Contracts

1 January 2023

—ET_=F
—H—H
1 January 2023

BB BMELERNE1THRR Riza %) —ET_=F
BB RELERNFE1T5R —A—H
MIEET

HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and 1 January 2023

HKFRS 9-Comparative Information
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Hong Kong Interpretation 5
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Management is in the process of assessing
potential impact of the above new and
amended standards and interpretations that
are relevant to the Group upon initial
application. It is not yet in a position to state
whether these standards and interpretations
will have a significant impact on the Group’s
results of operations and financial position.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for business combinations by the
Group (refer to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount of the adjustment to non-
controlling interests and any consideration paid
or received is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate an
investment because of a loss of control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.
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The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred,

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business,

° equity interests issued by the Group,

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement,
and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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The excess of the:

° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms
and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM”), who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Company’s managing director
that make strategic decisions.

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional currency
of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
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Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at the
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year-end exchange rates are
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings and financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss are presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, within “finance costs, net”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a net basis.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that end of the reporting period;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings, are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences
are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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Leasehold land and buildings are recognised at
fair value based on periodic valuation by external
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation.
All other property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings are
recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that
the increase reverses a decrease previously
recognised in profit or loss, the increase is first
recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that
reverse previous increases of the same asset are
first recognised in other comprehensive income
to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable
to the asset; all other decreases are charged to
profit or loss.
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Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost or revalued amounts net of their
residual values at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and 2%-4%, or over the

buildings term of the leases,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold 20%, or over the term
improvements of the leases,

whichever is shorter
Plant and machinery 7%-20%

Furniture fixture 10%-33%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%-25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss. When revalued
assets are sold, it is the Group’s policy to transfer
any amounts included in property revaluation
reserve in respect of those assets to accumulated
losses.
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Construction-in-progress represents buildings and
plant and machinery under construction and
pending installation, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Costs comprises direct
construction costs, the cost of plant and machinery
and applicable borrowing costs incurred during
the construction period. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction-in-progress
until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are
transferred to other property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated above.

Investment properties are held for long-term rental
yields and are not occupied by the Group.
Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are
carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but
it is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.
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Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation
is made to those cash-generating units or groups
of cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units
are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments.

Goodwill that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at the end of each reporting period.
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A discontinued operation is a component of the
entity that has been disposed of or is classified
as held for sale and that represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of
operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan
to dispose of such a line of business or area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The result of discontinued
operation is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at
fair value (either through other
comprehensive income or through profit
or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will be recorded in the profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.
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Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the
date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group
classifies all of its debt instruments at
amortised cost.

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Group assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 3.1(b)(ii) for further
details.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts
to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

AR MR TR T R
HARATIBRRO BT T AR
RAEEEE - MRANRE
IEBRN EERBRELRE
120

TEWKERRME  AEEHA
BEARYVIERELELFSFMA
HREE S A A AR ETE
H2 BB RV SRR
HIERER  E—TERRN
££3.1(b)(ii) ©

B AR BEIRAIATE Al 98 BT S
HECHIASHE BEBRFRAA
ERENAREREENGERE
B EHRMBEERARAIEMRAK
o WERE MBI R RS EF
B NEB IR A A EHLER
BERELFR M EEEEER
ZRPF(IEER KA -



Raw materials, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating
capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items
of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business.

If collection of trade receivables, bills receivables
and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables, bills receivables and other
receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables, bills receivables and other
receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
Company’s equity instruments, for example as the
result of a share buy-back or a share-based
payment plan, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to the owners of the Company as treasury shares
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where
such ordinary shares are subsequently reissued,
any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Trade payables, bills payables and other payables
represent liabilities for goods and services provided
to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and
are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
Trade and bills and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as “finance costs, net”.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The Group has convertible bonds which are
classified entirely as liabilities because they were
issued in a currency other than the functional
currency of the Company. As the instrument
contains an embedded derivative, it has been
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition and as such the embedded
conversion feature is not separated. All transaction
costs related to financial instruments designated
as at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
as incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the convertible
bonds are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable or recoverable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused
tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on
the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides
a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.
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Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give
rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

The deferred income tax liability in relation
to investment property that is measured at
fair value is determined assuming the
property will be recovered entirely through
sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R R

MEREELEZBBENGEE M
BHREPRAEME 2GR
E8 UNBEEZBEE R
e HEERABEDELES
BB nER AT 2R
EFER TR BAE © W iR EFT 1SR
DEEAERVIFHERRH(E
BEMBRINEEXBEMR
ZEE BERZRHWER
BETHERTIE N NE R -
AITF & T IARER < BT
MIAREEBERIANEE
RIAZRER(RAPEE - X
BHRNERBARLEFAEHE
EXERERLEMSHBERE
o

FRRFERAFERENEZ
BELERBAE REVEZR
EETEREREBHE R
[E] o

BT TAE E £ R KR A] RE
BRRAGAERIERLHFEZE
EREBENER 78 TU®

7
Ao



Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are
not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to
the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits, annual leave and
accumulating sick leave that are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in
respect of employees’ services up to the
end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set
up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Pension
Scheme. The assets of the Pension Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the
Pension Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to vesting fully in
the contributions, in accordance with the
rules of the Pension Scheme.
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The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as an employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government
regulations in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), the Group is required to
contribute an amount to certain retirement
benefit schemes based on approximately 6%
to 21% of the wages for the year of those
employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of those
employees of the Group. Contributions to
these retirement benefits schemes are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses and profit-sharing based
on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive
obligation.
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The Group operates an equity-settled share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for
share options of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the
grant of options is recognised as an expense with
a corresponding increase in equity. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions;

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the good
or service may be transferred over time or at a
point in time.
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Control of the good or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control
of the goods or service.

The Group manufactures and sells steel cords.
Revenue is recognised when the control of the
products are transferred to the customers at a
point in time, when products are delivered to the
customers, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customers’ acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products
have been shipped to the specified location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customers, and either the
customers have accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied. A receivable is recognised when the
goods are delivered as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary
shares;

° by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings
per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated
with dilutive potential ordinary shares,
and

o the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of real estate for which
the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payments that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.
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Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by the landlord, which does
not have recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.
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If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group
entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group
revalues its leasehold land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment,
it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use
buildings held by the Group.
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Payments associated with leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Low-value assets
comprise office equipment.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term (Note 16).

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before
the end of the reporting period but not distributed
at the end of the reporting period.

Grants from the government are recognised in
“other income” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate.
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Research expenditure and development expenditure
are recognised as an expense as incurred if they
do not meet the criteria: (a) it is technically feasible
to complete the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sales; (b) management intends
to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it; (c) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible
asset; (d) it can be demonstrated how the
intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits; (e) adequate technical, financial
and other resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset are available;
and (f) the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development can be reliably
measured. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as
an asset in a subsequent period.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.
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The Group’s foreign currency transactions
are mainly denominated in RMB, HK$,
United States dollar (“US$”) and Euro
(“EUR”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB,
HK$, US$ and EUR, and there are no
significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The
Group is subject to foreign exchange
rate risk arising from commercial
transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities denominating in a currency
other than RMB and HK$ which are the
functional currencies of the major
operating companies within the Group.

The exchange rate of RMB to HKS$ is
subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government. The Group
manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates.

Under the Linked Exchange Rate System
in Hong Kong, HK$ is pegged to USS$,
management therefore considers that
there is no significant foreign exchange
risk with respect to US$ (2021: same).
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As at 31 December 2022, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year of the Group
would have been HK$18,234,000 lower/
higher (2021: HK$5,999,000 lower/higher),
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of HK$/RMB
denominated bank balances and cash,
trade receivables, other payables and
accruals, bank borrowings, financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss
and the current account with group
companies.

As at 31 December 2022, if US$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been
HK$21,717,000 higher/lower (2021:
HK$3,360,000 higher/lower), mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of US$
denominated bank balances and cash,
trade receivables, other receivables,
other payables and accruals, bank
borrowings and the current account with
group companies.
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As at 31 December 2022, if EUR had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been HK$3,302,000
higher/lower (2021: HK$2,888,000 lower/
higher) mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange difference on translation of
EUR denominated bank balances and
cash, trade receivables, other receivables,
other payables and accruals and bank
borrowings.

The Group is exposed to commodity
price risk in relation to its steel products
which is largely dependent on the market
price of the relevant commodity. The
Group closely monitors the price of its
products in order to determine its pricing
strategies.

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to lease
liabilities, fixed rate bank borrowings
and financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable rate bank balances and bank
borrowings.
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The Group has not used financial
derivatives to hedge against the interest
rate risk. However, from time to time, if
interest rate fluctuates significantly,
appropriate measures would be taken
to manage interest risk exposure.

As at 31 December 2022, if interest rate
on financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss had been 100 basis points
lower/higher with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been approximately
HK$746,000 (2021: HK$1,102,000)
lower/higher.

As at 31 December 2022, if interest rate
on variable rate bank borrowings had
been 100 basis points lower/higher with
all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year of the Group would
have been approximately HK$1,503,000
(2021: N/A) higher/lower.

Other than financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss and bank
borrowings, the Group is not exposed
to significant cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk.
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Credit risk arises from trade receivables, bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables
(Note 23), bills receivables (Note 23),
deposits and other receivables (Note 24),
pledged bank deposits (Note 26(a)) and bank
balances (Note 26(b)) represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets.

To manage this risk, deposits of the
Group are mainly placed with state-
owned financial institutions and reputable
banks. The Group has policies in place
to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers
with an appropriate financial strength,
credit history and an appropriate
percentage of down payments. It also
has other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly
the authorisation of credit limits to
individual customers and recoverable
amount of each individual trade
receivables to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.
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Sales of goods to the customers
geographically located in the PRC
constituted 56.4% (2021: 68.2%) of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2022. They accounted for
approximately 54.4% (2021: 67.6%) of
the trade receivable balances as at 31
December 2022. Collections of
outstanding receivable balances are
closely monitored on an ongoing basis
to minimise such credit risk.

Trade and bills receivables for sales of
goods of the Group and from the
provision of services are subject to the
expected credit loss model.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables and bills receivables.

For bills receivables, bills are issued by
counterparties at reputable banks and
the credit risk is considered to be low.
Those counterparties do not have
defaults in the past. Therefore, expected
credit loss rate is assessed to be
insignificant and no provision was made
as at each of the end of reporting
period.
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To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and aging profile.

Management considers that full provision
would be made for balances with known
financial difficulties or those not
responding to collection activities, while
the expected credit loss rates of the
remaining balances are determined
based on historical credit losses
experienced over the past 3 years and
adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information including
macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

Impairment losses on receivables are
presented as “net impairment losses on
financial assets” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
When a receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance
account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line
item.
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The following table presents the gross T & 275 B 2 & BE
carrying amount and the provision for H 488 R E B A R
impairment losses in respect of trade
receivables:
Lifetime
expected Gross Lifetime Net
credit carrying  expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
e hh 2Rt

FREEE EEAE GE6R  BERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT  BBTR MR

As at 31 December 2022 R=ZE=-—#&

+=A=+-A
Aging category SRR
Within 1 year —FR 0.14% 566,268 (821) 565,447
Over 1 year HiB—F 100% 20,765 (20,765) -

587,033 (21,586) 565,447

As at 31 December 2021 R=Z=—%

+=ZHA=+-H
Aging category R
Within 1 year —FR 0.09% 796,703 (735) 795,968
Over 1 year HiE—F 100% 21,667 (21,667) -

818,370  (22,402) 795,968




For deposits and other receivables,
management makes periodic individual
assessments on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables based on
historical settlement records, past
experience as well as forward looking
factors. There has been no recent
history of default in relation to these
counterparties. The expected credit
loss is insignificant.

For pledged bank deposits and bank
balances, there has been no recent
history of default in relation to those
financial institutions and reputable
banks. The expected credit loss is
insignificant.

With prudent liquidity risk management, the
Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and ensure the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including long-term and
short-term bank borrowings. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group’s finance department maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate
amount of cash and cash equivalents and
flexibility in funding through having available
sources of financing.
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Surplus cash held by the operating entities
over and above the balance required for
working capital management are transferred
to interest-bearing bank deposits with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall
liquidity position. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group maintained cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$145,807,000
(2021: HK$73,487,000) that are expected to
be readily available and sufficient to meet the
cash outflows of its financial liabilities, hence,
management considers that Group’s exposure
to liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total
available banking facilities, amounted to
approximately HK$622,376,000 (2021:
HK$553,243,000), of which approximately
HK$454,552,000 (2021: HK$479,838,000)
has been utilised.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on their contractual
maturities for non-derivative financial
liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying values as the impact of discounting
is not significant.
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Weighted
average Total
effective contractual
interest  Less than 4-6 7-12 Over undiscounted
rate 3 months months months 1 year cash flows
MEFH BRRER
ERAZ OSR=@ER WEAEA tEt-ER HB-F RERELH
% HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Asl  A%Tr BT A%Tn BT AETx
(Note)
(PzE)
As at 31 December 2022 R-Z-—f
+ZA=+-H
Trade, bills and other ERER  EREER
payables EHERAR - 959,972 53,254 - - 1,013,226
Bank borrowings FITER
- fixed rate - EEH = 3.74 146,783 47,300 85,710 - 279,793
- variable rate - g 6.67 150,676 30,703 - - 181,379
Financial liability at fair value %A FE: ABHZ S
through profit or loss HEE 400 128,520 - - - 128,520
Lease liabilities HEAE 5.36 338 338 676 451 1,803
1,386,289 131,595 86,386 451 1,604,721
As at 31 December 2021 R-Z=--f
+ZA=1-H
Trade, bills and other ERER - EREER
payables REMERZ - 1285005 202,697 - 1,487,792
Loan from a related RE-FBEAFZE
company A 5.50 336 12,575 24.974 - 37,885
Bank borrowings FIEH
- fixed rate -EEH X 4.14 144,512 212,461 132,253 - 489,226
Financial liability at fair ~ RAFEFABRZZE
value through profit or BB
loss 4.00 153,000 - - - 153,000
Lease liabilities HERR 5.36 338 338 676 1,803 3,155
1,583,281 428,071 157,903 1,803 2,171,058

Note: The weighted average effective interest rates are
based on the rates of the borrowings at the end
of the reporting period.

BeE - hnE T EBR A R TR E R
= HRAER
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The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as
capital. The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total interest
bearing borrowings of the Group (including loan
from a related company, bank borrowings and
financial liability at fair value through profit or loss)
less bank balances and cash (including pledged
bank deposits) divided by total equity, as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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The gearing ratio was as follows:

BELLEWT :

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—8
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Loan from a related company RE—HEERAFRZER
(Note 28) (Ff5E28) - 24,570
Bank borrowings (Note 29) RITER(KI7E29) 454,552 479,838
Financial liability at fair value BAFEFAER 2R
through profit or loss (Note 30) & & (PF4EE30) 132,074 183,278
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BERRITER
(Note 26 (a)) (K¥5E26(a)) (80,101) (195,867)
Bank balances and cash RITHEERRSE
(Note 26 (b)) (KfzE26(b)) (145,807) (73,487)
Net debt BEE R 360,718 418,332
Total equity Wi 1,657,743 1,732,946
Gearing ratio BBt 21.8% 24.1%

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets including trade receivables, bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash; and financial
liabilities including trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, loan from a related
company and bank borrowings approximate their
fair values due to their short maturities.
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This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments and non-financial assets that are
recognised and measured at fair value in the
consolidated financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used
in determining fair value, the Group has classified
its financial instruments and non-financial assets
into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standards. An explanation of each level
follows underneath the table.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments or
non-financial assets traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based
on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. The quoted market
price used for financial assets or non-
financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments or
assets are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments or
non-financial assets that are not traded
in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined
using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
or asset are observable, the instrument
or asset is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument or asset is included in level 3.

The fair value estimations of investment properties,
financial liability at fair value through profit or loss
and property, plant and equipment measured at
revalued amount have been disclosed in Notes 16,
30 and 17 respectively.
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the current tax and deferred
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Property, plant and equipment and land use rights
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
change in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on the
higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs to sell calculations.
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The calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates. Management’s judgement is
required in the area of asset impairment particularly
in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred
that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
amount of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business; and
(iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the rate of annual increment
for the steel cord price, rate of annual increment
for the sales volume or the discount rates
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
affect the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial
position and results of operations.

The Group makes provision for impairment loss
on trade receivables based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the expected credit losses
allowance calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in
Note 3.1(b).
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Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
written down to net realisable value when there
is an objective evidence that the cost of inventories
may not be recoverable. The cost of inventories
may not be recoverable if those inventories are
aged and damaged, if they have become wholly
or partially obsolete, or if their selling prices have
declined. The cost of inventories may also not be
recoverable if the estimated costs to be incurred
to make the sales have increased.

The amount written off in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is the
difference between the carrying value and net
realisable value of the inventories. In determining
whether the inventories can be recoverable,
significant judgement is required. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration and extent by all means to
which the amount will be recovered. During the
year, certain inventories written down in prior years
have been subsequently sold at prices higher than
their then net realisable value. Provision regarding
these inventories have been reversed.

The fair values of investment properties and
property, plant and equipment measured at
revalued amount are determined by using various
valuation techniques. Details of the judgements
and assumptions have been disclosed in Notes
16 and 17.

The fair value of a financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss is determined by using
valuation technique. Details of the judgements and
assumptions have been disclosed in Note 30.
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The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing KEII%@%%fH%ﬁ%% cREFEEHE
of steel cords. Revenue recognised during the year BE)ESEZAINT -
are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLFE

2022 2021
—=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Continuing operations BEREER
Sales of goods — Manufacturing EmiHE — BUEHER
of steel cords 2,462,767 2,693,480
Rental income (Note 16) AL BA(FizE16) 1,475 1,330
2,464,242 2,694,810
The Company’s managing director, being the CODM, ARPERBEE EREBREERRE
examines the Group’s performance and allocates EREMNAREEARENRALD
resources from a product perspective. The Group’s AR - AKRERXEE AR —EEZ5H
operations are currently organised into one reportable 7 BRHERK - BISHBRAR 2 8P

segment which is steel cord segment.

Segment results represent the profit or loss of each DEERABE Dz BSE X TEREDE
segment without allocation of changes in fair value of ?Xéf%%&ﬁf@$@§f7\%\_f\z/i\@ﬁ
investment properties and financial liability at fair value B2 RFEE TN EE X s e
through profit or loss, certain foreign exchange gains - ‘ZP%TTBWXﬁ ARAREFME R
or losses, central administration costs, the emoluments THERZFEWA - K AFMBEE RHE
of directors of the Company, interest income on bank A 2R T EREERRENER
deposits, finance costs and rental and other income. BRAPEMKRBFEZAE-

This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and results by operating and reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

AT RASEER
ZEFRBERBZNN

EREZHRAH

BE-_F-__F+-A=t—-HL

FE
Steel cord
HK$’000
BT T
Sales of goods EmiEE
Segment revenue from external customers KB INIBEFE R D EBL 5B 2,462,767
Segment results DEPEE 101,213
Unallocated amounts RO EEE
Rental income e A 1,475
Other income HAb YA 312
Other gains, net and foreign exchange Hazs - SRk
gains, net HNEESTE 3 e - VR R 17,117
Changes in fair value of investment KEMEATFEZE
properties 1,138
Expenses =33 (12,952)
Finance costs, net BT AN - R (50,615)
Profit before income tax B FT1S %4 A1 i A 57,688
Income tax expense Fre iz i (9,830)
Profit from continuing operations REFECEER 2 HT 47,858
Loss from discontinued operation REBRIEEEEBE 2 EBE -
Profit for the year RNEEm A 47,858
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE_ ST -_—F+-A=+—H1t

FE
Steel cord
] 8 4%
HK$’000
BT T
Sales of goods EmiEE
Segment revenue from external customers KB INIBERFE R D EBL 58 2,693,480
Segment results DEPEE 145,276
Unallocated amounts RO EEE
Rental income HEaEWA 1,330
Other losses, net and foreign exchange HMEE  FER
losses, net HNEETEE 3 B5 18 - FRE (24,951)
Changes in fair value of investment WEMHENTEE
properties 2,650
Expenses =33 (21,195)
Finance costs, net BITERZS - 558 (13,401)
Profit before income tax B Fr 4525 Bl A 89,709
Income tax expense Frg#i > i (8,830)
Profit from continuing operations REFBELEEE 2@ 80,879
Loss from discontinued operation RE BRI EET < E1E -
Profit for the year REE R F 80,879
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets
and liabilities by operating and reportable segment:

AT B B R 2 35 38
2 EERABEZ W

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2022 2021
- T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Steel cord S BEAR 3,030,252 3,629,392
Total segment assets DESEE BT 3,030,252 3,629,392
Bank balances and cash RITHEF NS 145,807 73,487
Pledged bank deposits BRI TER 80,101 195,867
Unallocated assets KOBEE 71,270 74,978

Total assets

BEHAR

3,327,430 3,973,724
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As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Steel cord il G A% 1,062,955 1,533,159
Total segment liabilities DEfREEEE 1,062,955 1,533,159
Loan from a related company RE—HEEQARIZER - 24,570
Bank borrowings RITER 454,552 479,838
Financial liability at fair value EAFEFABR EHMAE
through profit or loss 132,074 183,278
Unallocated liabilities AOWEaE 20,106 19,933
Total liabilities BEEE 1,669,687 2,240,778
For the purpose of monitoring segment RETHHBRARFARES D HER
performances and allocating resources between ZREmME :
segments:
e all assets are allocated to operating segment s BRETYHE BERRE &

other than certain property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, certain

prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances

and cash.

segment other than certain current income
tax liabilities, bank borrowings, loan from a
related company, financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss, certain deferred
income tax liabilities and certain payables and
accruals.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating o

EME- -ETHRANR ek
H A EUR - ERRITHER
MRTTREF BRI FIEE
EREORIEEDH -

BRETERMSHRARE  &RT
EX KA —HBAERARZE
R RBAFEFABRSZZER
BE ETEEMSHEAERRE
NETRENZREBRERIN
FAEREERSREIEED

2B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE—F-__F+-A=t—-HL

FE
Steel cord
HK$°000
BT T
Amounts included in the measure of BERIGEIBEER I TFERZ
segment assets or segment profit S8
or loss:
Capital expenditures BEARRET 70,610
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRBEZITE
equipment 104,481
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEFRAEZITE 1,249
Amortisation of land use rights b FAAE 2 8 3,891
Net impairment losses on financial assets % & ER(EBKFE 1,114
Provision for inventories, net FERE  F8 4,881
Losses on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - HERRE 2 BL
equipment, net FRE 88
Amount regularly provided to CODM EHR\EFEIEEEAREETE
but not included in the measure of RRFEDBER 2SR
segment profit or loss:
Income tax expenses Fr88i sz 9,520
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_ESE-—-4%+=-A=+—H1
FE

Steel cord

i BE AR

HK$’000

BT T

Amounts included in the measure of BRERTESBEES I HBREZ
segment assets or segment profit or S8

loss:
Capital expenditures BEARRET 208,948
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRBEZITE

equipment 103,274
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEFRAEZINE 1,217
Amortisation of land use rights - Hb {5 FAAE 2 5 4,016
Net reversal of impairment losses on TREERBEBXER FE

financial assets (7,396)
Reversal of provision for inventories, net 77 & & & @ - F5E (911)
Gains on disposal of property, plant and HEE¥WE  BE ME&EZ WS -

equipment, net HEE (660)

Amount regularly provided to CODM EHR\EFEIEEEAREETE
but not included in the measure of ERTESBEE 2 :
segment profit or loss:
Income tax expenses FT{S# 2 8,009




The Group’s operations, non-current assets and
substantially all of the customers are located in
the PRC (including Hong Kong) which is the
country of domicile of the relevant entities of the
Group. Accordingly, no further analysis of revenue
from external customers and non-current assets
by geographical location is presented.

Revenue from customers contributing over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group is as follows:
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AEEZEE FRPEERBA
MOBEPHURAREEFERD
MEBZ FER(BEES) Bt
WEZIIREIATL 2 LXK
FRBEEAME S BNE TS
#r

KEEAEBEAERBEI0% T

FrERENT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHEE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BETT

Continuing operations BFEREER
Customer A ZEA N/A TEH 335,748
Customer B ZFB 524,858 370,313
Customer C EFC 313,473 N/A T
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—BLEE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Continuing operations HEREER
Government grants (Note) BT 6 B (B EE) 19,032 1,308
Sales of scrap materials HEREEYE 1,706 2,754
20,738 4,062

Note: The government grants mainly represented financial supports

for business development by the local governments in the
PRC and approved subsidies from Employment Support
Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Hong Kong
Government (2021: subsidies for business development by the
local governments in the PRC). There are no unfulfilled
conditions or other contingencies attaching to these grants.

BeE - BUT AL = Baeh Bl 7 BUN S ¥ BB R

NP B REBBRAHZRRES TN
RO BN ER A (—E——F :
W7 BTSSR RAOMERL) - EL AR
BARBITHGRE S E R AER -
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2022 2021
—E_C T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Continuing operations BELSEEK
Fair value gain/(loss) on a financial ZAFEFAEGRZEREEZ
liability at fair value through profit A {EUkzS,(EE)(HIFE30)
or loss (Note 30) 21,700 (20,796)
(Losses)/gains on disposals of LEME  HER&HE 2 (BE)/
property, plant and equipment, net Uiz - JFEE (92) 660
Impairment losses on property, plant ¥% - /5 K& 2 BB K
and equipment (Note 17) (FaE17)) (112) (3,095)
Others HAth 2 609
21,498 (22,622)

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and
distribution expenses, administrative expenses and
research and development expenses are analysed as
follows:

RIFEXAR HERDHER THRER
RiTEERZBRADHMT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2022 2021
—E_— B —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T PEWE T TT
Continuing operations BEREER
Cost of inventories sold (including net EiHEGFEKRA(BIEFEFE
provision/net reversal of provision &R EERE ) (KiE22)
for inventories) (Note 22) 2,123,045 2,265,721
Employee benefit expense (including EERMFEZ(BEEZEHE)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 10) (K$3E10)) 261,756 267,931
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -BELRIEBZITE
equipment (Note 17) (ftaE17) 105,929 104,668
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEGAEZITE(KME18))
(Note 18) 1,249 1,217
Amortisation of land use rights 3 {55 A4 2 B 4R (P 5E20)
(Note 20) 3,891 4,016
Auditor’s remuneration EaantiEofi
- Audit services — &t IR 1,537 1,537
- Non-audit services — JEEETIRTS 398 398
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLHFE

2022 2021
g T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Continuing operations FEREER
Wages, salaries, allowances and other T & - ¥ « E85 &k E 1@ F
benefits 226,957 237,265
Pension costs — Pension Scheme in  BARESHA -REELN
Hong Kong RIREHE 201 197
Pension costs — social security RASKA - NP ETE
contribution in the PRC IRIE S R 34,598 30,469
261,756 267,931

Note: As at 31 December 2022, there were no forfeited contributions
available to offset future retirement benefit obligations of
the Group (2021: same).

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 included one (2021: one) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note
39. The emoluments payable to the remaining four
(2021: four) individuals during the year are as follows:

s M- —F+-A=+—8 #ETH
T S5 7R 62 B R SRR IR 18 T 2= A5 0 8 M
RK(ZZ=—%F : HR)-

BE-_ZE-_—"F+-_A=+—8BItH
B AEBFHEeNERREABE—R
(ZE2E=—F: —R)EF HileE kM
KU ST R DT - FAEEET
MA(ZE=-—F : 0% )E B/ FHE
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—BLFE

2022 2021
—Eg-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations HEREEK
Salaries, allowances and other e R EAMET
benefits 5,021 4,703
Discretionary bonuses 1B IEAT 985 1,139
Pension costs — defined contribution EREKA — EREHRETE
plans 373 350

6,379 6,192
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The emoluments fell within the following bands:

MesmEWDT :

Number of individuals

EEAE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
Continuing operations HEREER
Emolument bands & &3 [E]
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7B #1,000,001 .2
75 #1,500,0007T 1 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 11,500,001 .2
75 %52 000,0007T 3 1
4 4

One (2021: one) executive director of the Company,
constitute senior management of the Company, their
emoluments were within the following bands:

—R(ZFZ—F: —B)ARANTE
F BRARASREEAR ENEE
RIATEE :

Number of individuals

EE A"
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Continuing operations FEREEK
Emolument bands B < &5 [
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7B #2 500,001 T2
75 #53,000,0007T 1 1

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors or
other members of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join, upon joining the Group, leave
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2021:
same).

HE_T-_—_F+-A=+T—HL®HF
B AEEBEREA R RS 5B
BMESHHMKE TG  LAMEAR
SIEFEMASRAMARE B2 825 3K
ERBERMmE(ZT=—F : R
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Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BETT

Continuing operations FEREEK

Finance income B EA

Interest income on bank deposits IRITFRF E WA 2,246 1,426
Foreign exchange gain on borrowings &2 JMNETE 5§ Yz - 5,074

Foreign exchange gain on financial BRATEFABZZERHAEY
liability at fair value through profit HNEEBEE 5 W as (B9 5E)

or loss (Note) - 4,872
Total finance income B 5 U A 4858 2,246 11,372
Finance costs B AR
Interest expenses on bank borrowings R{TE K ZH 8 H (22,747) (22,296)
Interest expenses on loan from a KE—HBEEARERZ

related company FEZ (1,049) (784)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities FE&EZF S H (KizE18)

(Note 18) (126) (123)
Amortisation of loan transaction costs B 5 A 2 # 4 (389) (1,570)
Foreign exchange losses on B2 INEERE H B8

borrowings (14,479) -

Foreign exchange loss on financial BRATEFABGZZERHAEZ
liability at fair value through profit HNESTE 5B (B9 5E)

or loss (Note) (14,071) -
Total finance costs B RSP A B KR (52,861) (24,773)
Finance costs, net BIFERA - JFEE (50,615) (13,401)
Note: It represented fair value change on financial liability at fair Mk - I R INEIE H 8 21 A EET A
value through profit or loss attributable to foreign exchange BRZEHEBEZ AT EES(HFE30)

translation (Note 30).
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Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T T
Current income tax: EHIFSH

- China corporate income tax — TSR 11,085 8,741
Over-provision in prior years VAR SRR i (550) (3,334)
Total current income tax B EiFTS AR 10,535 5,407
Deferred income tax (Note 31) IR IE FT ﬁTR(WaESﬂ (705) 3,423
Income tax expense FrisHi sz 9,830 8,830

Income tax expense is attributable to: FTEFiX HEAR :
- Continuing operations —FEREE 9,830 8,830

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the year
ended 31 December 2022 as there is no assessable
profit subject to Hong Kong profits tax (2021: same).

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
effective from 1 January 2008 (the “CIT Law”),
companies in the PRC are subject to income tax of
25% unless preferential rate is applicable.

The applicable CIT tax rate for Jiaxing Eastern Steel
Cord Co., Ltd (“JESC”) and Tengzhou Eastern Steel
Cord Co., Ltd (“TESC”) were 15% for the year (2021:
15%), as they are qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”).

BHE_T-_—_F+-A=1T—HL*HF
B AEEWEE AN EENSHD
FERBLRF - At EEBFEH 2 BE
(Z2=—%F : HR)-

BREE ST N\F-—HA—BLERZHE
EEMERA(EEMAEIIE]) FRIFE
BERERER BRRTBENRAIABMR
25% KPS

AEERHERTHERAR AR ZHE
%HJ)&%JH%H%H% RBERDE B
NI DEOEREERMERTES15%
(ZZT=—%F :15%) BftFIRHES
MEE(MHIRMER]) 2ER -
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The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the weighted average tax rate applicable to
profits of the consolidated entities in the respective
jurisdictions as follows:

X &= B BR BT 13 85 Bt M) O B¢ 18 R R AR 5@
AR EERDERREDN A G B85 M H i
BFARRFENIERESENZRRM T

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+t—HLHFE

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Profit from continuing operations REFEREEB ZBRAAEHA
before income tax eyl 57,688 89,709
Loss from discontinued operation REERIEEEEBE 2RISR
before income tax A& 18 - -
Profit before income tax ¥ P15 %5 Al v A 57,688 89,709
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates %@ A& Blm A 75 B &
applicable to profits in the T E R BLRE (M EE())
respective countries (Note (i) 8,167 14,042
Expenses not deductible for taxation TA[HEFINFIIE 2 & A
purposes 16,763 14,575
Income not subject to taxation PEFAFIE 2 WA (7,575) (11,983)
Tax losses for which no deferred RERBELEMSHOTBER
income tax was recognised 517 467
Tax incentives for research and TEH Bk 7 B — R B A |l |
development expenses available Tt 2% 5 sz At 7 B = (P e (i)
for a subsidiary incorporated in the
PRC (Note (ii)) (10,618) (8,566)
Withholding tax on dividends 1% 8 2 AR TR IR 3,126 3,629
Over-provision in prior years LARIFEMBEEES (550) (3,334)

9,830 8,830
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Notes: BsE -

i The weighted average applicable tax rate was 14.2% for i HEe_Z-_—F+-_F=+—HIEFE"
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 15.7%). The INFEFYEERBR R B14.2% (—Z B - —4F -
change is carried by a change in the profitability mix of the 15.7%) &) TH R AEB R SR AK B
Group’s subsidiaries in the respective countries. NEAFRE MBS BRI TR -

ii The Group obtained an incentive from the PRC tax authority ii ANEBRPHEBEEBANRNEEB—HEF
relating to the research and development expenses of a EARMERASTHNER - RIEZHEE
subsidiary in the PRC. Under such tax incentive rule, the B NEBER A B GHERFZH
Group may claim an additional tax deduction up to 100% EERANBEBAWHERE FHN100%( =
(2021: 100%) of the relevant research and development ——%F : 100%)FE MR UOR R
expenses incurred in a year approved by the PRC tax
authority.

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries: FEWBARZEFBLT :

Place of Particulars of issued Principal activities
incorporation and  share capital/ Attributable equity and place of

Name of subsidiaries kind of legal entity registered capital interest of the Group  operations

Bt 5 BERTRE/ TEER

KEARAB REEERKN AR ANFEE AEEEGRE RSE 5

2022 2021
—B--EF —T--—F
Bigland Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited ~ HK$2 (2 ordinary 100% 100%  Property investment
company shares) in the PRC
EREBRAT BE BRAA BT (L mkR) 100% 100% RAERENERE
Everwinner Investments ~ Hong Kong, limited  HK$1,000,000 (1,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited company ordinary shares) in Hong Kong
KEMBRERRAAE BE - BRRA 7#1,000,0007T 100% 100% MNEBRFREZK
(E3&AR1,000,000/%)
Fair Win Development Hong Kong, limited ~ HK$500,000 (500,000 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited company ordinary shares) in the PRC
BRERARAT BE BRAT #%500,0007T 100% 100% RHEESNERE
(3% A%500,0008% )
Heroland Investment Hong Kong, limited ~ HK$2 (2 ordinary shares) 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited company in Hong Kong

AERABR A B BRAA AT (L ER2MR) 100% 100% REBRENERE
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Place of Particulars of issued Principal activities

incorporation and  share capital/ Attributable equity and place of
Name of subsidiaries kind of legal entity registered capital interest of the Group operations
P 3L 3t B BERIRE/ TEEK
WEARERE REEERER T RAHF AEBEARE REEHE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—&F
JESC# The PRC, limited Registered capital of 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
liability company US$70,000,000 steel cords in
the PRC
RER hE BREERF  EMA&RZAT70,000,000% 7T 100% 100% MNPERERE
AR
TESC? The PRC, limited Registered capital of 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
liability company US$109,000,000 steel cords in
the PRC
BMRF* hE BRAERR  EMARZA109,000,000% 100% 100% RPERERE
T AR

Shougang Century The PRC, limited Registered capital of 100%* 100%*  Provision of
(Shanghai) Management liability company US$7,000,000 management
Co., Ltd. (formerly known services in
as Shougang Concord the PRC
Century (Shanghai)

Management Co., Ltd.)#

ENM( LB EBERAA B AREERA  FEM&RZA7,000,000% T 100%* 100%* RAERERHEER
(ABEREE(LS) R
ERERRA)

i A wholly foreign owned enterprise # ONEDE

* Directly held by the Company

2 For identification purpose only

: AABEERH

g (EXEEE Al



The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results for the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital and
issued any debt securities subsisting at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2021: same).

On 25 March 2022, the Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK1.5 cents per fully
paid ordinary share, with total amount of approximately
HK$29,571,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021.
The dividend was paid in July 2022.

On 24 March 2023, the Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HKO0.73 cent per fully
paid ordinary share, with total amount of approximately
HK$14,391,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The final dividend is subject to the shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The final dividend proposed after 31 December 2022
has not been recognised as a liability as at 31
December 2022.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ARAEBERRS  ERIHARE KB
RADEIEFERFERE IBRAE
BEEFECERROZMBLRR - AQ
RAEERRAINEMHERRZER K
SEYRERBMH K-

& WY A B RS R AN A E
B B AT A B B A Sk B #ATEME
BES(ZFZ—F : BR)-

BEeN T -_—_F-ZA_t+HBEE
KEBRE_T-_—F+-_HA=+—H1
FEZAREREGRBZRANE B
7S 1.5l - 48 %8 40 B B 29,571,000
T WER B _F+ AKXt

BFEeN T -_—F=-A_-_t+HBE=E
KBEHEEZE_T-_—_F+-_A=+—H1
FEZAREREGRBZRANE B
75 #0731l - R R X A 75 14,391,000
T o REARR BB R BITHRRAEF KR
FLIERRSAZ - RZTE__F+=H
= t+—HEBEORBRETZF AR
T —F+-_A=+—HWERE-
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Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing FIREXRERN IR AT A AJE
the profit for the year attributable to the owners (EREEGSMNBRNERND EITE R
of the Company by the weighted average number RENFE B Et & o

of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHFE

2022 2021
—=2-= - —F
Profit attributable to the owners AR FHEH ARG AFZHT
of the Company used in ARFTEERERRZR
calculating basic earnings
per share:
— Continuing operations —RELEEH(BE T )
(HK$’000) 47,858 80,879
- Discontinued operation — BRI EER
(HK$’000) (BEFIT) - _
47,858 80,879
Weighted average number of BT E SR INE T
ordinary shares in issue (shares) (f&f7) 1,964,007,474 1,898,752,435
From continuing operations RATHEE ANEIEREFFE
attributable to the owners of the A&&EXEECEI)
Company (HK cents) 2.44 4.26
From discontinued operation (HK KB E2#& IH&EEERBGE)
cents) - -
Basic earnings per share RARHEA AEIEFRER

attributable to the owners of the & CGE(L)
Company (HK cents) 2.44 4.26




Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares. The
Company has one category of potentially dilutive
ordinary shares: convertible bonds (Note 30)
(2021: same). For the convertible bonds,
calculations are done to determine the number
of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average market share
price of the Company’s shares for the year) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights
attached to outstanding convertible bonds.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, convertible
bonds issued are considered to be potential
ordinary shares and have been included in the
determination of diluted earnings per share from
their date of issue. The convertible bonds have
not been included in the determination of basic
earnings per share (2021: same).

Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Convertible
Bonds were matured in February 2023 and the
Company has made full redemption of outstanding
principal amount of HK$126,000,000 of the
Convertible Bonds.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MRS MR

BREERNNEAABREBITYT
igﬂxbﬂﬁngfj;&k*@j;n$§?%ﬁﬁ¥§/a
T ELARMETE - ANRAHE—
BEAEEL AR -ATEﬁHxﬁ§?$(M¢
FHI0NZZT=—%F : MEED - FL AT
KESHMS %zfﬁﬂi??ﬁﬁ_T?ﬁﬁﬁff
HRMREENEEEES
BErABRAFE(EAELAR ﬂﬂxfn
EARFENTFHEME)BENRN
HH o

BE-_T-_—_f+-A=t+—HL
FEBINATRRESERAZ
BENEAR YERSERET
2 BRETSREERN T - ATh
BEH Rt NG REA BT HETE
F(ZZ=—%F  f8R)-

RZF-_—_F+-A=+—H%K"
ABRBREFNR_ZTE_=F_A13
H ARFCERBEOREELRS
A & %126,000,0007T 2 AI # f& (&
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEFE

2022 2021
—E—-— —_E-—
Profit attributable to the owners of AR AR AR ZANF & q A
the Company used in calculating AR EFREREAF :
basic earnings per share:
— Continuing operations (HK$’000) —FEQLEEBKBEETT) 47,858 80,879
- Discontinued operation —BRRIERE R
(HK$’000) (BEETIT) - _
47,858 80,879
Profit adjustment for convertible B AT 3R AR (& 25 i s ) 53 B
bonds (HK$’000) (BB TT) (7,629) 15,925
40,229 96,804

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue (shares)

Adjustment for convertible bonds
(shares)

B ITH BN F I8
(Bfn)
PR AT 8 A 5 0 8 B (A

1,964,007,474 1,898,752,435

381,818,182 454,545,454

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for diluted
earnings per share (shares)

FREERN 2 ERARnE
FHE (M)

2,345,825,656 2,353,297,889

From continuing operations

RREFEA ARIERAFE

attributable to the owners of the  && X (E)

Company (HK cents) 1.71 4.11
From discontinued operation (HK KRB E#& IF&=EH%GEL)

cents) - -
Diluted earnings per share KAREEANELEERES

attributable to the owners of the &7 (L)

Company (HK cents) 1.71 4.11
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The movement of the net book amount for investment

properties is as follows:

REMEHIREFER

BB

Leasehold
land and
buildings

HE LA

BF

HK$’000

BT T

At 1 January 2021 R-—ZE-_—F—H—H 53,874
Changes in fair value recognised ERERERC A TEZS (M)

in profit or loss (Note) 2,650

Exchange differences bE W = RE 922

At 31 December 2021 R-_E_—F+-HA=+—H 57,446

At 1 January 2022 R-ZZE-_—F—H—H 57,446
Changes in fair value recognised ERERERC A TFEZS (M)

in profit or loss (Note) 1,138

Exchange differences E N ZEFE (2,947)

At 31 December 2022 R-_E__F+-_HA=+—H 55,637
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Note:

The investment properties of the Group represent industrial
property units located in Hong Kong and residential property units
located in the PRC with following details:

GER

AEBENREMERMNBENTEMEELGR
R ENEEYEERS - FEOT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2022 2021
—E-— T
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BT T
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong I &EBH LY ¥ ER 22,500 22,600
Residential property units located in the PRC i /AR BIRI{EE M2 ELNL 33,137 34,846
55,637 57,446

The fair values as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were assessed
by the independent and professionally qualified valuer, Vigers
Appraisal and Consulting Limited (“Vigers”).

The valuations were determined using the direct comparison
approach. Sales price of comparable properties in close proximity
are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property
size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square foot/square meter.

REEZREMER-_ZE__FR-ZFT=_—

TZA=T—BZATFEDBBEVEEEEXE
BEEEMESITE ETEBEEBR AR (g
Hr ) EHE -

HERERBERLEOE - NI R AT LR
¥ZHEEREREZEBUEPINYERE) 2 E
R AR - WA ESDERERNBAZIER TS
FHR/FHAREER -
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Note: (continued)

()

GER

Industrial property units located in Hong Kong (a)

The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the

industrial property units located in Hong Kong are:

(%)
MR EBO T EYEEN

R EBN TR FEMEEMERNE
ERFERBARBNOT

As at 31 December

R+=—H=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2022 2021
HEFE ELABERGAYE —=-= T —F
Direct comparison approach Adjusted market price per square HK$5,300 HK$5,300
foot
BHELBOX KRG T RMISER 7 ¥5,3007T 75 #5,3007T

As at 31 December 2022, if the adjusted market price per
square foot decreased by 5%, the impact on profit or loss
would be HK$1,125,000 (2021: HK$1,130,000) lower. The
lower the adjusted market price per square foot, the lower

the fair value.

Residential property units located in the PRC (b)
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
residential property units located in the PRC are:

Valuation technique
fHELE

Unobservable inputs
EEBRE AYE

RZEZZF+_RA=+—H WR&H
BHFTHRTBEETES% @ BIEEEN
FEE AR EE1,125000 (=T =—
F : #¥1,130,0007T ) I FHEBEFF H R
MIBERBE QD FE-

(I B (EEY R B
AT ENEEMEEMEEMERNE
EEZERBARENT

As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F

Direct comparison approach

BERLEBE

Adjusted market price per
square meter

EERST KNS MBS

Ranged from
RMB43,000 to
RMB59,000
(equivalent to
HK$48,000 to
HK$66,000)
HEHARY
43,000t E
AK%59,0007T
(HEREY
48,000t
7#£66,0007T)

Ranged from
RMB41,000 to
RMB58,000
(equivalent to
HK$50,000 to
HK$71,000)
HERARE
41,000t &
AR#58,0007T
(FHER B
50,0007 &
75#£71,0007T)
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Note: (continued)

(b) Residential property units located in the PRC (continued)
As at 31 December 2022, if the adjusted market price per
square meter decreased by 5%, the impact on profit or loss
would be HK$1,657,000 (2021: HK$1,742,000) lower. The
lower the adjusted market price per square meter, the lower
the fair value.

There were no transfers of investment properties between
fair value hierarchy classifications during the year (2021:
same).

At 31 December 2022, the Group had no unprovided contractual

obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2021: same).

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income:

BEE - ()

(b) MIRFBRFEDEBMN(E)
RZEZZF+=ZA=+—H MREH
BEFHATHERTES% - AIHBEEN
T2 ER L EEA1,657,000T( =T = —
& B%1,742,00070 ) KLABFFH K
TS ERBE 2 FERR-

RAFE Txé#@% NFEEBRS B ZEIL
EER(CT_—F AR

R_E-_—_F+-_A=+—8 A&EEL
EAMREEENENEEUERBERES
FR&E(ZZE_—4%F: $HH)

T EBERGA R EUCERER -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2022 2021
—g:-= T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Rental income (Note 5) A WA (HEE5) 1,475 1,330
Direct operating expenses arising from #Kiﬁ?i%ﬁ%”&)\ﬁ%ﬁﬁ#@iz
investment properties that generated rental ~ E#ZAL =
income 171) (143)
Changes in fair values recognised in the BEREFE2EKRGERERZ AT EE
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income 1,138 2,650

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out
its investment properties under operating leases
ranged from one to five years (2021: one to six years).

AEBREBEEHEHEAERENED
HEMA—ZRAF(ZF=— x
F)e
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Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plant and  fixtures and Motor Construction
buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total

BEIHE  AENE BER &H %ER
#7 & s i RE ERIE aif
HKS000  HK§'000  HKE000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKEO000  HK$(000
BEfT  A%Tn AN B% T BETn ANt B%n

At 1 January 2021 R=B=-%-A-A
Cost or fair value AARATE 393,546 3,973 2,260,155 30,971 19,213 49,681 2,757,539
Accumulated depreciation and ~ Z:FTERE

impairment loss - (3390 (1596895 (25460  (13,130) (490) (1,579,365
Net book amount EmFE 393,546 583 723,260 5511 6,083 49,191 1,178,174

Year ended 31 December 2021 HZ=F=-%

TZR=t-ALEE

Opening net book amount BNERFE 393,546 583 723,260 5511 6,083 49191 1,178,174
Additions AE 3,350 - 121,584 1,137 846 82,055 208,972
Disposals HE - - (4.217) (59) - (229) (4,505)
Transfers B 55,467 - 48,715 1,180 384 (105,746) -
Depreciation (Note 9) 8 (Ho) (1,839) 095 (8983  (118)  (1501) - (104,668
Revaluation (Note) Efh(HE) (8,229) - - - - - (8,229)
Impairment loss (Note 8) G (HES) - - (3,265) (61) 1) 238 (3,095)
Exchange differences EREE 11,854 2 26,147 169 160 1,216 39,548
Closing net book amount BRERFE 444,150 290 822,387 6,690 5,955 26,725 1,306,197
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-F+ZA=+-A
Cost or fair value AASATE 444,150 3,961 2,482,060 33,526 20,944 26,996 3,011,637
Accumulated depreciation and ~ Z:FTERE

impairment loss - B671) (1659673 (2683 (14989 O71)  (1,705,440)

Net book amount RESE 444,150 290 822,387 6,690 5,955 26,725 1,306,197
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Leasehold Furniture,
land and  Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor ~ Construction
buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
BELHR HEN% BER B £ER
B¥ £ B EL HE HRIR it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥Tn  EBTn  ETn ABTn  EMTn  EMTr BETR
Year ended 31 December 2022 BZ-Z-_%
tZAZt-ALEE
Opening net book amount BORETE 444,150 290 822,387 6,690 5,955 26,725 1,306,197
Additions hE 74 8 1,615 828 406 67,7172 70,703
Disposals e - - (1,162) (58) (458) - (1,678)
Transfer g% 31,951 - 32,625 381 - (64,957) -
Depreciation (Note 9) e (W) (12,263) (152) (90,637) (1,381) (1,496) - (105,929)
Revaluation (Note) Efh(Hfik) 34,808 - - - - - 34,808
Impairment loss (Note 8) B (HEs) - - (112) - - - (112)
Exchange differences EiEE (37,046) - (76,023) (537) (423) (2,770)  (116,799)
Closing net book amount BREERE 461,764 146 688,693 5,923 3,984 26,770 1,187,280
At 31 December 2022 RZB-Zf
+=A=t-A
Cost or fair value RASATE 462,389 3,713 2,296,076 31,047 16,605 21,018 2,836,848
Accumulated depreciation and ~ ZFTERAE
impairment loss (625) (3,567)  (1,607,383) (25,124) (12,621) (248)  (1,649,568)
Net book amount KETE 461,764 146 688,693 5,923 3,984 26,770 1,187,280
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Note:

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group represent industrial
property units located in Hong Kong, commercial property unit
located in the PRC and industrial property units located in the
PRC with following details.

GEX

AEENEELHRETRUNE BN TENE
B RPENERYERECRURNTENT
EWEBL FBEOT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong IR &S 2 T E£WEEN 15,000 15,900
Commercial property unit located in the PRC R BZ B EEA 840 954
Industrial property units located in the PRC AP E TEMEEN 445,924 427,296
461,764 444,150

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group are carried at
revalued amount. If the leasehold land and buildings had not been
revalued, they would have been included in these consolidated
financial statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
with carrying amount of HK$345,175,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: HK$347,405,000).

The revalued amount as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were
assessed by the independent and professionally qualified valuer,
Vigers. The valuations were determined using either:

- Direct comparison approach: Sales price of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in
key attributes such as property size. The most significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square foot/
square meter; or

- Depreciated replacement cost approach: Current cost of
replacement/reproduction of the properties. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is replacement
cost per square foot/square meter.

AEBOHEE L HREFIREGEBESER W
HE+THEREFHREMR MER=-T ==
T AT BRELHARBRNITEZERR
8 & 7% #345,175,000c( Z T = — F : B
347,405,000 ) 5T A SR A B 5 R -

R ZFR-_FT-_—F+-A=+—HME
HEEREY B EEEEERNGEEMBIE T
B EERBUTE—FEERE

- ERIEE REOmEATL R E 2
EERERIZBUEDINYEERR) 2=
EEHAE  WHETEREANBAR
BRETHIR/FIHARNERK &

- EFESENAE : ERMEEERAK
BEUER A - W ET ERERNBAR
BREBTHR/FIHRONEERA
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Note: (continued)

Quantitative information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs (level 3):

(@)  Industrial property units located in Hong Kong
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
industrial property units located in Hong Kong are:

BsE - (88

FREREANBEEBEGABB AT EFE

s —

(%

(a)

FONEEER -
MNEB 2 TEWHEEMN

NREBEANIERMEEMGEEMERNE
BELERGAREBEOT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2022 2021
fh{ETR % EEBERAYE —B-=F —T-—F
Market comparable approach Adjusted market price per HK$5,200 HK$5,600
square foot
ISR KAREFHRTSER 7 ¥5,2007T 7 155,6007T

As at 31 December 2022, if the adjusted market price per
square foot decreased by 5%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$750,000 (2021:
HK$795,000) lower. The lower the adjusted market price per

square foot, the lower the fair value.

(b)  Commercial property unit located in the PRC

The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the

commercial property unit in the PRC are:

RZZEZ_F+ZA=+—H0 WAL
BYAFRMIGEBTEY%  HHEMEE
Wi MR 21 RiR B ¥ 750,000 (= F
——% : B#795,0007T ) KHABF T H
RIS EREE  AFEBE -

IR B2 BEYEEN
URFENEEMEEMEEMERNE
EEEEERARBNOT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2022 2021
REFE EEAERGAYE —E-= T
Market comparable approach Adjusted market price per square RMB16,900 RMB17,600
meter (equivalent to (equivalent to
HK$18,900) HK$21,500)
MG LLE A KRBT T KTISER AK%16,900 ARE#17,600
T(HEERBYE T(EEREE
18,9007T) 21,5007T)

As at 31 December 2022, if the adjusted market price per
square meter decreased by 5%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$42,000 (2021:
HK$48,000) lower. The lower the adjusted market price per

square meter, the lower the fair value.

RZEZZF+ZRA=+—H WMLEHAE
BERARTISER TREY% HEMEE
Wz 8 52 218 AR D A 542,000 (=8
——4F : B¥48,0007T ) KFHEBEFFH K
MISERBE QD FER-
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Note: (continued)

(¢

Industrial property units located in the PRC
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
industrial property units in the PRC are:

BsE - (88

IRRB TEMEER
NRPENTERMEEMEEMERNE
BELERGAREBEOT

As at 31 December

Valuation technique

fhET %

Unobservable inputs

BLERRAYE

R+=—B=+—H
2022 2021
—E-CE —ZT-—F

Depreciated replacement cost approach

Unit replacement cost
per square meter

Ranged from

Ranged from

BEEEBERATE

28]

F5

fe

N

Adopted depreciation rate

B2 R

KB BERA

RMB900 to RMB1,000 to
RMB1,800 RMB3,100
(equivalent to (equivalent to
HK$1,000 to HK$1,200 to
HK$2,000) HK$3,700)
HERARY EEHARE
900TZEARY 1,000cE AR

1,800t (FHER
B¥A1,000TEHE
#£2,0007T)
Ranged from
38% to 97% 24% to 99%
HEMH38%E HEH24%E
97% 99%

3,100t (FHE R
BHE1,200TTEB
#3,7007T)
Ranged from

As at 31 December 2022, if the unit replacement cost per
square meter decreased by 5%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$21,514,000 (2021:
HK$21,365,000) lower. The lower the unit replacement cost
per square meter, the lower the fair value.

There were no transfers of leasehold land and buildings
between fair value hierarchy classifications during the year
(2021: same).

As at 31 December 2022, leasehold land and buildings
located in the PRC amounting to nil (2021: HK$194,288,000)
and plant and machinery amounting to nil (2021:
HK$38,760,000) are pledged to secure bank borrowings and
loan from a related company respectively as set out in Note
25.

RZZF-_—F+=-A=+—H 08¥H
KEBAEBRATES% - HEA S EIRE

V5 E AR D S 21,514,000 ( =
——4F : %B#21,365,0007T ) FF HAKE
N EFRABIE A FEBE -

RAFERE L REFHAFEERD
B mEs( - T ——4F : fAR)-

R_E-_—F+_A=+—8 RF
MNEETHREFEEAT(ZE—F
75 16194,288,0007T ) M M #EE £ 5 A
T(ZZ = —1 : 51%38,760,0007T) E 5
AERBRITERKRE —HMEERRZE
RZ R - FIFE R FE25 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

The consolidated statement of financial position
shows the following amounts relating to the

leases in respect of office premises:

A BRI 0 T HIRMA

EMEHERBEOTHE

As at 31 December

W+=BA=+—H

2022 2021
—EC-CF T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

Right-of-use assets BEEGCHRE
Offices premises WREYE 1,665 2,914

Lease liabilities HESE

Non-current IERED 446 1,738
Current ik 1,292 1,226
1,738 2,964

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are nil (2021:

HK$3,747,000).

HE_TZ-_—_#+-_A=+—AH1t
FE MEEEFTRHEAS(ZZ
——4 : JB¥3,747,0007T)°



The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income shows the following amounts relating to
the leases in respect of office premise:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R R

A 2 EMERIIRN T RHA
eES PR R

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Continuing operations BEREER
Depreciation of right-of-use assets & E{F A#E 2 #7& (Mi7E9)
(Note 9) 1,249 1,217
Interest expense on lease liabilities S & &2 F 8 H(HFE11)
(Note 11) 126 123

The total cash outflow for leases during the year
ended 31 December 2022 is HK$1,352,000 (2021:
HK$1,310,000).

The Group leases various offices. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods of 3 years
(2021: 3 years).

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

E_E_—_F+_-_A=+—HIit
FEAEEEENBERREEAR
75 #1,352,000c( =T =—F : &
#1,310,0007T)°

AREBERAETHAZE - HEAR
BERZF(ZE_—F:=ZF)2
& 7E BAPR o

HEHREEENEENETR -
TR LA RER = IR A R
fRiF-HEHZTNEE S HHEAR
BONHEEEENERNEZINNE
MRK - HEEETSRERBKE
& e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arE MRS R

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+-—H

2022 2021
- —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T

Financial assets at amortised cost: REHERATENESHEE :
Trade receivables JrE U BR =X 565,447 795,968
Bills receivables e 1R 653,069 812,204
Deposits and other receivables e N A e BN 3,768 4,476
Pledged bank deposits BB ITER 80,101 195,867
Bank balances and cash RITHEEFENIRe 145,807 73,487
1,448,192 1,882,002

Financial liabilities at amortised BRBERATENSRES -

cost:
Trade and bills payables R ER R S iR 800,885 1,119,498
Other payables and accruals Hin BN R RTBIREA 212,341 368,294
Loan from a related company RKE—HBEEQRZER - 24,570
Bank borrowings RITEXR 454,552 479,838
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,738 2,964
1,469,516 1,995,164
Financial liability at fair value BAFHEFAEZZSHEE
through profit or loss:

Convertible bonds Al IR E S 132,074 183,278
1,601,590 2,178,442




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R R

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent the REBEBR T HFEREMERELCERELY
prepaid lease payments under operating leases, being THRENEERE BN AEBEEEHR
a part of the right-of-use assets of the Group. R —2 D

HK$’000

BT T
At 1 January 2021 Rn-ZE=Z—F—H—H 146,047
Amortisation (Note 9) B8 (M17E9) (4,016)
Exchange differences MEHZER 4,233
At 31 December 2021 RZZE=-—F+=-HA=+—H 146,264
At 1 January 2022 R-_E__F—H—H 146,264
Amortisation (Note 9) e (M3E9) (3,891)
Exchange differences fEH =% (12,231)
At 31 December 2022 R-E__F+-_A=+—H 130,142
During the year, amortisation expense of HK$3,891,000 RAREE & %’ & f 8 %3,891,0007T
(2021: HK$4,016,000) has been included in costs of (ZZE=—%F : %¥4,016,0007T) EFTA
sales. HEMA o
As at 31 December 2022, land use rights amounting RZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—RH &84
to nil (2021: HK$62,323,000) are pledged to secure HES(ZZTZ—F : BKe2, 323 000
bank borrowings as set out in Note 25. TL)Z L AR IR ERITTERA

R FEIBEIIR M EE25 o

Goodwill is allocated to one of the cash-generating PEEEIREE—REELEN EHE
units of the Group, comprising a subsidiary in the RMEROEFN—HMEAR —FH
steel cord segment, JESC. The recoverable amount R HeEABMMARESEETIRE
of a cash-generating unit is determined based on the EREEFEET -

value-in-use calculation.

Goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit had RZZEZ_—_F+ZA=+t—HAETHE=2
been fully impaired as at 31 December 2022 (2021: ?Eﬁuﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ(_g_g

same). N EIEIDE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—H
2022 2021
- —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT I
Raw materials JRM 152,790 147,535
Work in progress ERH 77,068 90,682
Finished goods BIRK & 209,562 239,143
439,420 477,360
Less: provision for inventories B FERE (17,117) (13,482)
422,303 463,878

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during
the year amounted to HK$2,123,045,000 (2021:
HK$2,265,721,000), which included net provision for
inventories of HK$4,881,000 (2021: net reversal of
provision for inventories of HK$911,000).

RAERHEXNAFNEFEERARBE
2,123,045,0007T( — & = —F : B K&
2,265,721,00070) ' B BEFEFEE
B4881,000T( - —F : FEF
B0 578 %911,0007T ) °

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H

2022 2021

- —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T PEMETIT

Trade receivables (Note (a)) FE U BR SR (P 7 (a)) 587,033 818,370
Less: provision for impairment losses J& : fEURER TR E 1B KB

on trade receivables (Note (c)) (P (c)) (21,586) (22,402)

565,447 795,968

Bills receivables (Note (b)) FEW 1% (Mi3E (b)) 653,069 812,204

1,218,516 1,608,172




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables and

R H IR R EBEENREENATIIE

bills receivables are denominated in the following HE -
currencies:
As at 31 December
BR+=ZA=+—8H
2022 2021
s —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
RMB AR 994,520 1,350,878
Us$ =T 150,163 163,369
EUR BT 73,697 92,883
Others HEK 136 1,042

1,218,516 1,608,172

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range
from 30 to 90 days. The aging analysis of the
trade receivables based on invoice date was as

REE—MRETEESHEF308E
WHMEERH - FWEREER
BERZAHRE ZRED T2 0

follows: ™~
As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—H

2022 2021
—ZE=-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Up to 90 days =90H 317,331 559,209
91 to 180 days 91£180H 202,979 200,425
Over 180 days %1 180H 66,723 58,736

587,033 818,370




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

The aging analysis of the bills receivables based
on invoice date was as follows:

URZBEETERBERAHEH

BREC DT -

As at 31 December

BR+=BA=+-—H
2022 2021
—E-CF T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Up to 90 days FZ=90H 34,226 97,875
91 to 180 days 912180H 288,126 361,525
Over 180 days %1 180H 330,717 352,804
653,069 812,204
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bills RZEZ=ZF+=ZH=1+—H"' &

receivables mature within one year (2021: same).

EEMEKREE > IHAHE—F
ZAR(ZE=Z—F : 1R)-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R Y

The carrying amounts of the bills receivables
include bills which are transferred to banks
or suppliers by discounting or endorsing the
bills receivables on a full recourse basis.
Under these arrangements, the Group has
not transferred the significant risks and
rewards relating to these receivables. The
Group therefore continues to recognise the
transferred assets in their entirety in its
consolidated statement of financial position
and measuring them at amortised cost.

The relevant carrying amounts are as follows:

AT AARERRERRIZE
HEREERRTRITHEE
THER ZBIRRE - HRA
SRV ARERAEXSTRER
BEZEXRRERNEE - Ei#
HBEERZFRWRE 22
REELBREEE ZFWH
BERCHERARARE 2
A MBI R AR

BRAFREENT ¢

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Bills receivables discounted to RZ2HEREECHERF
banks with full recourse RITZEWEE
Transferred bills receivables EREWRE 335 82,218
Associated secured borrowings fEEEEIFER (335) (82,218)
Bills receivables endorsed to REHEREXEEEF
suppliers with full recourse fitpER 2 e R 1B
Transferred bills receivables R ENEE 538,215 657,091
Associated trade payables FEEEFETER K (450,115) (430,354)
Associated other payables 1 PR EL A JE A (72,590) (104,223)
Associated prepayments MHEATEN K (15,510) (122,514)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

The movement on the provision for impairment
losses on trade receivables is as follows:

EWEFREBRABENEH N
I

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the year F1) 22,402 28,958
Net impairment losses/(net RNEZRKRFRERX
reversal of impairment losses) SRR CREB R RF5E)
on trade receivables for the year
— Continuing operations —FEREEY 1,114 (7,396)
- Discontinued operation — BRI RS (M1EE32)
(Note 32) - -
Exchange differences ME N =% (1,930) 840
At end of the year FR 21,586 22,402

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying values of each class
of receivables mentioned above. The Group did
not hold any collateral as security for these
receivables as at 31 December 2022 (2021: same).

REBH X EERRA L
EHEERFENERE - R
T+ A=+—H AEEW
BmREEAMNERMERZFTERU
BEHEER(ZE-—4F : HR)-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Current portion REITD
Prepayments AN 20,567 23,919
Other tax recoverables (Note) FAth AT e [0 756 78 (B a3 ) 39,585 49,818
Deposits e 142 212
Other receivables H b & TR 3,252 3,854
63,546 77,803
Non-current portion FRET D
Rental deposits Heke 374 410
Prepayments for the acquisition of BEWX  HE K& E 2B K
property, plant and equipment 20,554 38,182
20,928 38,592
84,474 116,395

Note: Other tax recoverables are mainly input value-added tax
arisen from the acquisition of property, plant and equipment

and purchase of materials.

Mz - HEurRERETEZRBEEDE BE R
R LB B AR E R E TG ER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

The carrying amounts of the prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are denominated in the following

BN e ARSI ENL T
JIEHEEHE

currencies:
As at 31 December
Rt+=-—H=+—H
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
RMB AR 83,870 115,381
uUs$ =TT 4 4
EUR BT 11 414
Others HE 589 596
84,474 116,395

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security
for bills payables (Note 27), loan from a related
company (Note 28) and bank borrowings (Note 29)
are:

()  leasehold land and buildings: nil (2021: HK$194,288,000)
(Note 17);

(i) plant and machinery: nil (2021: HK$38,760,000
(Note 17);

(i) pledged bank deposits: HK$80,101,000 (2021:
HK$195,867,000) (Note 26);
(iv) land use rights: nil (2021: HK$62,323,000) (Note

20); and

(v)  bills receivables: HK$335,000 (2021: HK$82,218,000)
(Note 23(b)(i)).

ETHERERARNRER(MF27) KB
—REER B 2 ER(ME28) RIRTTE
R(HFE29)NRBZEEREER

() BEETHRET: B(ZT=——%F:
#515194,288,0007T ) (Fi7E17)

(i) BMERKE: T(ZT=—F: 8
#38,760,0007T )(FizE17):

(i) B2EMRITF K : 5%80,101,000
TL(=ZF=——% : #%195,867,000
7L )(F3E26) ;

(iv) TiERE: T(ZF=_—F: &
#62,323,0007T)(Fi7E20): &

(v) FEUWE4E: 7 %335,000c( - F
— —4F : #82,218,0007T )(Fff zX
23(b)(i))) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Pledged bank deposits BIKIREITFER 80,101 195,867

Pledged bank deposits represents bank deposits
of the Group which were pledged to secure credit
facilities on bills payables granted to subsidiaries
of the Company for the purchase of raw materials.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s pledged
deposits were denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest
rate on pledged bank deposits was 1.45% per
annum (2021: 0.79% per annum).

BEERMRITFREAERENRITF
REEIRABL AR B 2 KB R FI5L
BERMHZENZERGEER
JE o N8 B K 7 A Bk T B A
AR¥EHE -

RZFZZF+ZA=+—8"
BEEBRTERNERFEFN XA
1.45% (= FE = —% : 0.79%)°

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—8
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Bank balances and cash RITEENIRE 145,807 73,487




The carrying amounts of bank balance and cash
were denominated in the following currencies:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arE MRS R

BITRTF RS OB E BN T 31
EHE -

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2022 2021
s —EF-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
RMB AR 41,977 46,746
HKD B 2,181 2,721
us$ ETT 74,156 17,298
EUR BT 27,493 4,475
Others Hibh gk - 2,247
145,807 73,487

As at 31 December 2022, funds of the Group
amounting to HK$141,235,000 (2021: HK$64,421,000)
were deposited in bank accounts opened with banks
in the PRC where the remittance of funds is subject
to foreign exchange control.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group
as at 31 December 2022 were HK$145,755,000
(2021: HK$73,410,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the effective interest
rate on bank balances ranged from 0.01% to
4.31% per annum (2021: 0.01% to 1.15% per
annum).

RZZEZZF+ZA=+—H 'K
= E A B %141,235,000T( —F
— — 4 : 5%64,421,0007T ) 77 K
EHRBREARRITHAARITERS
mAEBESNESEINEEH -

R-_E-_—_F#+-_A=+—8"
AEBNEAGEERRABK
145,755,0007C( — T — —4F : B
73,410,0007T ) °

RZEZZ_F+ZA=+—8"
RITETFERFFNEXR0OI%E
431%( = T = — F:0.01% %
1.15%)°



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Trade payables (Note (a)) FETBR R (B 7E(a)) 601,058 625,882
Bills payables (Note (b)) FE 215 (FH5E (b)) 199,827 493,616
800,885 1,119,498
Other payables and accruals - HttERRRERER - RS
current
Contract liabilities (Note (c)) a#Ha‘E () 861 922
Accrued wages and salaries BIRIENHS 25,372 27,412
Other tax payables HAh e T 18 7,336 8,645
Other accruals HiiEe & A 8,088 7,762
Other payables (including payables HENR(B2EDE  BE &
for property, plant and equipment)  &f& 2 B ) 204,253 360,532
245,910 405,273
1,046,795 1,524,771




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables,
bills payables and other payables and accruals are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEBH RN BNEENMEMERN
REEREARREENA T IIEEHE:

As at 31 December

R+t=B=+—8H
2022 2021
s —EF-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
HKD B 10,325 9,406
RMB AR 1,004,118 1,474,343
us$ ETT 29,131 37,769
EUR BT 3,221 2,246
Others Hip g - 1,007
1,046,795 1,524,771

The Group’s credit period granted by the suppliers
is 30 days. The aging analysis of the trade
payables based on invoice date was as follows:

HEE - RETAKEANEE
BRHE - A R UR IR R A B4R I
ZERER DM EFNT :

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= —T-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Up to 30 days =30H 164,146 234,388
31 to 90 days 31290H 135,552 200,353
91 to 180 days 91%180H 232,148 124,141
181 to 365 days 181£365H 62,714 60,457
Over 365 days %7365 H 6,498 6,543

601,058 625,882




The aging analysis of the bills payables based
on invoice date was as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R R

NEERIZEHEB RS 2Rk
D25

As at 31 December

Rt+=-—H=+—H
2022 2021
s —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Up to 30 days F=30H 15,673 132,620
31 to 90 days 31%90H 37,984 48,546
91 to 180 days 91%180H 139,065 301,733
Over 180 days % 180H 7,105 10,717
199,827 493,616

The bills payables of the Group are secured by
pledged bank deposits as disclosed in Note 25.

As at 31 December 2022, the contract liabilities
for the advanced payments received from the
customers included in the other payables and
accruals amounted to HK$861,000 (2021:
HK$922,000).

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31
December 2022 that was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year
amounted to HK$922,000 (2021: HK$2,156,000).
The Group expects to deliver the goods to satisfy
the remaining performance obligations of these
contract liabilities within one year or less.

AEEZ BNEBEASERRITE
K (DM T 253 58 ) 1R 1R

RZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H"' &
HaEZERERRIBEREME
K& TEIRE A L5 %861,000T
—Z = —1%F : &¥0922,0007T)°

HE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—H1t
FEEEADBA  BEEOAEE
B € V] 45 4 - H 55 #922,0007T
—T=—% : B¥%2,156,0007T)°
AEEBEFE—FHERREAAR
NEY UETEREHEENT
BEHEMT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BET T

Loan from South China International B/ EBEHEGR A A

Leasing Co., Ltd. (“South China
Leasing”) (Note)

(T HE]D 2ER ()

- 24,570

Note:

On 31 May 2021, TESC, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, had entered into the finance lease agreement
(“Agreement”) with South China Leasing, an associate of Shougang
Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shougang HK?”), whereby TESC
agreed to sell certain machineries and equipment (“Machineries
and Equipment”) to South China Leasing at the purchase
consideration of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,000,000) and South China Leasing agreed to lease back
the Machineries and Equipment to TESC for the lease consideration
of approximately RMB21,800,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$26,160,000), comprising the rental principal of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,000,000), the lease interest of
approximately RMB1,650,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,980,000) calculated on the basis of fixed interest rate of
5.5% per annum and the lease handling fee of RMB150,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$180,000), for a lease term of
eighteen (18) months.

As collaterals for the above financing, () TESC transferred the
ownership title of Machineries and Equipment to South China
Leasing; and (ii) the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
in favour of South China Leasing for the payment obligations of
TESC under the Agreement.

Upon discharging TESC’s obligations under the Agreement, South
China Leasing will return the ownership title of the Machineries
and Equipment to TESC for a nominal purchase price of RMB2,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,400). Despite the Agreement
involves a legal form of a lease, the Group accounted for the
Agreement as collateralised borrowing in accordance with the
substance of the Agreement.

The loan from South China Leasing was fully settled in December
2022.

B

R-ZE-_—FRA=+—"8 BMNEH(ELQ
ANEEZEWNBAR)EEFHES(EMERK
(BEB)ARABI(TEERESNBE AL
MEHEAR(ARD Bt BNRFRER
B E R (B A R 20,000,0007T (18 E R 48K
24,000,0007T ) i & & T # 28 & s (T #28 &
BENDTFTEAIAE TEAHERZEB®S X
BB ERELNARK21,800,0007T(HHER
#9785 %26,160,0007T ) B 4ABINEF 4 €
& A& AR #20,000,0007T( 1 E R4 H
#24,000,0007T )+ 1% [E £ F | E5.5%+ & ~
THE N B4 AR #1,650,0007T (18 E R 45 1K
1,980,0007T) R EFEE A R#150,0007T (8
R 495%180,0007T ) FE A+ /\(18)@A -

TER LI E VM @ - ()RR T S8 MR
BRI A EERAE D EE - ROARFRIZIA
AAOHERR R ANREER  EABRMETRN
B RE T AARENREENER -

FRMNETRERBETHNEEETTER B
MERAREIEEEEBARE2,0007T(HHERD
B #52,4007T) B ER KRBT A #E B B A M
RG-BEARFREENERTEA  BAEHE
BREARNATEE RARIAEEIRER

REAEMAHEZERR-_S-__F+_AE2%

{BIE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—8

2022 2021

- —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Bank loans IRITER 454,217 397,620
Discounted bills with recourse BB REME BRIREE

(Note 23(b)(i) (P zE23(b)(i)) 335 82,218

454,552 479,838

Current portion MENE D 454,552 479,838

Secured SR 335 153,195

Unsecured A R 454,217 326,643

454,552 479,838

The Group’s bank borrowings were repayable as
follows:

AEBENRITERFIREENT ¢

As at 31 December

Rt+=HA=+—8H
2022 2021
—gE=-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BET T
Within 1 year —FR 454,552 479,838




The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings
approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of fixed
rate borrowings and variable rate borrowings are
HK$274,552,000 (2021: HK$479,838,000) and
HK$180,000,000 (2021: Nil) respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, bank
borrowings of HK$335,000 (2021: HK$153,195,000) are
secured by bills receivables, pledged bank deposits,
leasehold land and buildings and land use rights as
disclosed in Note 25.

As at 31 December 2022, total undrawn facilities
amounted to HK$167,824,000 (2021: HK$73,405,000).

The range of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contractual interest rates) on bank borrowings
are as follows:
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TEFRHNEREEE N FERES

b’é T - F+-_A=+—H BEF
A/%\&/¥uﬂz—fﬁ/%\2$ﬁ@ Y=
%27455200075(_7_ F:EK
479 838,000 T ) X /& #180,000,0007C
(ZF=Z—F : &)

@K*f**EJr H +—RBItE
& A& B/ IR T E 3% #335,0007T
(ZF=Z—%F: ,%%153,195,00075)Eu
EUWEE BEBRITER BELHR
BT K AT H(5F FAREVE R R I A B 5
25z o

RZE-_—F+-_A=1+—08 " FENz
& 458 A7 167,824,000 ( 2 = —
& : J51573,405,0007T ) °
RITERZEBRANE(MBERETLF
%)E@%BHZZDT :

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-C-F —E-—F

Effective interest rate per annum: ERFENE
Fixed rate borrowings ElEFIREHK

Variable rate borrowings FEMERER

0.65% to 6.47%  0.65% to 5.66%
0.65%%6.47% 0.65%%5.66%
3.22% to 8.15% N/A
3.22%%£8.15% T




The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings
are denominated in the following currencies:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AEBRITERNEEENL T Tt
# :

As at 31 December

W+=—BA=+-—H
2022 2021
—sE=-= —E -4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
EUR BT 23,175 28,169
us$ ETT 390 11,697
RMB AREE 250,987 404,992
HKD B 180,000 34,980
454,552 479,838

On 11 February 2019 (the “Issuance Date”), the
Company issued convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$150,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”)
to Jingxi Holdings Limited (“Jingxi Holdings™), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd
(“Shougang Group”, which is the substantial shareholder
with significant influence of the Company). The
consideration for the Convertible Bonds was
HK$150,000,000. The Convertible Bonds are interest
bearing at a coupon rate of 4% per annum.

The holder of the Convertible Bonds has:

(i) the option to demand the Company to redeem
the Convertible Bonds on 11 February 2022 (the
“Original Maturity Date”) at 100% of the principal
amount outstanding plus any accrued and unpaid
interest;

RZZE-—hF=-A+—B(ETA]) &K
ARIAREERER AR REAZER])
(EHEBERAR([EMERE] ~AF
BEEEAFENZEFERR )N EWES
A A))BITARE 5 A %150,000,0007T
AR ES ([FTRRES ) T RRE
BB A7 %150,000,0007T ° 7] # A%
BEHFREFA%HEmMF XS -

AR ESFHEARSR

() RZZTZ=ZFZA+—HURHKE
HAB ]) B3kARA]E100% 4 K &
BASBEIMEMEGREFEE
[l Al AR (B RO R 12



(i) the option to convert the Convertible Bonds into
ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion
price derived on certain conditions at the date
of conversion falling 6 months from the Issuance
Date and up to the maturity date of the Convertible
Bonds; and

(iii) the option to extend the Original Maturity Date
twice by one year each to the date falling on 11
February 2024.

The Convertible Bonds, together with the abovementioned
options, were designated as a financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss.

The Convertible Bonds are initially recognised at the
fair value as financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss. The fair value of the Convertible Bonds as at
31 December 2022 was valued by the independent
and professionally qualified valuer, Greater China
Appraisal Limited (2021: same). The valuation was
determined using Black-Scholes model with Trinominal
Tree method (2021: same).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company received from the holder of the Convertible
Bond an extension notice to extend the maturity date
to 11 February 2023 and a conversion notice to convert
the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$24,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.33
per share. The conversion shares were issued on 7
February 2022. As a result of conversion and
revaluation of the remaining extended Convertible
Bonds, a gain on fair value of HK$21,700,000 was
recorded in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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(i) RB|IRE(REBSIRBREFET
AAEAEERIMA ENEHRARN
HETIHRE) BRI RBESER SR
AR EBEREERE K&

iy ERBHBIBERMAI BRX—FF
“E-NFE-—A+—HIERRE-

AR A 7 R BRI - BEE AR
NHEFABRBRZEHMABE-

AHRREF T RN EER SR
Bt \BRZE&BMAB-R_FT_—

TZA=1+—H JgRkEFNAFER
BY N AFSXEROGEMZEFESR
RAFETHRE(ZZ=—F : HR)Z
MENEERBMR - @S
=XERE(ZF=—%F : fHR)-

HE-_ZE -+ _-_A=+—8BItHF
B AR E TREESFEAZLN
EHRNNEREFEE S - =F =
A+—H8 I8 EEnEmARIRkE
AERBDEE0IBTERALE LS
#24,000,0007T 2 A # j% & 5 o # 3% AR
MR T —F -t BET - ARER
REGBRGHEEHITRRES B2
T —F+A=F+—HLEFEZFA
BREM AT EKEAE21,700,0007T ©
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Subsequent to 31 December 2022, the Convertible
Bonds were matured in February 2023 and the
Company has made full redemption of outstanding
principal amount of HK$126,000,000 of the Convertible

Bonds.

The movements of the financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss during the year are as below:

RZE-_—_F+-_A=1+—H1E [k
BER-_E-_=F_"A3H KAREE
BB R {EE A ¢ 585 %126,000,0007T
Z AR ES o

AEREAFEFABRAZEREEN
HEHIT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEFE

2022 2021

- —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT

At beginning of the year F7) 183,278 168,482

Settlement B (5,504) (6,000)

Conversion t il (24,000) -
Fair value (gain)/loss recognised ERERERZ A TE

in profit or loss (Note 8) (Yezs),/ 518 (FisEs) (21,700) 20,796

At end of the year FR 132,074 183,278




Note:

The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss are:
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i

FAEZZEABEREABRNERAFEF AR
HZERAGES

As at 31 December

R+t=B=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2022 2021
RESE EAERE AHE —g-= —B-—F
Black-Scholes model with Trinominal Dividend yield 6.82% 4.35%
Tree method

35 o BRI HTAR 2L B = X% AR B s &

Volatility 55.32% 44.70%

GTIES

If the dividend vyield shifted upward by 1%, the impact on profit
would be HK$221,000 higher (2021: HK$1,390,000 higher). The
higher the dividend yield, the lower the fair value.

If the volatility shifted upward by 5%, the impact on profit would
be HK$1,502,000 lower (2021: HK$3,801,000 lower). The higher
the volatility, the higher the fair value.

There were no transfers of financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss between fair value hierarchy classifications during
the year (2021: same).

A BU R EFH1% - HF LB nias B
221,0007C( = F = — 4F : 1% hn % #1,390,000
L) BREWERYS  AFESK-

HRE K EF5% KR B D IBENER
1,502,0007C( =% = — 4 : 54/ 13,801,000
TO) e KBRS AFEER-

RAFERATEFABSEZ eRABEATERE
BB AW EEH(ZT=—F : {gR)-
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As at 31 December

R+=B=+—H

2022 2021
- —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT I
Deferred income tax assets EEFSRMBEE (1,505) (467)
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFTSHIIEAE 28,007 23,448
26,502 22,981

The movements of deferred income tax during the year RIEFTEMIBRAFRE 2 8T :

are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-BA=+t—HLFE

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

At beginning of the year F7) 22,981 20,339

(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (5T A)/ HEiEE (705) 3,423

Charged/(credited) to other R (FrA) E 2l

comprehensive income 5,225 (1,208)

Exchange differences fEHZERE (999) 427

At end of the year FR 26,502 22,981

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset finl 5 7 A TE AT AT 2 BRI LA mT U [B]

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset tax MIREE TS BB - MIRLEMRS

recoverable against current income tax liabilities and At T8 B[R] — BA DA R AR R By - IRSE RIS T
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same HEERBERITAKE-

fiscal authority.
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The movement in deferred income tax assets and

liabilities during the year is as follows:

BLERGEHABERBBERAFECE
E U

Provision for

Decelerated  impairment Total
tax loss on trade Provision for deferred tax
depreciation receivables inventories  Tax losses assets
P8R
HERX EERE
HERBHRE B FERE REER BEAR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BETT BETT BT BETT
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE--%-A—H (15,413) (1,164) (2,155) (8,003) (26,735)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss ¥}, /(5T A ) B 2,162 1,165 50 (622) 2,755
Exchange differences fE 5 =% (387) (30) (61) (73) (551)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--&
+ZA=+-H (13,638) (29) (2,166) (8,698) (24,531)
At 1 January 2022 R=-Z=--%-A—H (13,638) (29) (2,166) (8,698) (24,531)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (5T A),/#A#E 5 (72) (17) 66 (4,117) (4,140)
Exchange differences I 5 =8 1,065 6 177 596 1,844
At 31 December 2022 R-E-Z&
+=ZB=t-H (12,645) (40) (1,923) (12,219) (26,827)
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Withholding
tax on
distributable
profit of Total
Revaluation subsidiaries deferred
of properties in the PRC tax liabilities
R EH A F]
Z A2 EAIE BB IR
YIS ZFARBIE aE8%E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT T
At 1 January 2021 R-—ZE-—-F—HF—H 36,042 11,032 47,074
Charged/(credited) to profit #IJF,~ (3t A\) 8%
or loss 821 (153) 668
Credited to other FFAE MR E R ES
comprehensive income (1,208) - (1,208)
Exchange differences MEHZ% 978 - 978
At 31 December 2021 R=-B=—%+=A
=+—H 36,633 10,879 47,512
At 1 January 2022 R=-FE-—_%—H—H 36,633 10,879 47,512
Charged to profit or loss MR B 309 3,126 3,435
Charged to other HURE 2 A e
comprehensive income 5,225 - 5,225
Exchange differences bE N Z=%8 (2,843) - (2,843)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-_—_%+=AH
=+—H 39,324 14,005 53,329

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of HK$68,780,000 (2021:
HK$45,948,000) which shall expire in three to ten years
(2021: four to ten years) and estimated unused tax
losses of HK$299,119,000 (2021: HK$295,089,000) are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arise.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$141,902,000 (2021:
HK$165,950,000) which no deferred tax asset has been
recognised, as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised.

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H K&E@EA
5T AR B) A B 18 fE5 18 A 7% 68,780,000
TT( —Z =~ —F : B #45,948,0007T )"
ﬁxazﬁﬂﬁ—iwLi(_;_—i 7y
E+F) W HERAPHEHESBER
299,119,0007t( — & — — F: B ¥
295,089,0007T ) 7] /R HA A3 74 #K S5 AR
REFHBEEEEBZ AR ARKRER
F5 o

RZTE-—_—F+=-A=+—H £5HE
B 8%141,902,000t( — T - —F : /&
#5165,950,0007T ) #) AT HI OB 52 B 1 =
B AREHETE SEFRREF A F LA

B B EAERSEERIARE
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In September 2019, the Group discontinued the
processing and trading of copper and brass products
business in the PRC. Accordingly, the financial results
of the discontinued business are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
discontinued operation in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sales and Discontinued
Operation”. The financial performance presented is for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

NCIAL STATEMENTS

EZZT—NFNA AEBEDRIEES
R EOREERMEOMTIRE 53
BBl BERIEREEB B ERR
BEBSTRMASEMNE SV BRE
HAESRFHBEFEZIERBEERD
RIMEEERE | RERIEEEEB 25N
EZEWERT FIE2VMBRRAEE
E-_ZT-_—F+-_A=1+—HILFE-

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—-F+=-A=+—H

HFE
HK$’000
BT
Loss from discontinued operation REERIEREEL 2 EIB -
Other comprehensive income Hip 2wk
Exchange differences arising on RmE 25| S’ imEEHER
translation into presentation currency ZHE 433
Total comprehensive income from REERIEKEER 2 2E K
discontinued operation 4RFE 433
Net cash used in operating activities KREFBBA 2RI FE (15)
Net cash generated from investing RERELEZHEFHE
activities -

Net cash used in financing activities MEETBEBA 2R FE

Net decrease in cash and cash HehBReEEERZR
equivalents

DFER
(15)
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Number of
Shares
igvig - 4=]
Thousand HK$’000
T BT
Issued and fully paid: BT R R R
At 1 January 2021 R-ZZE-_—F—H—H 1,899,025 1,191,798
Cancellation of shares (Note (a)) FEiERR Y (Ffisk(a)) (372) -
At 31 December 2021 and —E_—F+-A=t—-8K
1 January 2022 —E-_F—HF—H 1,898,653 1,191,798
Cancellation of shares (Note (a)) FEiERR Y (FisE(a)) - -
Conversion of convertible bonds ERATmRES (H5E(D))
(Note (b)) 72,727 24,000
At 31 December 2022 R-_EB__F+_HA=+—H 1,971,380 1,215,798

Notes:

i

(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company (@)
repurchased 344,000 ordinary shares. All of the repurchased
shares were cancelled in February 2023. The total amount

paid for the share repurchase was approximately HK$69,000

and was charged to retained earnings within shareholders’

equity.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
repurchased 372,000 ordinary shares. All of the repurchased
shares were cancelled during the year ended 31 December

2021. The total amount paid for the share repurchase was
approximately HK$104,000 and was charged to retained

earnings within shareholders’ equity.

The buy-back and cancellation were approved by

shareholders at last year’s annual general meeting, and the

payment was made out of the Company’s distributable profits

with no reduction of capital in compliance with HKCO.

The shares were acquired at an average price of HK$0.202
(2021: HK$0.274) per share, with prices ranging from
HK$0.190 to HK$0.210 (2021: HK$0.247 to HK$0.290). The
total amount of HK$69,000 (2021: HK$104,000) paid to
acquire the shares has been deducted from retained earnings

within shareholders’ equity.

BE—_ZE-_—_#+-A=1+—RHIEE"
AN T E 8 T 344,000 @A - FrE T
BHOER-_ZE_=F A BERH
FIT 2 <) MY 42 BB 40 /5 75 #569,0007T © B 1A
REZPORBEF PR

BE—_ZE-—F+-A=1+—RHIEE"

AN T EE T 372,00008 @A - FrE L
BOERBE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—H
IEFEFH BBROMENWEENR
751104,0007T - B HERRER =T AR B &
AR -

O RAHROREEZFORRAFAE
FRGERRIE RERAD RN SR
MERMEE MEFRAEBMIER  FEE
VNG

B 88 AR 1D B) F 9 B 1% AT RE £ 0.202 7T

—E - B0.274TT) BREEA
HBH0.190TE B #0210 (— T - —4F:
B H50.2477T =8 #0.2907T ) - BB 1) B
S AR BB 569,000 T( - T - —
75 104,0007T ) B R IRz P MR
St ) R HIBR o
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Notes: (continued)

(b)  On 7 February 2022, the Company issued 72,727,272 (b)
ordinary shares in relation to the exercise of the conversion
right attaching to the Convertible Bonds to convert the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$24,000,000
at the conversion price of HK$0.33.

BiEE - (&)

RZZFE-_—F-_A+tH ARFERES
BT AT IR AR E S M TS A S R M SRR
A DUIRHRE A IRIRAR IR 19 7 #50.33
TLES K 4 %8 575 524,000,000 2 Al #2
IRfES - 387772,727, 272 8 L iAAL -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E_C —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETT
Commitments in respect of the  EEWX  BFE K& B2 & E
acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
- contracted for but not — BRI E R KRGS
provided in the consolidated MR EELRE
financial statements 119,083 59,132

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

RBERAR NEBEBFOELZ
RRKIEEWHEE LT -

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—8

2022 2021

s —E-—%

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Within one year —F R 1,103 1,044
In the second to fifth year FEZFERFN

inclusive 576 496

1,679 1,540
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-RA=t-HL%EE

2022 2021
—EBoCE —E-F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT
Cash flows from operating activities BETHELECHERE
Continuing operations RHECEER
Profit before income tax KR BT 15 B AT A 57,688 89,709
Adjustments for: R
Net impairment loss/(net reversal of MR E, (BB AREFE)
impairment loss) on trade receivables 1,114 (7,396)
Net provision for/(net reversal of FEFRE/(FRERD)
provision for) inventories 4,881 911)
Amortisation of land use rights THERE EE 3,891 4,016
Bad debt written off BRI - 17
Changes in fair value of investment REMENTELE
properties (1,138) (2,650)
Change in fair value of a financial BOTHEFABR EREE
liability at fair value through profit or AYEZE
loss (21,700) 20,796
Depreciation of property, plant and 0¥ BERZEINE
equipment 105,929 104,668
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEFRAEINE 1,249 1,217
Impairment losses on property, plant and  #1% - BiE Rk&EREEL
equipment 112 3,095
Losses/(gains) on disposal of property, HENE BERRELER/
plant and equipment, net (z) 8 92 (660)
Finance costs B RKAR 52,861 24,773
Finance income BRI (2,246) (11,372)
Operating cash flows before movements RENE&EEFI 2 LLERETE
in working capital 202,733 225,302
Changes in working capital: LEEEE
Inventories lE3 = (2,600) (205,944)
Trade receivables FEUAR 50 168,504 (128,820)
Bills receivables ERER 90,666 79,917
Prepayments, deposits and other B REe REMEYR
receivables 7,992 (52,240)
Trade and bills payables EHERRER (225,570) 320,889
Other payables and accruals HENTRERER (59,525) 47,691
Cash generated from operations REEBEMELCRS 182,200 286,795
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In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

RiFARERERT HEWE
R P5 MR 2 FTS sRIEN T

equipment:
Year ended 31 December
BEZE+-BA=1+—HLFE
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T T
Continuing operations HEREEK
Net book amount BRmEFE 1,678 4,505
(Losses)/gains on disposals of HEME BEREHEZ
property, plant and equipment, (B518), W= 58
net (92) 660
Proceeds from disposals of HEME BEREHEZ
property, plant and equipment FriS 508 1,586 5,165
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The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

Interest

payables

classified

Bank under other
borrowings  payables
BERAf

ERFET

ROER  WEAFS
HK$'000  HK$'000

TR 5 52 0 o O B A
BEZ2Y BERLRARLS
B mREEDE LN EERS
REMEHARR LT ERAK
BEARERERNS EREEH

EEBRERNAE-
Financial
liability at
fair value
Loan from through
arelated  profit or Lease
company loss liabilities Total

RE-B  RAVE
BELE HABRZ

8% SHRE  HEAR ait
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000

BETT  BMTR AWt AT A%t EBTn

(Note 29) (Note 28)  (Note 30)  (Note 18)

(Fizt29) (Frskos)  (MH&Es0)  (Fst1s)
At 1 January 2021 W-E--£-F-A 492,460 388 - 168,482 404 661,734
Cash inflow BEMA 560,686 - 24,036 - - 584,722
Cash outflow BoHH (683667 (18,131) 60 (6000 (1310  (609.968)
Exchange differences ERER 8,970 19 429 - = 9,418
Non-cash movement LRy 1,389 18,187 965 20,796 3870 45207
At 31 December 2021 R-B--£+-A=1-H 479,838 463 24570 183,278 2,964 691,113
At 1 January 2022 RZB-ZE-f-H 479,838 463 24,510 183,278 2,964 691,113
Cash inflow BERA 805,766 - - - - 805,766
Cash outflow Bemi (799,063) (19,031) (23,377) (5,504) (1,352)  (848,327)
Exchange differences ERER (32,378) (52) (2,242) - - (34,672)
Non-cash movement ERERY 389 19,467 1,049 (45,700) 126 (24,669)

At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ#+ZA=1-A 454,552 847

- 132,074 1,738 589,211




A share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting held on 7 June 2002. Under
the 2002 Scheme, the board of directors (the “Board”)
of the Company shall, subject to and in accordance
with the provisions of the 2002 Scheme and the Listing
Rules, grant share options to any eligible participant
to subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company.
A new share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) was
adopted and the 2002 Scheme was terminated by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting held on 25 May 2012.

The 2012 Scheme became effective on 29 May 2012
upon the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
granting approval of the listing of, and permission to
deal in, any shares falling to be issued and allotted
upon the exercise of the share options granted.

The share options which have been granted and
remained outstanding under the 2002 Scheme remain
valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms
of issue.

The Company operates the 2002 Scheme (subsequently
replaced by the 2012 Scheme) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
for their contributions to the Group or potential
contribution to the Group. Eligible participants of the
2002 Scheme include any director (including executive
and non-executive), executive, officer, employee or
shareholder of the Company or any of the subsidiaries
or any of the associates or any of the joint ventures
and any supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, agent,
partner or business associate who will contribute or
has contributed to the Group.
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Qualifying grantees of the 2012 Scheme include any
director (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive), executive, officer,
employee, shareholder of the Company or any of the
subsidiaries or any of the associated companies or
any of the joint ventures and any supplier, customer,
consultant, adviser, agent, partner or business
associate, who will contribute or has contributed to
the development and growth of the Group. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the 2012 Scheme
will remain in force for a period of ten years from 29
May 2012. The 2012 Scheme has expired on 28 May
2022.

The offer of a grant of share options under the 2012
Scheme may be accepted within 60 days from the
date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. An option may
be exercised under the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme
at any time within 10 years from the date of grant of
the options or may be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion. The minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised will
be determined by the Board at its discretion.

The exercise price per share in relation to an option
under the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme shall be a
price to be determined by the Board and shall be no
less than the highest of (a) the official closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date on which the option is offered to an eligible
participant/a qualifying grantee, which must be a
business day; or (b) the official average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the 5 business days immediately preceding the date
of offer of option to an eligible participant/a qualifying
grantee.
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Pursuant to the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme, share
options held by any eligible participant/qualifying
grantee will lapse automatically upon their termination
of employment but the Board is empowered to extend
the exercise period of the concerned share options at
its discretion. Relevant exercise period of share options
held by the eligible participant whose employment
terminated during the previous years was extended
and approved by the Board. Such change does not
constitute modification of the 2002 Scheme.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

Since the adoption of the 2012 Scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or
outstanding thereunder until it expired on 28 May 2022.
No new share option scheme has been adopted after
the expiration of the 2012 Scheme.

The Company'’s substantial shareholder with significant
influence is Shougang HK, which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned
enterprise under the direct supervision of the Beijing
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission. Shougang Group Co., Ltd., together with
its associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) other
than the Group, will hereinafter be referred to as the
“Shougang Group”. Accordingly, the Group is
significantly influenced by Shougang Group, which is
part of a larger group of companies ultimately
controlled by the PRC government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MRS MR

Apart from the transactions with Shougang Group, the MEEZEESEENTS  AEEERSE
Group also conducts businesses with other PRC AR TMEEMmPRBNEET R
government-related entities in the ordinary course of HEITETR -

business.

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—BLFE

2022 2021
—Eg-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Continuing operations HESEEK

Consultancy fees paid and EXMREMNERE
payables 2,760 2,760
Proceeds from loan KREBRZPTEHIE - 24,036
Settlement of convertible bonds Bt AL ES 5,504 6,000
Conversion of convertible bonds ## A] #[% (& % 24,000 -
Loans repayment BEEX 22,390 -
Interest expenses on loans Bz AE X H 1,049 784
Loan transaction costs ERR S - 181
As at 31 December 2022, amount due to RZEBE_—_F+=—_A=+—
Shougang Group was approximately H #&reafEBseBNAE
HK$2,531,000 (2021: HK$2,530,000). The 7 #2,531,0000( — T = —
balance was interest-free, unsecured, & : B #2,530,0007T ) ° 7% &
repayable on demand, and denominated in BRARE B RAMNE

HKS.

BRIABTTREL -



The Group has entered into various
transactions, including sales to, purchases
from and other operating expenses paid to
other PRC government-related entities. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company,
these transactions are considered as
individually insignificant to the operation of
the Group during the reporting period.

In addition, the Group has entered into
various banking transactions, including
deposits placements, borrowings and other
general banking facilities, with certain banks
and financial institutions which are state-
controlled entities in its ordinary course of
business. In view of the nature of those
banking transactions, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that separate
disclosure would not be meaningful.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MRS MR

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Continuing operations HEREER
Royalty expenses B2 &R 2,177 1,452

As at 31 December 2022, amount due to a
shareholder was approximately HK$1,345,000
(2021: HK$697,000). The balance was
interest-free, unsecured, repayable on
demand, and denominated in RMB.

The key management of the Group comprises
all executive directors of the Company,
details of their emoluments are disclosed in
Notes 10 and 39, and share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in Note 36,
respectively. The emoluments of the directors
of the Company are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company
having regard to individual’s performance,
the Group’s performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market condition.

R_BE-—_—_F+=—_A=+—
H &R —NURREZSENE
75 #1,345,00000( — T = —
F : B ¥697,0007T ) ;% AL fR
REB - EIRE - IRBNEE
MUAARE BELL -

AEEZFEEBEABBER
REFIBHITES HE Rk
MRz RS5F1ER
7 Bl PR BT #E10 K2 39£2 fft 5£36
ELHEE -ARREE 2=
BAARRZHME B 2R {E
ARB AEBZEERRA
ARG IRAZE R 2 SR 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Assets EE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG NG 2 1,852,405 1,734,023
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8/ 5% H h fE K 349 328
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE YA B A =) 3R I 353,777 295,395
Bank balances and cash RITEFTRRE 3,907 8,513
Total current assets RBEEHAT 358,033 304,236
Total assets EEHE 2,210,438 2,038,259
Equity and liabilities EEREE
Equity attributable to owners FERRQAREEARSR
of the company
Share capital & A 1,215,798 1,191,798
Reserves f#E 641,113 622,551
Total equity R 1,856,911 1,814,349




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

As at 31 December

WR+=—BA=+—H
2022 2021
—ZE=== —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T PRI
Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables and accruals HEMNRLRERER 7,869 5,652
Bank borrowing RITER 213,584 34,980

Financial liability at fair value BRATFESABRZERAE
through profit or loss 132,074 183,278
Total current liabilities REBEEAEE 353,527 223,910
Total equity and liabilities ERxkaEEsE 2,210,438 2,038,259

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March
2023 and was signed on its behalf:

ARARMBRARER T -_=F=A
“tHBREEESHE WHATESEK

Su Fanrong
AR
Director

EF

Yang Junlin
BEM
Director
EF
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Capital  Translation Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
EXfE ERf@E RERF &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT BT BETT
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—F—A—H 23,990 118,229 338,509 480,728
Comprehensive income 2HEKEH
Profit for the year KEEFE - - 137,413 137,413
Other comprehensive income  Eft2EKE
Exchange difference arising on ~ H#AE 25| &% mEE£H
translation into presentation BHER
currency - 32,994 - 32,994
Total comprehensive income for AFE 2 H M E5
the year - 32,994 137,413 170,407
Share repurchase RiDEEE - - (104) (104)
Dividend paid BRRE - - (28,480) (28,480)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F+-HA=+—H 23,990 151,223 447,338 622,551
At 1 January 2022 RZE-Z%¥-A—-H 23,990 151,223 447,338 622,551
Comprehensive income 2HEKER
Profit for the year KEEFE - - 164,318 164,318
Other comprehensive loss Hitt2EER
Exchange difference arising on EBRE 25 ERMEEMNEL
translation into presentation =8
currency - (116,116) - (116,116)
Total comprehensive AEE2E(BR) hanssE
(loss)/income for the year - (116,116) 164,318 48,202
Share repurchase RiDEEE - - (69) (69)
Dividend paid ERBRE - - (20,571) (20,571)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—%+-B=+-H 23,990 35,107 582,016 641,113

Note: The capital reserve of the Company represents the benefit

of acquiring a shareholder’s loan from a previous shareholder

upon the acquisition of a subsidiary in previous years.

BfRE « AN R) 2 B Ao R HE 0 DA BT 4R 2 W —
B 8~ RIS - A —fZ BT AR R BB AR R B K

ZWE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The emoluments of each director of the Company

is set out as below:

For the year ended 31 December 2022:

BREZZHEHEIIMT

BE
FE

—=— —

=

#+=A=+—Ai

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES(FHRAAFLAFANELRER BECARELHE

Employer’s
contribution
to a
Allowances  retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees Salaries in kind scheme Total
BER  BIMERK
ik it BUER  BAGEM ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
Executive directors UnEs
Su Fanrong e - 2,641 37 18 2,696
Yang Juniin (Note a) itk (Msta) - 1,200 35 9 1,244
Li Jinping 27 - - - - -
Ye Qian g% - - - - -
Non-executive directors FHUfES
Adam Touhig (Note c) Adam Touhig(zc) 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Yip Kin Man, Raymond ERR 240 - - - 240
Lam Yiu Kin HER 240 - - - 240
Feng Yaoling HR% 240 - - - 240
870 3,841 72 27 4,810




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arE MRS R

For the year ended 31 December 2021: BT - F+=-_B=+—HI1

FE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREEZ (MR ARALARANBARRE BHCHARLMNE

Employer's
contribution
toa
Allowances retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees Salaries in kind scheme Total
BER  ETMER
we §e EWEN  BNEEA At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BT BB BB
Executive directors UnEs
Su Fanrong BLF = 2,641 3 18 2,692
Li Jinping 387 - - - - -
Ye Qian £ - - - - -
Non-executive directors FUTES
Liao Jun (Note b} B (Wztb) - - = = -
Adam Touhig (Note c) Adam Touhig(zc) 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Yip Kin Man, Raymond ERR 240 - - - 240
Lam Yiu Kin g2 240 - - - 240
Feng Yaoling HE% 240 - - - 240
870 2,641 33 18 3,562

None of the directors received or will receive any

emoluments in respect

of a person accepting

office as a director during the year (2021: Nil).

FA MECHNESAEANESTR
2 R S A WA E R B 2 ( = F

Z—F )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note:

(@)  Mr. Yang Junlin was appointed as an executive director
on 1 July 2022.

(b)  Mr. Liao Jun resigned as a non-executive director on
15 January 2021.

() Mr. Adam Touhig was appointed as a non-executive
director on 15 January 2021.

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during
the year (2021: same).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company does not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2021: same).

GEX

(@) BEMELER-_B-_—F+A—H
BRERNITES-

b) BREANR-_ZT-_—F—H+HH
BHIFEITES -

(b) Adam Touhigt £ =T = —F —
B+hBEZEAFERITES-

FA - MEEFCLAHFSWRE
R R B R EAN( =T = —
F: HER)-

BHE-_T-_—_F+=-A=+—H
WEFE ARBWEAEERE SR
BEmRAEAEZAZARE(ZE
——%F AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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As at 31 December 2022, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such directors
(2021: same).

Save as disclosed in Note 37, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year (2021: same).

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 #
BUAES RS EFIZEHE
ErRAEERASEAZER &
ERREMRGLH(ZTZ—F:
GRS

BRHIFESTET IR B & SN AN D A &
REEBT VAR AEFRTHH
RARRESEESHMEREFEKX
REES T A F AR F R AR R A
GFENEARS THHEH(ZE
——%F AR



Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group H&EEBR T - —F+—_A=+—HEEHZIX

A
N—=——

as at 31 December 2022 are as follows: BB INT -
Group
interest
Properties Use AKE&EEz Category of lease
/ES R& Bz HERQNER
1. House 5 - 18 and carport Residential 100%  Medium-term lease
District 5, Legend Garden Villas F= AT E R4

No. 89 Capital Airport Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
PRC

PRI R™

5 & B 5 5895%
ERIEERZE5R
5-185% EE B L

2. Workshop Nos. 16, 17 and Industrial and commercial 100%  Long-term lease
18 on 12th Floor IH% REHEEZY
Honour Industrial Centre
No. 6 Sun Yip Street
Chaiwan, Hong Kong
BB RER FH65%

RHIERL128
16, 1718%

3. Apartment Unit 4-14-5, Level 2 Residential 100%  Medium-term lease
Block 4-8, District 4 T=E FRERFRE 34
Legend Garden Villas
No. 89 Capital Airport Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
PRC
FEIL R T
5 & B #II55895%

ERIEERZS4R
E4-8E21%
4-14-55F

4. Unit 5E on Level 5 and Commercial and residential 100%  Medium-term lease
Car Park No. 39 on level 2 HEREE hEATE &2 4)
Jinmin Building

No. 8 Zunyi Road South
Changning District, Shanghai

PRC

PR W

B[R EEF K8
SBRAAE

5125E=

M2t B 3958



In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the FHEARFREF BNESAMRE NV @ZEE
following terms shall have the meaning set out below: IMRHE

“2002 Scheme”

(=TTt

“2012 Scheme”

[ZE— =2l

“Articles”
[Z248)

“BeijingWest Industries”

[RPAAET |

“Bekaert”

[ Bekaert ]

“Bekaert Combustion”

[ Bekaert Combustion

“Board”

[E5g

“Board Diversity Policy”

[EEEKBZ LK)

A share option scheme adopted and terminated by the
Shareholders at the annual general meetings held on 7 June
2002 and 25 May 2012 respectively
BESFIR - EZE_FNAtAR_E——FRA-_T+HHBLTZ
RERBEFAR EIRA R 2 B g2

A share option scheme adopted by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting held on 25 May 2012, became effective
on 29 May 2012 and expired on 28 May 2022
BER-ZZE-—_FRAA-THBERTZRREAFARE LERA K=
T —_FRATAARBRERYR _TE-__FRAA=-+/\HE®RZ
Bl S

the Articles of Association of the Company
RARBEBERMAE

BeijingWest Industries International Limited (Stock Code:
2339), a company incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited
liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange

REETEBEARAR(ROAS : 2339) RASEFSFMKL 2
BRAGE] ERDAEBRAER LT

NV Bekaert SA, a company incorporated under the laws of
Belgium, a substantial shareholder (as defined under the SFO)
of the Company

NV Bekaert SA ' IRIBELLFIFHEAEZIMK L2 AR BARRARZE
ZRR(BRBEFFLBAEROIEE)

Bekaert Combustion Technology B.V., a wholly owned
subsidiary of Bekaert, is a substantial shareholder (as defined
under the SFO) of the Company

Bekaert Combustion Technology B.V., BekaertZ =& ME A 7] -
RARBIZ FBRR(BREBEES KPEGRHIER)

the board of Directors

ARPEEE

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Board Diversity Policy
adopted on 26 August 2013 and revised from time to time
thereafter
EEMRREERARZEFENESZLEBRAE T —=F/\H
Z TR BRI BER TERHEET



DEFINITIONS
e

“Capital Industrial Financial”

[EBER]

“Code”

[=r8 ]

“Companies Ordinance”
NS

“Company”/“Shougang Century”
[AAR L TEERE]

“Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy”

[FFERFERFBUER]

“Conversion Price”

[HRR(E ]

“Conversion Rights”

[ |

“Conversion Share(s)”

[ AR |

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited (Stock
Code: 730), a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange

BEREXTRRBEEERQR(KRMMRN - 730) RAREZM
X2 BRAE BB R P ER £

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules

ErR AR+ PO E 2K R EE AT R

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
&A1 5E622F 1A REH)

Shougang Century Holdings Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and the Shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BEMREERRAR —HREBEEMNIL BR QA MERND
B P E AR T

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy adopted on 28 March 2011 and revised from
time to time thereafter
BEMBHEEAR AR ZHERBEEEIRRE _E——F=H
TN\ BRI BEE TRHEET

HK$0.33 per Conversion Share (subject to adjustment)
SRR AR AR 1D B 0.33 0 (Al T %)

the rights to convert the Convertible Bonds into Conversion
Shares

7RG RI HA S 5 B R A A AR ) RO BE )

the Share(s) to be issued by the Company upon the holder(s)
of the Convertible Bonds exercising its/their Conversion Rights
attached to the Convertible Bonds in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the instrument constituting the
Convertible Bonds

RA RN AR E S A AMRIRE K FIRA & 5 T B R IR
TR R 5 TR IR B 5 MY S B BB A 12 1 T & TR



DEFINITIONS
e

“Convertible Bonds”

A 5

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Employment Ordinance”
K= SN

“EUR”

(BT ]

“Fair Union”

[ Fair Union |

“Group”
[REE ]

“HKD”/“HK$”
(BTl T

“Hong Kong”

[E7%]

“Internal Control Manual”
[ A EBES 4R 5

“JESC”

[ F= 8RR T7

the 4% unsecured fixed coupon convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$150,000,000 due 2022
(extendable to 2024) issued by the Company to Jingxi Holdings
pursuant to the Subscription Agreement
ARARRBERBHZETTRAERN A CABRAER
150,000,000t X —E - —FHH(AIERE T _F)H4%E
EEF R B AIRARE S

the director(s) of the Company
ZIN/NETE- ==

the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

BEEDIE57TE RIS

Euros, the lawful currency of the participating states within
the European Union

BT - B BB R R E B

Fair Union Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Shougang HK
Fair Union Holdings Limited - 5 & &2 2 & B A A

the Company and its subsidiaries
RARREMNMEBE AR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

B BREEEHR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B EF B R RITTRER

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s internal management
and control manual adopted in 1999 and revised from time to
time thereafter
BERMBREEERAFZNEEIE R EEESI 8 — NN FHRAT
NN )

Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd., a company incorporated
under the laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company

FERAMERBRAR REBEREVEARAMA L 28 REA
Al RHE2ENE AR



DEFINITIONS
e

“Jingxi Holdings”
[ Pa AR

“Li Ka Shing Foundation”

[FEHEEE ]

“Listing Rules”

[ EmR Al

“Machineries and Equipment”
[ 25 Kt |

“Model Code”

M=y |

“Policy for Nomination of a Director
of the Company”

[TBERARESFHEK]

“PRC”
[ EE ]

“Purchase Consideration”

[EERE]

“RMB”
AR

Jingxi Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shougang Fund

RAERERAR —HARBEEEIEMRINERAR BE
METHEENBAF

Li Ka Shing Foundation Limited, a “charitable body” within
the meaning of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112
of the Laws of Hong Kong), a substantial shareholder (as
defined under the SFO) of the Company

EAECRARAT REAEVNEN2EWRBIGOIMRE 2 [#
ZER] RARRIZEERR(REZFLREHRIIEE)

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange
Bt X PraE 27 R AR Al

certain machineries and equipment primarily used by TESC
for manufacturing of steel cords
BEMERTT EZ AN EUEMERREE T MRE

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRBIMEE EMBETAEFTETE SR HNRESTA]D

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Policy for Nomination
of a Director of the Company adopted on 18 December 2018
and revised from time to time thereafter
BENBREEERARZREAARESEENR_ZE—N\F+_HA
T\ B BRI A BER TREHER]

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this
report shall exclude Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REARLME  BRAHEMS  TREEE RFIREGE

the amount of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,000,000) payable by South China Leasing to TESC for
the purchase of the Machineries and Equipment pursuant to
the Finance Lease Agreement
MOHENBEREHESRBERSE NREMEN TERMNRTH
LR B ARY20,000,0007T (185 7 4778 #24,000,0007T)

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE HBEEEEHS



DEFINITIONS
e

“SCHL Code”

[ B ERR TR

”

“SCHL Corporate Governance Code
[EERPEEARTA

“SFO”

“Share(s)”
[ A& tn ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[PRER

“Shougang Fund”
[EHES ]

“Shougang Group”
=S

“Shougang HK”

[EEEE]

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors and Specified Individuals
adopted in 2004 and revised from time to time thereafter
EEMRREARARZEZFIFEATETESFR HHFESTH
—ETMFRAWOBER TREHER]

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Code on Corporate
Governance (revised from time to time)
BERMBEEERARZEEE ST (RRESR)

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)
FREDIESTEE S KRB ED

ordinary share(s) of the Company
ZAN/N) i3 310

shareholder(s) of the Company

ARARZRR

Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd., a company established in
the PRC with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shougang Group
EREMESARAF —ARPEKINEREEAF REM
SENEZENBAR]

Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (a state-owned enterprise under
the direct supervision of the Beijing State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission), a controlling
shareholder (as defined under the SFO) of the Company
BMEEERAR(—RANFBRKIMNEE R JItREBEEE
EEEREZERHEEEE) RAQR —BERKRE(RER 5 K
BIEOIEE)

Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, a substantial
shareholder (as defined under the SFO) of the Company
BMZER(BE)BERAR REBIMKILZBRAF] BRARE
ZIBEBRR(REESKMEKRIIEE)



DEFINITIONS
e

“South China Leasing”

(R HE ]

“Stock Exchange/HKEX”
[ B8 22 FA7

“Subscription”

REEEIA

“Subscription Agreement”
[ R %

“TESC”

[BEMERTT

“TESC Phase Il Project”
RN ER5 —HRTE A |
‘AUSD”

Ev

u%u
[% ]

South China International Leasing Co., Ltd., a company
established in the PRC and an indirect 75% owned subsidiary
of Capital Industrial Financial, which is in turn held as to
approximately 50.84% by Shougang HK. South China Leasing
is also held as to 25% by the indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Shougang HK

EAAOBEREEERRAR —HRPEKIZ AR YR —HHEE
EREESATSNEANMNBAR MESERBEERERHA
#)50.84%#Em - AHMEETHEEREZHAEEZEMNBRARFAE
25% 1z

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEBMARSMAERAE

the subscription for the Convertible Bonds by Jingxi Holdings
pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions of the
Subscription Agreement

ROZEBRERE HHE N GRL X B RRZBB I RRES

the subscription agreement dated 18 December 2018 entered
into between the Company and Jingxi Holdings in relation to
the Subscription

RARRAAZEREABBEHIUNBARR_ZE—N\FE+_A TN

B R0

Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd., a company incorporated
under the laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company

BMNRDHESERAR REPEVAEIMKLZ RG] BAR
Al RE2EHE AR

the construction project of production lines
HERERIER

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
of America

XL XBZEEER

per cent
Bkt
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SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED
HERMBEREARAT
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